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The world’s leading
engineering software provider




Innovation is our business

In 2012 AVEVA celebrates 45 years of providing
engineering, design and information management
solutions to the process plant, power and marine
industries. This is an impressive milestone for any
software company and firmly positions AVEVA as one
of the most consistently successful businesses in
the technology sector.

We attribute this success to AVEVA's business philosophy;

to be more than just a vendor of technology, but an active
and engaged partner in our customers’ development and
success. We have achieved this through four and a half
decades of pioneering vision and determination to unlock
the power of software technology and human ingenuity.
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Our product icensing model
delivers a consistent stream
of recurnng revenue that
provides both business
resilience and a firm
foundation for growth

We grow our range of
industry-leading products
and services through focused
in-house development and
targeted acquisittons to provide
compelling business bensfits
to our customers
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Directors’ report

Our performance

A solid history of success

Throughout our 45 years of operation, AVEVA has had ambitious
targets and sound strategies for sustaining successful growth
and development We continually invest in leading-edge technology

Innovation, world-class people and a growing global network of !

sales and support offices.

Highlights

* Revenue up 13% to £195 9 million
(2011 - £174 0 million)

* Recurning revenue up 18% to £137 9 million
{2011 - £117 2 million) representing 70%
(2011 — 67%) of total revenue

« Strong performance in Engineering
& Design systems with revenue
increasing 11% to £172 5 million
{2011 - £155 1 mullion)

« Significant growth in Americas (+24%)
and EMEA (+21%)

Increased investment in new technology
and products with Research and
Development expenditure up 14%

to £32 1 mullion

Adjusted™ profit before tax up 14%
to £62 3 million {2011 — £64 7 million)

Profit before tax of £67 7 million
(2011 - £49 8 million)

Total dividend for the year increased
by 15% to 21 G0p

Eurape, Middle East

Amencas
and Afnca
£38‘02m £93.3m Asia Paafic
st o +21% £64.4m
) 2011: £76.9m _30/0
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Adjusted* profit before tax (Em)

£62.3m
+14%

Adjusted profit before

tax increased by 14%

to £62 3 millon We have
contnued to invest In the
business as planned whilst
achieving an adjusted profit
margin of 32% (2011 - 31%)

Dividend per share {p}

21.00p
+15%

The Board 1s recommending
a final dividend of 17 O pence
{2011 - 14 89 pence} which
1s an increase of 14%
Combined with the intenm
dividend of 4 0 pence this
gives a full year dividend

of 21 0 pence {2011 -18725
pence) an increase of 15%

488

2008

6.65

g

66.4

2009

2009 936

507

2010

16 9¢

2010

547

2011

18.25

2011

62.3

2012

21.00

2012

Recurring revenue (Em)

£137.9m
+18%

AVEVA coniinued to grow
strongly with total revenue
of £185 @ million a record
level for the Group and an
in¢crease of 13% over the
previous financial year
Recurnng revenue increased
by 18% to E137 9 millon
and represented 70%

of total revenue

Net cash and deposits {£m)

£179.0m
+17%

Cash and treasury deposits
increased by £25 8 million to
£179 0 milion This increase
is stated after the impact

of the acquisition of LFM
Sottware Limited (£5 7 million)
and after total dividends
paid during the year of

£12 8 million
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*Adjusted profit before tax is stated before amortisation of intangibles (excluding other software), share-based payments, adjustrnents to goodwill, the gan/loss on

the fair valuae of forward foresgn currency contracts and exceptionel tems Adjusted basic earings per share 1s also adjusted for the tax effect of these items

To find out more about our results

turn to pages 12-23
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Directors’ repost

Qur business

/4

AVEVA continually extends the boundaries of what
technology can achieve for our customers, through
a growing range of powerful software products,
our unrivalled industry expertise and strong

local delivery.

Our expertise

AVEVA's extraordinary success is a
direct result of its carefully developed
intellectual property. These assets
include creativity and technical expertise,
and a deep knowledge of our customers’
industries and their business priorities.

Our business model

At the core of AVEVA's business i1s the
intellectual property generated In its software
products The Group sells 1ts proprietary
software products by licensing ‘nghts to use’

Our technology

Orniginally rooted in 3D design, AVEVA's
technology offering has expanded
dramatically to serve a wide range

of engineering, design and asset
management disciplines With our
combination of unnivalled propnetary
technologies, extensive support for
open standards for information
exchange, and unique capabilities

In engineering and design integration,
no other vendor can offer such powerful
and comprehensive solutions

Our licensing model

the software directly to customers through
our network of global sales offices rather
than through resellers or distributors.

Thus strategy provides customers with local
sales and support and helps AVEVA to work
closely with the leading companies principally
in the OIl & Gas, Power and Marine markets.

We operate a ‘nght to use’ licensing model for both Enterprise
Solutions and engineening and design software products
Customers license our software by paying an initial licence fee
followed by an obligatory annual fee or renta! fee over a fixed
period of time {n both cases, the customer has to continue

to pay a fee in order to use the software This mode! provides
a strong recurring revenue base for AVEVA which allows us

to Invest In the future development of our products

AVEVA Group ple Annyal report 2012




Our business is structured around two lines of business,
Engineering & Design Systems (EDS) and Enterprise
Solutions (ES).

This enables us to focus our development of products
and services to meet both the project-onented
requirements of EPCs and shipbuilders, and the
operations management needs of Owner Operators
throughout the lifecycles of their assets

Project Engineening and
management detalled design
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Enterprise Solutions

Some of today’s biggest business benefits come through better
exploitation of information assets Our information-centric strategy
for this 1s based on the concept of a Digital Information Hub
AVEVA NET creates a central repostitory for all project and asset
inforrmation, delivering the nght information to the right people at
the nght time We are enabling businesses to compress schedules,
reduce cost, improve preductivity and mirimise risk, while
maximising safe operations

Find out more
wWww aveva com/enterprise

To learn more about AVEVA's
target markets and software
solutions, visit the video library
on the AVEVA website

www aveva com/videos

Procurement

Matenals
management

Construction

Operations
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Direciors’ report

Our markets

A solid strategy for success

The fundamental growth drivers across our primary markets
remain very strong despite the many economic and political
changes experienced by the industries we serve AVEVA's
products and services are well positioned to exploit new
opportunities created by the evolving business environment
of our customers

End user markets

AVEVA's success has been built 0il & Gas

on strong, long-term relationships

with our customers, often spanning

several decades These enable us

to fully understand the industries

we serve and ensure that our Revenue
contribution

technology development strategy

meets and anticipates our

customers’ changing needs

Qil & Gas 1s a critical industry, meeting 60%
of the world's energy needs and providing
raw matenals used 10 manufacture products

The industries we serve: that are essential to our modern lives

. AVEVA has had a long and close relationship
Oll 8 G as with the industry Our technology continues

. POWGI’ to enable many of its most advanced

engineenng developrments, both onshore

and, mncreasingly, In the move 1o more

¢ M arine challenging offshore exploration where
AVEVA dominates the market

* Chemical & Pharm ical

aceutic The econormics of the Cil & Gas industry
* are complicated and subject to short-term
M Nl ng & M tnera |S PrOCGSS| ng fluctuations, but with the market expected
. P u | D 8 Pa per to continue its steady growth trend, AVEVA

1s In a good position to benefit from the
forecast huigh levels of investment in
exploration and preduction (ESP)

Market drivers

* Strong demand from emerging nations

* Tight supply/demand balance

* Trend toward higher oil prices

* No more easy oll

* Enormous backlog of engineenng projects
For more information on our markets g 9 9pio;

Record levels of E&P spendin
turn to pages 12-17 ¢ P g
pag {$600 billion per Barclays Capital)
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Global markets

With more than 45 offices
around the world, AVEVA
provides close support

to our global customers
across both mature and
developing markets

Power

Revenue
contribution

In 2011 the world's population reached
7 bilhon QOver the next 20 years, as living
standards nse, electncal consumption
will increase 50%, demanding a
sustained long-term investment

In power projects worldwide

While fossil fuels witl continue to play

a major role in electricity generation

nsing fuel costs and tighter environmental
legislation are attracting tnvestment

in both nuclear and alternative energy

AVEVA 15 already a preferred supplier
o the world’s nuclear industry and
15 well established in a wide range
of other power generation markets

Market drivers

* World energy consumption will grow
53% between 2008 and 2035

* Fossil fuels will continue to dnve
energy production

* A range of power options 1s required
to meet world demand

& Nuclear power will remain part of the
energy mix In many countres

Marine

Revenue
contribution

The manne industry creates the artenes
of the world economy providing the most
efficient method of global transportation
for commodities, fuel, raw materials

and products

Following a boom in shipbuilding

In recent years, the industry today 1s
relatively flat However sectors remain
buoyant and the over-supply of some
vessels creates a demand for refit
projects Strong opportunities are also
emerging fer complex spectalist (FPSO,
LNG FLNG) and naval vessels, where
AVEVA has a compelling proposition
AVEVA's manne solution provides the
greatest productvity advantage of any
preduct on the market, allowing our
customers to dversify effectively and
respond compeutively as the new-build
market picks up

Market drivers

e The manne industry will remain flat
far 2-3 years

s Shipping capacity surplus is stifing
new orders

& Speciahst sectors remain buoyant
{FPSO. LNG FLNG)

+ Continued opportunity in the naval sector

MAAIIAQ

Adjacent
markets

Revenue
contribution

The features which put AVEVA's
technologies at the heart of these key
industry sectors also deliver compelling
value 1n other capital iIndustries

Notable among these are the Chemical,
Pharmaceutical, Mining & Minerals
Processing, Pulp & Paper and specialist
manufactunng sectors Many of these

are concentrated in particular geographies
around the world such as Mining & Minerals
in South Amenca, South Africa and Australia
and Chemicals in Central Europe

AVEVA's global presence and local
industry expertise provides us with the
flexibility to respond to these attractive
business opportunities and extend the
reach of our products and services into
other related wndustnial sectors

AVEVA Group plc Annual report 2012 i?



Directors report

Our strategy

We continue to
meet our strategic
business goals

AVEVA has continued to invest
In the growth of its business
while maintaining an adjusted
profit margin of 31.8%

We have a clear strategic focus
on exploiting the significant
growth opportunities available
over the medium and long-term

To achieve these objectives,
AVEVA's development activities
are directed at four strategic
business goals which influence
everything, from business

line operations to resource
allocation and acquisitions

Our strategic business goals:

1 Target high growth
emerging markets

2 Develop strong relationships

3 Deliver technology innovation
and expand our design footprint

4 Accelerate Enterprise Solutions

/89 AVEVA Group plc Annual report 2012

Emerging economies provides a very
strong opportunity

High growth markets provide tremendous potential
and significant challenges, since each market is unique
These regions have different languages, cultures,
governments, industries and levels of business matunty
What works tn China may not work in Brazil or Indha,
so AVEVA must develop targeted strategies to meet
local market conditions

We constantly seek to improve our relationships
with key global customers

AVEVA has a very successful history of working with
project-focused EPC companies, and a large part of our
revenue 1s dertved from them Through a more strategic
partnership focus we aim to build even stronger
relationships that will encourage greater adoption
of our products and services

Continual investment in R&D maintains our
technology leadership and provides real value
to our customers

AVEVA has a strong reputation for innovation and
technology leadership that we work hard to maintain
We continue 10 invest In software development that
anticipates and exceeds the needs of our customers

This helps them to remain competitive and plan for the
future In a rapidiy changing global marketplace

The Enterprise Solutions market represents
a significant growth opportunity

The construction, commissioning and operation of process
plant faciities involve many phases and stakeholders AVEVA
understands this complex environment and has strategies
and solutions 1o enhance both project and asset performance
We are uniquely positioned to help EPCs and Owner Operators
create management strategies that begin with front-end
engineering and design and carry through decommissioning

Focus on critical activities within
plant operations

Major caprital assets can be operational for many decades
Expanding AVEVA's products and services to support the
operation of major capital assets will grow a stable recurring
revenue stream that will span the entire life of the facility

Working with Owner Operators 1s a new challenge,
but AVEVA s technology and industry experience 1s well
suited to develop this substanual market opportunity
and build operational reletionships that can span the
entire asset hiecycle



Meeting the unique needs of high growth markets

AVEVA has expanded its global presence in key growth markets, including
Brazil Russia, India and China and will continue to invest in talented local
employees who know our target industries and customers Offices
specialise iIn AVEVA applications and solutions that are most appropriate
to meet local customer needs This approach has delivered significant new
business and provided valuable feedback for the development prionities of
future products

Building strategic partnerships with global customers

AVEVA has formed a new sales team to better service our key accounts
They work closely across all levels of these organisations to improve our
support and prasence and develop more effective market strategies with
quantifiable business benefits for both parties Customer input 1s gained
through informal discussions as well as our more formal Executive Council
events and Reference Group meetings

Investing in technology for today and for the future

AVEVA sustains iis investment i technology and innovation across several
fronts We continue to innovate by increasing the functionality and productivity of
our existing software products and work to extend the feotpnnt of our technology
by developing complementary products and integrating strategic technology
acquisitions This strategy has been notably successful with the release of our
new Instrumeantation, electncal and laser scanning applhcations, which will expand
our presence across the existing customer base [n addition, we are continually
researching the implementation of game-changing technologies that will support
new business models and deliver increasingly higher levels of productivity

Building new partnerships through an expanded
solution offering

AVEVA has established a world-class Enterprise Resource Management
{ERM) offering for the Marnne and Plant sectors For Marine chents, our
solutions optimise the matenals management, planning, procurement and
production processes For the Plant market we have produced an ERM solution
that improves preject planning, matenals and construction management This
1s complemented by AVEVA's information engineenng and change management
capabilities that ensure information integrity to enhance project and asset performance
Qur solutions provide compeliing process opttmisation benefits while becoming
deeply imbedded within the working practices of key stakeholders

Creating new business opportunities to enhance both
project and asset performance

AVEVA has drawn together an experienced sales team dedicated to
developing strong partnerships with global Owner Operators, allowing us
to focus sales, support and product development activities on meeting these
long-term customer needs This market sector demands a consultative approach to
the sale and delivery of comprehensive, enterprise-lavel sclutions Enterprise
Solutions has been specifically structured to address the requirements of the
Owner Operator market

AVEVA Group plc Annual report 2012 f9
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Directors’ report

Chairman’s statement

Summary of review

AVEVA delivered record revenue
duning the year of £195.9 million,
an increase of 13% against the
prior year

Adjusted’ profit before tax
increased by 14% to £62.3 million
{2011 - £54.7 million)

We have continued to invest In
the business as planned whilst
achieving an adjusted’ profit
margin of 32% (2011 - 31%)

The Board 1s recommending

a final dividend of 17.0 pence
{2011 - 14.89 pence}, which I1s
an increase of 14% on 2010/11

710 AVEVA Group plc Annual report 2012

Nick Prest (BE, Chairman

Overview

| am pleased to report another strong performance from AVEVA
in 201112, dunng which we continued to benefit from our
rmarket-leading global position in engineering design and
informaticn management sclutions for the Qil & Gas, Power
and Marine industries

In addition to delivering record results, we enhanced further cur
long-term potential through a Group reorganisation into twoe lines
of business and a restructuring of our operations in China These
changes, which were key to optimising AVEVA's market position,
are delivering the benefits we expected In our core Engineering
& Design Systems business we contuinued to deliver world-class
solutions to our well established customer base through our
global network of sales and support offices We also made

good progress in Enterpnse Solutions a market which offers
significant growth prospects, laying the foundations for further
financial progress in this business area aver the course of the
next financial year

Key financials

AVEVA delivered record revenue during the year of £195 9
million, an increase of 13% against the prior year This was
dnven by a good second half performance which produced
organic growth of 15% over the same penod in 2010/11
and 11% for the year

As a result of the increased revenue, we have seen a similar
growth in profits with adjusted prefit before tax increasing

by 14% to £62 3 million {2011 ~ £64 7 million) We have
continued to invest in the business as planned whilst achieving
an adjusted profit margin of 32% (2011 - 31%) Adjusted’ basic
earnings per share amounted to 63 81 pence, an Increase of
14% {2011 - 56 08 pence) Reported prefit before tax amounted
to £57 7 million (2011 — £43 8 milhon) and basic earnings per
share was 58 86 pence (2011 - 50 85 pence)

Operations and technology

At the start of the year we reorganised to focus on two

lines of business namely Engineerning & Design Systems

and Enterprise Solutions This was necessary 1n order to
focus better on developing therr respective business streams
The reorganisation has gone well and defivered the benefits
we expected with greater focus on the different product

and service portfolios and a more opportunity-dnven,

agite Research and Development function

In our core Engineening & Design Systems we saw a good
second half performance resulting in revenue for the year

of £172 5 million (2011 - £155 1 mullion), up 11% compared

to the prior year (and 10% excluding the impact of acquisitions)
This has been driven by increased renewals and new customer
wins from plant customers, particularly in Oil & Gas, whilst
Marine has remained subdued




Find out more
WWW aveva com/mvestors

We continue to make good progress in Enterpnise Solutions with
revenue increasing 24% to £23 5 million {2011 - £18 9 million),
despite us being unable to recognise a number of substantal
and complex wins in the second half, with the result that our order
backlog grew significantly to £12 7 million as at 31 March 2012
{2011 - £8 0 mullion) This momeéntum and a strong opportunity
pipehne puts us In a goed position as we enter 2012/13

During the year we saw a strong performance in EMEA which
grew revenue by 21% to £93 4 million (2011 - £76 9 millien) driven
by Central and Western Europe and Russia In Asia Pacific, as
anticipated, the restructuring in Chuna had an impact on the first
half but this business recovered well in the second half, resulting
in total Asia Pacific revenue of £64 4 million (2011 = £66 3 mullion),
a fall of 3% The outcome in the Amencas was agan driven by

an excellent performance in Brazil and an improved second half
performance from North Amenca The Americas revenue for the
year was £38 2 million up 24% on 2011/12

Pleasingly, and testifying io the continued strength of cur
customer relationships and installed base recurring revenue
increased during the year to 70% of total revenue (2011 ~ 67%])

During the year we continued to devetop our software product
portfelio to extend cur technology leadership position In both
lines of business As a result we invested £32 1 mullion in
Research and Development, an increase of 14% over the
prior year and representing 16% of total revenue (2011 - 16%)
The main areas of activity were in developing new products in
Engineering & Design Systems as well as continuing to extend
the functionality of AVEVA NET and the other products in the
Enterprise Solutions suite

Cash and dividend

AVEVA continues to maintain a strong Balance sheet and
remains highly cash generative We achieved a strong second
half perfermance in debtor collections resulting in net cash

of £178 0 miliion at 31 March 2012 (2011 - £153 2 million)

The Board 1s recommending a final dividend of 17 0 pence

{2011 - 14 89 pence} which 1s an increase of 14% on 2010/11
Combined with the interim dividend of 4 0 pence (2011 -3 36
pence) this gives a full year dividend of 21 0 pence {2011 -18 25
pence), an increase of 15% Subject to approval at the Annual
General Meeting, the final dvidend will be patd on 27 July 2012
te shareholders on the register on 22 June 2012

Acquisitions

In October 2011 we acquired LFM Software Limited for a total
consideration of £7 3 million The acquisition provides us with a
versatile software portfolio for the management of laser scanned
data and semi-automated production of intelligent 30 models
together with a talented team of people expenenced in that domain

The acquistion has been successfully integrated with AVEVA
design, engineering and information management solutions to
make a powerful offering for the brownfield market

We are delighted with the recent acquisition of the Bocad group
of companies for £14 0 million which significantly strengthens
AVEVA's 3D structural detalling capabilities for plant, marine,
fabneation and AEC markets Bocad directly complements AVEVA's
world-class 30 design software PDMS and AVEVA Marine The
acquisition will create the industry’s only end-to-end offering for
engineenng design, as well as the addition of best-in-class structural
detailing functionality to the AVEVA product portfolio

The pipeling of acquisitien opportunities remains healthy and
AVEVA's strong cash position gives us flexibility to complerment
our organic growth through further acquisitions that enhance our
product offenngs and/or our penetration of key geographies and
end markets

People

AVEVA has a team of highly skilled and dedicated employees
who are the dniving force behind the success of the Group and
the excellent performance in 2011/12 On behalf of the Board

| would like to thank all our colleagues for their excellent
contribution and commitment

It was recently announced that | would step down as Chairman
after the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, to be succeeded
by Philip Alken It has been a privilege to Chair the AVEVA Beard
over the past six years, during which time the revenues of the
business have almost trebled and the profits more than quadrupled
Richard Longdon, the executive team and the entire AVEVA workforce
have done an outstanding job In tuming AVEVA's strong technology
platform into a global commercial success

Prospects

AVEVA has strong products strong underlying market dnivers,
global presence, long-term customer relationships and a capable
and dedicated tearmn of people which together mean that | am
confident that the Company will centyfue on a successful path

(i'\«

Nick Prest
Chawrman
28 May 2012
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Directors’ report

Chief Executive’s review

Richard Longdon, Chwef Executve Officer

Summary of review
Strong performance in Engineering
& Design Systems

Significant growth in Americas
{(+24%) and EMEA (+21%)

Enterprise Solutions strong
momentum

China successfully re-organised,
growth back on track

Strong financials - cash conversion
115%, recurring revenue 70%

Increased investment in new
technology and products

Focused M&A strategy

Customer case study:

Petrofac, Middle East

Not only is Petrofac one of AVEVA's largest
customers in the Middle East, it 1s also one
of the region’s most successful engineering
companies in the OIl & Gas industry.

Petrofac 1s a long-standing AVEVA customer having initially
implemented our PDMS 3D dasign software in 2000 and
since adopted a number of products from the AVEVA Plant
portfolio AVEVA's products and services are helping
Petrofac to improve the efficiency of its projects by providing
high guality design and deliverables that ensure the

colrect matenals are on site at the nght tme

/12 AVEVA Group plc Annual repoit 2012

Overview

AVEVA enjoyed another excellent year, delivening continuing
good growth in revenue, profit and cash Our strategy of
providing market-leading products globally with local customer
support has enabled us to benefit from the positive growth
trends in many of our iIndustry verticals

During the year AVEVA has continued to invest significantly

i our long-term strategy through product innovation, new
office openings in close proximity to our customers and a

major investment in and restructuring of our business in China
Decisions made and implemented at the start of the year seemed
like 1ough choices in the first half but persistence has shown
these to be the nght choices for the long-term hezlth and growth
strategy and they contnbuted positively in the second half

Last year we reorganised the Group into two linas of business
— Engineering & Design Systems and Enterprise Solutions —

to place greater emphasis on the differing business models,
sales cycles and skilis needed to optimise the position of each
business line in our target markets

Our Engineerning & Design Systems business performed very
strongly In addition to ongoing investment in Research and
Development to extend our technology lead we successfully
acguired the market-leading technology in laser data capture
and have integrated this into cur Engineening & Design Systems
portfoho which puts further distance between AVEVA and

aur cempetitors



Find out more
www aveva com/investors

Enterprise Solutions has developed positively with a number

of new customers added dunng the year as well as important
extension business within the growing installed base Especially
important have been those customers where AVEVA NET I1s now
mandated by the owner as a standard solution throughout the
supply chain on new capital projects We have enhanced our
delivery capability throughout the year both through organic
growth and by warking with partners We enter 2012/13 with

a significant order backlog

Customer driven solutions

Demand for AVEVA products in our end user markets of Ol & Gas
and Power was strong dunng the year 2011/12, while in Marine
as anticipated, it remained subdued We have seen an increase
tn project activity (n all areas of OIl & Gas with a notable number
of new ‘mega projects uvtiising both our design tools and AVEVA
NET for data integration We expect these trends to centinue
throughout the coming vear

Deep-water Oil & Gas has been a major driver for AVEVA revenue
globally This trend 15 set to continue over the longer term with
energy demand forecast to increase by between 30% to 40%

by 2030 Deep-water ng activity 1s at an all tme high with an
estimated 200 new deep-water fields expected to come on
stream over the next four years and deep-water Oil & Gas s
forecast to account for 12% of the world's od production by
2025 With deep-water fields pushing the industry to go farther
out and farther down than ever before comes added complexity

of design and engineerning This means an ncreasing amount of
engineenng hours 1s going into projects dunng the design and
engineenng phase in offshore OIl & Gas We expect increasing
demand for oif to drive further expansion of the QIl & Gas sector
dunng the coming year Global exploration and production
spending rose 16% in 2011 and 1s forecast to nse a further 10%
In 2012 EPCs also had a good year with their backlog exceeding
the all time high in 2008, another trend we expect to continue
(Sources EIA, Schlumberger, Datamonitor, Douglas Westwood
Barclays Capital)

Power 15 a long cycle industry in which AVEVA has a broad
spread of customers across all regions AVEVA 15 involved in all
types of conventional power generation which has made up the
bulk of our power business to date With the hesitancy in Europe
to commit to new-build nuclear programmes, the only viable
alternative to meet short-term demand 1s for more gas-fired
power stations In China, a sirmilar demand for short-term
increases In power will be filled largely by coal burning facihities
AVEVA 1s well positioned globally across a broad spread of
power station manufacturers to benefit from the growth in
conventionally fuelled power stations In the nuclear power
industry we are also witnessing the same trend of increased
complexity and a drnive for safer designs and greater automation
This trend benefits AVEVA not only through increased numbers
of design licences used by customers but alse by highhghting
the advantages avallable from the use of data management
systems hke AVEVA NET The focus for AVEVA In nuclear

“Petrofac 1s a great example of a company that

started with a relatively small deployment of
AVEVA software and has dramatically expanded
its use of our technology over time. Today it 1s
able to take full advantage of our Integrated
Engineering & Design approach that allows
many different disciphnes to work very efficiently
together throughout a design and construction
project, reducing costly rework and compressing
project schedules ”

Dave Wheeldon, (TO and Head of Engineering
& Design Systems

AVEVA Group pi¢ Annual report 2012 /13

MalAB) SSBULSNY



Directors report

Chief Executive’s review continued

“"AVEVA has continued to invest significantly in our
long-term strategy through product innovation,
new office openings in close proximity to our
customers and a major investment and restructuring

of our business in China.”

Customer driven solutions continued

new-build 1s firmly n Ching, India and Russia where 56% of the
552 proposed or planned new builds will be located by 2030
{Source World Nuclear Association)

Sales of the Mars product, acquired in 2010/11, to Marine
customers have been strong and our strategy of selling this
product outside the Marnne customer base i1s progressing well
Whilst we have made some large scale sales of design tools
to Marine customers In Korea we expect the Marnne market
to remain depressed for at least another two years

Mining was an imporiant emerging sector for AVEVA during the
year and a very solid pipeline 1s bullding for future years In order
to maximise the potential of the mining sector we have formed
a Mining Centre of Excellence {(CoE) in Chile This 1s AVEVA's first
office in Chile and 1s part of our expansion plans for the Latin
American regton The concept of forming CoEs has worked well
for us over recent years with our first being opened almost ten
years ago in Guangzhou, China, t¢ serve the Power industry
Following this we opened our Manne CoE in Busan Korea,
which has become a major development locatton for core
product as well as customer-driven add on functionality

Market summary

Global presence and being close to the customer 1s one of the
core strengths of AVEVA As noted above, dunng the year we
opened the CoE in Chile as well as an office in North Carolina,
USA to develop further our offering in the North American power
market In Europe we opened offices in Wroclaw, Poland, where
we acquired the assets of a distnbutor, and in Helsinki, Finiand
again to maximise opportunitres in the power generation business

“SETAL really understands that the heart of its
business is the engineering information that

EMEA and Americas were the standout performers achieving
respectively 21% and 24% growth in the year Within Amencas,
North America had a flat first half but strong growth in the
second half whereas Latin America performed well throughout
the year Despite Korea performing very strongly as anticipated
Asia Pacific slowed In the first half due to the restructurning in
China which then recovered in the second half to generate

a good perforrmance for the year as a whole

We continued to invest significantly in expansion across the
BBIC countries with our prmary focus to date being on China,
Russia and Brazil In 2012/13 our focus will also be on major
expansion In India AVEVA already has a large installed base

in India but these are, for the most part, high value engineenng
centres of our European and Amerncan customers Between
our outscurce partner and our operations we have atlmost 300
development and engineenng staff in our offices in Mumbai
and Hyderabad We intend to build on this to increase our
penetration of Indian companies

China has delivered strong revenue growth for AVEVA over
recent years, initially with the major inrcads we made 1nto the
Power business and more recently via a very dominant position
in the Manne sector Whilst the revenue stream has been strong
the structure of our business in China did not fit the usual AVEVA
model in that we had two separate orgamisations selling into the
Marine and Power industries We took the decision to merge
the two teams into one, under new management, with the
anticipation that we would expenence some staff turnover as a
result and there was significant disruption to the sales force in
China early in the year We also decided to form a wholly owned
Chinese subsidiary which was completed in the second half

flows through the projects, as much as the software
applications used to create that information. By
organising its information in the form of a Digital
Information Hub 1ts implementation of AVEVA NET
demonstrates just how powerful an information-centric
strategy can be. SETAL has integrated all of

its information relevant to major engineering

and design disciplines within AVEVA NET,
allowing it to monitor the heaith of its

engineenng data online and measure the
improvement in its project operations.”

Derek Middlemas, C00 and Head of
Enterprise Solutions
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and 1s now operational The new, reinvigorated organisation has
started to perform strongly 1n the second half We now have a
well-structured well managed and integrated business in China
which we are confident will prowvide a solid platform for growth
in the future

Engineering & Design Systems

Our Engineerning & Design Systems line of business performed
well throughout the year Our investment 1n new techneology has
continued with several new products iaunched during the year
and more significant product releases in 2012/13

In addition to 1ssuing major revisions to almast all products

in the AVEVA portioho during the year we launched three new
products, AVEVA Engineenng, AVEVA Electrical and AVEVA Laser
Modeller Market feedback and sales figures show that these
new products have propelled AVEVA intc a technology lead and
we now Intend to translate this strong preduct lead into sohd
market share gains AVEVA has an unrivalled set of products
which can be sold as standalone solutions or bundled with
integrated data transfer between applications

AVEVA has always recognised the need of 1ts customers to
progress continually to new technology and has provided a
platform which has enabled the migration of data from one
generation of product to another Over the coming year AVEVA
will be rolling out a senes of new and exciting iInnovations which
it has been developing and tnialhing with customers We expect
this new technology to herald a new era of innovation across
the design process

Asia Pacific

£64.4m
-3%

2011: £66.3m

Europe, Middle East and Africa

£93.3m

+21%

2011: £76.9m

The Americas

£38.2m

+24%

2011: £30.8m

Customer case study:

SETAL, Latin America

AVEVA NET and AVEVA Plant are integrated at
SETAL to improve the overall efficiency of its
projects through improved information access

and sharing.

The Brazihan market demands innovation to sustain its rapid growth
and SETAL has taken on this challenge with the help of AVEVA NET
Historically, its project workflow required the transfer of information
in large batches a ume-consuming process that frequently resulted
in delivery of out-of-date information The deployment of AVEVA NET

together with other AVEVA Plant products now allows the project

teams to work in real time dynamically linking engineernng and

construction data to make accurate and tmely decisions
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Drrectors’ report

Chief Executive’s review continued

“Our heritage of providing world-class technology

supported by the best people close to the customer

is one of our core values.”

Enterprise Solutions

Seperating out Enterpnse Solutions at the stant of the year has
given more focus to the development of this business We made
good progress marketing the entire solutions portfolio to both
existing customers and into the major Owner Operators During
the year we signed a number of new customers and expanded
further into many of our installed bases The strategy of using

a dedicated business development team to get close to the
customer before deploying the sales team 1s working well and
has enabled AVEVA to improve penetration into new customers
As we enter the new business year we have taken the further
step of dedicating sales resources solely to sell into the major
Owner Operators We now have projects running with several
of the o1l majors and have won engagements with customers

In many Industry segments including Chemical Mining

and Shipbullding

The service delivery model has been enhanced with additional
resources within AVEVA and by working with partners We plan
to continue both enhancing our Internal service delivery and
expanding our partner base In line with the global engagements
we are winning We enter the year with a backlog §3% higher
than last year, which can be delivered from our existing
resources and partners

Acquisition case study:

LFM Software

Organisation and people

Innovation 1s the ifeblood of AVEVA and with this in mind the
quality of its peaple 1s a major part of the Group's success, both
in the continual progression of its world-class products and s
ability to Innovate, create and introduce new technology in tune
with the demands of customers Dunng recent years AVEVA has
invested heavily in human resources, introduced programmes to
develop existing staff and provided leadership development for
future senior staff

During the last year permanent staff numbers tncreased by 13%
but turnover remained low In addition we increased the number
of contract staff we use, particularly in India, Russia and Poland
We entered the year having announced that we would form two
lines of business as pan of our longer-term growth strategy, this
meant a significant number of staff having a new line manager
working in a new team or @ new role We have been very pleased
with the way everyone adapted and embraced this change and
allowed the business to continue to grow even during such a
major change My thanks go to the AVEVA team for the efforts
they have put in dunng the year to both achieve near term targets
and help position the Group for another phase of growth We also
welcome LFM Software Limited’s employees based in Manchester
UK, who have already integrated well into the AVEVA team

In October of 2011 AVEVA announced its acquisition
of the LFM Software business from Z+F GmbH The
acquisition allows AVEVA to extend its product portfolio
to include the market-leading product suite for managing
laser data in the process and marine industries.

AVEVA and LFM Software provide a powerful laser scanning software
suite that allows users to iImport accurate and detalled 3D survey
data from all the leading scanner hardware vendors This enables
users io visualise and manage existing as built assets within AVEVA
NET or to create intelligent 3D models inside AVEVA PDMS The
AVEVA |aser scanning solutions are delivering a step-change in the

efficiency of capturing as-built, brownfield assets for both revamp
and long-term operational management
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During the year we introduced the AVEVA Leadership Programme
{ALP) Selection was nigorous and each ALP member has a mentor,
ndividual goals and development programmes ALP members have
regular performance reviews in order to discuss therr progress
Some have the opportumty of broadening ther expernience by
relocating and taking on roles outside of therr normal doman

The AVEVA graduate programme has been broadened further
globally and our challenge has been to attract the very best talent
into the Group We have been very pleased with the qualhty of
our graduate Intake over the last two years, which reflects

the investment we have made in this area

Outlook

The AVEVA strategy Is to leverage the core strengths of our
business in order 10 maximise sustainable growth Qur heritage
of providing world-class technology supported by the best
people close to the customer 1s one of our core values Keeping
our focus on the industries we understand combined with our
solid management team and financial strength have been key
1o growing the business even during a penod of severe global
economic uncertainty and slowing demand in cne of our

key industnies

During 2011/12 we continued to invest in products and services to
satisfy the more immediate needs of customers as well as investing
1n Innovative new products to enhance the portfolio As a result,
we are well placed to build upon our market leadership position
by providing unnvalled engineenng design and information
management solutions to our global blue chip customer base

The strong close to last year has put AVEVA n a very good
position to deliver against our strategy and to continue our
focused investment to expand the business in all areas

We expect growth in the Oil & Gas industry 10 continue

apace along with our expanding presence in Mining Power 1s set
to provide a solid base of customers continuing to prepare for
the growth in Nuclear whilst Marnine 1s expected to remain slow
Geographically, we expect a continued strong performance in
Latin Amenca a return to strang growth in Chuna following the
reorganisation and we are continuing 1o INnvest In developing

a much larger organisation in India Against this backdrop

we are confident about the prospects for 2012/13

Richard Longdon
Chef Executive Of ficer
28 May 2012

*Adjusted profit before tax 15 siated before amorusaton of intangibles {excluding other software) share-based payments adjustments 10 goodwill the gaindloss
on the fair value of forward foreign currency contracts and exceptional terns Adjusted basic earnungs per share 1s alsc adjusted for the 1ax effect of these items

“The acquisition of LFM software was a logical
step 1n our long-standing Z+F relationship.
We have been engaged in joint development
projects for a number of years and are now
able to realise even greater levels of integration
between our solutions The new AVEVA and
LFM Software laser scanning solutions are very
complementary to our existing products and
offer tremendous incremental value to our
customers. We will continue to explore other
such acquisitions to enable game-changing
business benefits for our customers and
support our strategic growth plans ”

Mat Truche-Gordon, Executive Vice President
Business Strateqy and Marketing
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Dwectors report

Finance review

Summary of review

in 2011/12, AVEVA continued to

grow strongly with total revenue

of £195 9 million, a record level for the
Group and an increase of 13% over
the previous financial year

Revenue from Engineering & Design
Systems grew by 11% to £172.5 million
(2011 - £155.1 milhon). Revenue from
Enterprise Solutions grew by 24% to
£23.5 milion compared to £18.9 million
in 2010/11

Adjusted” basic earmings per share
increased 14% to 63.81 pence
(2011 - 56.08 pence)

Cash and treasury deposits increased
by £25 8 million to £179.0 miliion
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James Kidd, Finance Drector

Revenue

In 2011/12, AVEVA continued to grow strongly with total revenue
of £185 8 mullion, a record level for the Group and an increase of
13% over the previous financial year Recurring revenue increased
by 18% to £137 9 milliocn and represented 70% of total revenue
Overall foreign currency rates had a negligible impact on Group
revenue but did have an impact on Amerncas and EMEA as

noted helow

The acquired LFM Software business contributed revenue
of £1 3 million since becoming part of the AVEVA Group
in October 2011

Revenue by segment

From the start of the 2011/12 financ:al year, the Group now
operates under two lines of business, Engineenng & Design
Systems and Enterprise Soluttons, and the segmental
disclosures now reflect the new structure

Revenue from Engineering & Design Systems grew by 11%
to £172 5 million {2011 - £155 1 million} driven predominantly
by high customer activity in the Qil & Gas industry

The recurring revenue base for Engineering & Design Systems
continues to grow strongly up £21 3 milhon {20%) to £129 9 million
We continued to see the strongest demand for rental licences and
revenue from these increased by 30% to £86 9 million, which reflects
the engineenng customers’ continuing general preference for the
flexibihty offered by the rental model Revenue from initial licence
fees in particular was adversely impacted by the reorganisation of
our business in China in the first half Overall, Engineerng & Design
Systems’ initial licence fee revenue was down 12% on the prior year

Revenue from Enterprise Solutions grew by 24% to £23 5 mullion
compared to £18 @million in 2010/11 The 2011/12 year included
the benefit from having a full year’s worth of revenue from the ADB
and Logimatic businesses acquired in 2010 After adjustment for
the impact of these acquisitions revenue grew by approximately
14% The growth in Enterpnse Solutions was driven by intial
licence fees and services for new contracts won dunng the year for
AVEVA NET and MARS, together with a growing profile of ongoing
services work and annual fees for existing projects Most of the
growth came from Oif & Gas customers Revenue from rental
licences dechned from the prior year level by £1 4 million as

a result of the uming of rental hcence renewals

Fer Enterprise Solutions we alse monitor Revenue backlog,
which we define to includs all contracted Enterpnse Solutions
revenue {Including software licences and services) that has not
yet been recegnised but which s expected 10 be recognised in
the next twelve months Revenue backlog also includes twelve
months of annual fees In the second half of 2011/12, we won
a number of new Enterpnse Solutions customers and achieved
further expansion within existing accounts A number of
substantial and complex wins have not been recognised

in the year which has meant that the revenue backlog has
grown by 58% to £12 7 milhon compared to £8 0 mullion

at 31 March 2011




Find out more
www aveva com/investors

Key Performance Indicators

The Group's key financial and non-financial performance indicators are total revenue, recurring
revenue, Enterprise Solutions revenue backlog, segment profit contribution, adjusted” profit before
tax, headcount, adjusted’ earnings per share and cash conversion ratio, The financial results for the
year ended 31 March 2012 are summarised below. These are discussed as part of the review below:

2012 2011

£000 £000 % changa
Revenue
Recurrning revenue 137,890 117,189 18%
Initial licence fees 32,290 40,960 (9%)
Services 20,755 15,829 3%
Total revenue 195,935 173,988 13%
Cost of sales {16,066} {18,765) {14%)
Gross profit 179,869 155,223 16%
Total operating expenses {123,370) {106,063) 16%
Profit from operations 56,499 49,160 15%
Adjusted’ operating margin 32% 31%
Net bank interest 1443 1151 26%
Net interest on pension scheme {211} {516) (59%])
Adjusted’ profit before tax 62,276 54,720 14%
Profit before tax 57,737 49,795 16%
Income tax expense {17 769} {15 303) 16%
Profit after tax 39,968 34,492 16%
Earnings per share {pence)
—basic 58 B6p 50 85p 16%
- diluted 5873p 50 56p 16%
—adjusted basic 63 81p 56 08p 14%
—adjusted diluted 63 66p 55 76p 14%

*Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted earnings per share are calculated before amorusation of intangible assets (excluding other software) share-based
payments gainfloss on fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and exceptional items In addition adjusted earmings per share also include the tax

effects of these adjustments

Revenue by geography and end user markets

The EMEA region performed strongly during 2011/12 with revenue
up 21% to £93 4 million although this included a £0 6 million
benefit from the stronger Euro On a constant currency basis
and after adjustuing for the Enterprise Solutions acquisitions
made in 2010/11, revenue for the EMEA region increased by
18% Performance was particularly strong in Russia and Central
Europe with most of the growth coming through rental icences
EMEA also benefited from the increased Enterpnse Solutions
revenue, particularly from services on existing projects

Revenue from Asia Pacific was down 3% compared to the
previous year, primanly due to disruption as a result of the
reorganisation in China The performance of our restructured
China business continued to strengthen in the second half of
the year and generated some notable customer wins

We are optimistic that our strong organisational foundations and
promusing oppoertunity pipeline will drive a much improved
performance from China in 2012/13 Elsewhere in Asia we saw a
strong performance in South Kerea with a notable customer win
SungDong Shipbuilding & Manne Engineerng Co Limited licensing
AVEVA Manne for use In offshore projects The other smaller
sub-regions were relatively flat compared to 2010/11 with the
manne business remaining stable

In Amencas, revenue grew by 24% to £38 2 mullion {2011 —

£30 8 million} but grew by 27% on a constant currency basis

as Americas benefited from a weaker US Dollar during the period
by approximately £1 & milien Latin America contmued to perform
very strongly with Braz! the main drniver behind the performance

In North America competitive condiions remained tough but we
chd see a stronger demand for our design tools m the second half of
the year with a number of EPC customers placing additional orders
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Directors’ report

Finance review continued

"Recurring revenue increased by 18% to £137.9 million
and represented 70% of total revenue.”

Revenue continued

Revenue by geography and end user markets continued
Total revenus from our end user markets was in line with
previous penods with Ol & Gas accounting for approximately
45%, Marine 25%, Power 15% and Other {consisting of Mining,
Petrochemical, Chemical Pharmaceutical and Paper and Pulp),
15% Qul & Gas continued to be the mamn dnver behind the
growth duning the year with many of our engineering contractor
customers continuing to expenence strong demand Marine
remained stable with annual and rental fees being renewed

but with Iimited growth of new design seats Some of the larger
yards in Asia have purchased plant icences for the design of
offshore Cil & Gas projects Overall, revenue from Power also
remained relatively stable with customers continuing to renew
their icences and a reasonable level of initial hcence sales

The revenue of the Group 18 predominantly in foreign currency,
with approximately 35% mn US Dollar and 25% in Eure However
for 2011/12, total revenue was only minimally impacted by
exchange rate movements In these and other foreign curtencies

Cost of sales and operating expenses

Included within operating costs for Engineenng & Design
Systems and Enterpnse Solutions are all directly attnbutable
costs such as Research and Development, product strategy,
line management, service delivery and implementation costs
technical staff and business development The Group has a
direct sales force that sells the product and service portfolios
for both hnes of business and therefore these cosis are noy
allocated to either line of business In addition, shared support
functions such as finance, human resources information
technology and facilities and certain common Research

and Development costs are also not allocated

Ravenue {Em)

£195.9m
+13%
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Engineenng & Design System s operating costs remained In

line with the prior year Enterprise Solutions operating costs
increased £3 1 millien {12%) 10 £27 9 milhon Most of the
increase was due to the annuahsed impact of the investments
made In AVEVA NET 1in 2010/11 and having a full twelve months’
worth of costs from the acquisitions in 2010/11 In additton we
made some further investments in the first half of the year in
business development siaff and service delivery staff

Shared selling and distribution expenses increased by 14% to
£46 7 millien {2011 — £41 0 million} partly due to salary increases
increase in sates headcount and further geographic expansion
such as the opening of new offices in Colombia, Poland and China

Other shared operating expenses increased by £5 8 million or
37% to £21 3 million {2011 — £15 5 mullion) because of increased
bonus payments, increased shared Research & Development
costs and foreign exchange losses

Engineering & Design Systems had a segment contribution of
£133 4 million for the year, up 15% on the pnor year Enterpnse
Solutions had a segment loss of £4 4 milhon, an improvement
of £1 8 million on 2010/11

The adjusted operating margin remained broadly similar to the
pnor year at 31 8% (2010/11 — 31 4%) or 29 5% (2010/11 — 28 6%}
on a statutory basis

Headcount

Total headcount at 31 March 2012 amounted to 1,055 {2011 —
972}, a net increase of 83 staff (including 16 employees frem
the acquisition of LFM Software Limited) The average headcount
duning the year was 1,053 {2011 - 902} of which 347 were in
research, development and product support (2011 - 248)

515 1n sales, marketing and customer support (2011 — 475)

and 181 1n admmstration (2011 - 179)

Recurring revenue (Em)

£137.9m
+18%
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The increase in the average headcount in research, development
and product support was due to continuing investment and
development of new products together with the impact of the
acquisition of LFM Software Limited

Total staff costs for the year were £81 8 million compared
with £72 5 millror in 2010/11, an increase of 12 8% due to the
increased headcount and inflation related szlary increases

Finance revenue and finance costs

Finance revenue represents bank interest recevable on cash
and cash equivalents of £1 5 million {2011 - £1 2 mullion) and
the expected return on the UK defined benefit pension plan
of £2 5 muillion {2011 - £2 4 millon) Finance costs principally
relate to the interest charge on the pension scheme habilities
of £2 7 million {2011 - £2 @ million)

Adjusted” profit before tax

On the face of the Income statement, we present adjusted profit
before tax which 1s a performance measure that 1s not defined
by GAAP but which the Directors believe provides a rehable and
consisient measure of the Group s underlying performance

Adjusted profit before tax I1s stated betore amortisation of
intangibles (excluding other software), share-based payments
gains or losses on the fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts and exceptional items

The exclusion of these items resulted in adjusted profit before
tax for the year of £62 3 million (2011 - £54 7 million) Reporied
profit before tax for the year was £57 7 million compared to
£49 8 mulhon 1n 2010/11

Adjusted* basic earnings per share (p}

63.81p
+14%
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Similarly, in presenting an adjusted measure of earnings per share
we exclude the same items together with their related tax effects

Taxation

The Group's effective tax rate for the year was 30 8% compared
tc 30 7% in 2010/11 The main reasons for the effecuve rate
being higher than the UK standard rate of tax applicable durning
the 2011/12 year were irrecoverable withholding tax suffered

In Asia and expenses not deductibie for tax purposes

The Group has tax losses of £0 8 milon {2011 — £2 2 million}
which relate 1o overseas subsidianes for which a deferred
tax asset of £0 2 million {2011 - £nil) has been recogrised
The losses can be carned forward indefirntely

The UK government has substantively enacted a 2% reduction in
the masin rate of corporation tax from 26% to 24% effective from
1 April 2012 and has further proposed reducing the UK rate by

a further 1% per annum to 22% by 1 Apnl 2014 These changes
had no matenal impact on the tax charge of 2011/12 but the
Group expects to benefit from these reductions in future perods
as future UK profits are earned and subject to the lower rates

of corporation tax

Average monthly number of employees

1,053
+17%
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Directors’ report

Finance review continued

"Cash conversion, measured by cash generated from
operating activities before tax as a percentage of
profit from operations, was 115% compared to 91%

in 2010/11.”

Earnings per share and dividends

Basic earnings per share were 58 86 pence (2011 -50 85
pence} and diluted earnings per share were 58 73 pence
{2011 - B0 56 pence)

Adjusted’ basic earnings per share increased 13% to 63 81 pence
{2011 — 56 08 pence} Diluted adjusted” earnings per share on the
same basis increased 14% to 63 66 pence {2011 - 55 76 pence)
The Directors believe that adjusted earnings per share provides a
more representative presentation of the underlying performance
of the business

The Board of Directors recommends payment of a final dividend
of 17 0 pence {2011 - 14 89 pence) which together with the
intenm dividend of 4 0 pence {2010 ~ 3 36 pence), gives a total
dividend for 2011/12 of 21 0 pence (2011 - 18 25 pence), a 15%
increase over 2013/11 Subject to approval at the Annual General
Meeting the final dividend will be paid on 27 July 2012 to
sharehclders on the register on 22 June 2012

Balance sheet and cash flows

AVEVA's Balance sheet continued to strengthen dunng the year
and at 31 March 2012 net assets were £221 § millon compared
to net assets of £202 4 million at 31 March 2011

Cash generated from operating activities before tax in the
penod amounted to a record £64 7 million {2011 — £44 7 mulhion}
Cash conversion, measured by cash generated from operating
activittes before tax as a percentage of profit from operations,
was 115% compared to 91% in 2013/11 which continues to
reflect the robust quahty of earnings but also a real improvement
in working capital management and cash collection Following

a strong trading performance In the final gquarter of the financial

Adjusted* profit before tax (Em)

£62.3m
+14%
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year, trade recewables were £63 7 million at the year end
{£68 4 million at 31 March 2011) and consequently there
remains a strong opportunity for strong cash generation
In the first half of the new financial year

In total, cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits
increased by £25 8 million to £179 0 milon This increase

1s stated after the impact of the acquisition of LFM Scftware
Limited (€5 7 miflion} and after total dividends paid dunng the
year of £12 8 million

The Group continued to focus closely on cash management during
the year, particularly on the collection of customer recevables and
repatniation of cash to the UK from overseas subsidianes Total cash
and deposits held in the UK at 31 March 2012 represented 79% of
the total cash and deposits balance (2011 —86%) The Group has
no debt

The acquisition of LFM Software Limited created additional
ntangible assets of £7 6 milion comprising goodwill of

£4 3 million, developed technelogy of £2 4 million and
customer relationships of £0 9 million

Current assets increased to £247 8 million from £227 4 million
principally due to the increase in cash, cash equivalents and
treasury deposits Current lhiabilimes totalled £76 9 milhion at

31 March 2012 and remained in ine with the previous year end
{2011 — £77 6 million} Included in current habilities s a deferred
revenue batance of £33 5 millien (2011 - £36 4 mitlion) and trade
payables and accruals of £26 1 milhon (2011 - £27 8 mulhon}

Non-current liabilities include retirement benefit obligations of
£9 9 million (2011 — £3 0 millien} This mainly relates to the UK
defined benefit pension scheme which had a deficit under IAS 19

Net cash and deposits [(Em)

£179.0m
+17%
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of £7 8 milhon at 31 March 2012 {2011 - £1 4 million} The increase
tn the total obligation was caused primarily by aciuanal losses of
£6 8 mitlion as a consequence of the application of a lower discount
rate to scheme labilities

Capital structure

The 1ssused share capital at 31 March 2012 was 68 0 million
{2011 - 87 9@ mullion) erdinary shares of 3 33 pence each

During the year the AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust

2008 purchased 33,484 ordinary shares in the Company in the
open market at an average price of £16 83 per share for total
consideration of £563,000 in order to satisfy awards made under
the AVEVA Group Management Bonus Deferred Share Scheme
2008 At 31 March 2012, the Trust owned 93,763 ordinary shares
in the Company

Treasury policy

The Group treasury policy aims to ensure that the capital held

1s not put a1 risk and the treasury function 1s managed under
policies and procedures approved by the Board These policies
are designed to reduce the financial nsk ansing from the Group's
normal trading activities, which primarly refate to credit interest
liquidity and cuirency risk The Group 1s, and expects to continue
to be, cash positive and currently holds net deposits The treasury
policy includes strict counter-party imits

The Group has a net funding requirement in Sterling due to
the majonty of Research and Development costs being incurred
in the UK and monies are held centrally in the UK in order to
fund these costs The overseas entities incur costs In their
loca funcuional currency which acts as a partial net hedge

Cash generated from operating activities (£m)

£47.8m
+55%
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Any cash flows which cannot be offset against each other result
In @ net currency exposure and where possible these exposures
are hedged These hedges aim to mitigate the nisk of exchange
rate movements causing earnings volatihty

James Kidd
Chef Financial Officer
28 May 2012

Research and Development expendsture (Em)

£32.1m
+14%

L]
o
[24]
Ry P
by 131
‘:"'! [=)]
& &
[}
2 52 5 8
= o [~
o~ &~ o~ o~ o
AVEVA Group plc Annual report 2012

8

MILAB] DILEWIOLIRY



Directors’ report

Risk management

AVEVA has continued to be successful during the year, but
as with any organisation there are a number of potential
risks and uncertainties that could have a material impact
on the Group’s long-term performance.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are as follows

Risk

Intellectual property

Dependency on key markets

/24
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Explanation and mitigation

The Group's success has been built upon the development of its substantial
intellectual property nghts and the future growth of the business requires the
continual progression of these tools The Group makes substantial investments

in Research and Development 1in enhancing existing products and introducing new
products and must effectively appraise its investment decisions and ensure that
we continue to provide class-leading solutions that meet the needs of our markets

There are many nisks 10 software development Our software products are complex
and may contain undetected errors, fallures, performance problems or defects
Furthermore If new products or enhancements are introduced which do not meet
customer requirements or competitors introduce a nval product which better
meets the requirements of the market this may have a matenal impact on the
long-term revenue and profit The business continually reviews the aignment

of the activities of our Research and Development teams to ensure that they
remain focused on areas that will meet the demands of our customers and deliver
appropriate financial returns This process 1s managed by daveloping a product
roadmap that identifies the schedule for new products and the enhancements
that will be made to successive versions of existing products

The protection of the Group's proprietary software products remains critical
and this 1s achieved by licensing nights to use the application, rather than selling
or licensing the computer sowrce code Infringement of the Group's intellectual
property rights by third parties or its failure to defend infringement claims from
thurd parues could cause damage to the business The Group uses third party
technology to encrypt, protect and restrict access to its products Access
limitations and nghts are also defined within the terms of the software licence
agreement The Group seeks to ensure that its intellectual property nghts

are appropriately protected by law and seeks to assert s proprietary nghts
wherever possible

AVEVA generates a substanual amount of its income from customers whose
main business 1s derived from capital projects driven predominantly by growth

in the O & Gas, Power and Marine markets World economic conditions may
adversely affect our financial performance Funding constraints may ceuse the
delay of major new projects and customers who operate in the Oil & Gas, Marine
and Power industrnies may reduce capital expenditure budgets further Future
success 1s dependent on growth and continued demand from within these
markets These industries are cyclical and subject to fluctuations in the price of oil
and general economic conditions Downturns could cause delays and reductions
In investment expenditure and reduced demand for our products and services




Risk

Enterprise Solutions

Competition

Identification and
successful integration
of acquisitions

International operations

Foreign exchange risk

Recruitment and
retention of employees

Explanation and mitigation

The continued investment in and development of the Group s Enterpnse Solutions
offenings 1s seen as significant to continuing the Group’s growth This s a relatively
new market with different charactenstics compared to our traditional Engineering
and Design business This brings different challenges and oppertunities for the
Group which, although we believe we are well pasiioned 1o manage and explog,
there remains a risk that our investment in this area does not produce the financial
returns as quickly as expected

AVEVA cperates in highly competitive markets that serve the Qil & Gas, Power and
Manne markets If we do not respond effectively we may lose market share and the
bustness could suffer In Engineenng & Design Systems, we believe that there are a
relatvely small number of significant competitors sening our markets However some
of these competitors could, In the future, pose a greater competitive threat, particularly
If they consolidate or form strategic or commercial relationships among themselves
orwath larger well capitalised compames In Enterprise Solutions, we often compete
against targer capitalised companies which could pose a greater competitive threat
because of therr financial capability and scale

Dunng the year, the Group successfully completed the acquisiuon of Z+F UK Limited
(now renamed LFM Software Limited) and expects to continue to review acquisition
targets as part of its strategy The integration of acquisitions involves a number of
unigue risks, including diversion of management's attention, faillure to retain key
personnel of the acquired business, fallure to realise the beneiits anticipated to result
from the acquistion and successful Integration of the acquired intellectual property

The Group operates in Conunental Europe, the Middle East, North Amenica,
South Amenca and Asia Pacific and must determine how best to utilise its
resources across these diverse markets Where necessary, the business must
adapt its market approach to best capitalise on local market opportunities,
particularly in the strategicaliy key growth economies

In addition the Group 1s required to comply with the local laws, regulations and
tax legislation 1n each of these junsdictions Significant changes in these laws

and regulations or fallure to comply with them could lead to additional hiabilities
and penalties The Group manages its overseas operations by employing locally
qualified personnel who are able to provide expertise in the appropnate language
and an understanding of local culture, custom and practice Dependence on local
management can increase the nsks of Group policy not being correctly appiied,
especially where diverse languages and cultures exist The Group endeavours ta
miugate these nisks through oversight by regional management in each of the three
major zones of the Group Asia Pacifi, EMEA and the Americas, as well as through
the use of local professtonal advisers

Exposure to foreign currency gains and losses can be matenal to the Group,

with approximately 80% of the Group's revenue denaminated in a foreign currency,
of which our twoe largest are US Dollar and Euro The Group enters into forward
foreign currency contracts to manage the currency risk where material The overseas
subsichanies trade In theirr own currencies, which also acts as a natural hedge against
currency movements

AVEVA's success has been built on the quality and reputation of its products and
services, which rely almost entirely on the quahty of the people developing and
delivenng them Managing this pool of highly skilled and motivated indwiduals
across all disciplines and geographies remains key to our ongoing success

The Group endeavouwrs to ensure that employees are motvated by their work
and there are regular appraisals, with staff encouraged to develop therr skills
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Directors report

Corporate responsibility

Introduction

The AVEVA Group operates both ethically and responsibly in
all areas of the business Our five AVEVA values of Trustworthy
Accessible Inspinng Innovative and Flexible are core to the
relationships we have with our employees and underpin how
we treat our customers, suppliers and partners

AVEVA strives 1o maintain a healthy, safe and productive

work envircnment This dedication 1s evident through an acray
of policies focused on social and ethueat behaviour, including the
AVEVA digrity at work policy which maintains zero tolerance for
bullying, discnimination and harassment by or 10 anyone that i1s
engaged with wark at AVEVA

We take prnide in being socially responsible and operating in
an ethical manner These objectives are realised through the
positive working relationships we build with partners across
all areas of our business operations including

« external stakeholders,
» Internal stakeholders,
« the environment and

« the community

External stakeholders

We seek to be honest and fair in our relationships with both
customers and suppliers Our suppliers are selected by an
evaluation based on vendor policies reputation and contractual
terms and condrtions

We have a policy not to offer, pay or accept bribes and, as such,
are committed to conducting our business with honesty and
integnty We expect all staff, suppliers and customers 1o share
these high standards of ethical behaviour and foster a culiure
of openness and accountability

We ensure transparency In our products services and costs
to show fairness and honesty within our working practices
Jo enhance our product offenng, the traimning and product
support teams provide a tugh level of customer support to
ensure they are using their AVEVA products as effectively
as possible, improving project and asset performance and
minimising operational nsk

The anti-piracy and compliance team are actively working

across the globe to address the issue of organisations illegally
using AVEVA software This is a problem that faces the entire
software industry and AVEVA 1s working hard to protect our
software by detecting and pursuing misuse where ever it occurs

Charitable giving

In the past year AVEVA has donated over
£50,000 to a range of local and global charities,
AVEVA continues to donate their foreign currency
small coinage to Oxfam and make considerable
donations to the Outward Bound Trust and
Macmillan Cancer Support We also encourage
employees to get involved with chanty
fundraising by matching their funds raised
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Those organisations that are found to be using AVEVA software
ilegally will always be given the opportunity to comply with our
licensing policies but ultimately we may need to take legal action

Internal stakeholders

AVEVA now has over 1 000 employees globally, of which over
600 are based outside the UK We recognise that our employees
are our most valuable asset and we ensure our corporate values
are embedded in how we treat our staff and how they treat each
other QOur processes to recruit, retain and motivate staff are
continually developed which s reflected in an employes
retention rate well above the industry norm at 92 5%

Our Organising for Growth project commenced 1n 2011/12
and has enabled AVEVA to improve Its internal practices and
project teams by utilising the benefits of a matrix structure
Our philosophy of continual progression commits AVEVA

to a constant review of our working practices and structure
in order to meet both business and employee needs

Commumcation

Strong communication with employees is key to our growth

and to creating an effective working envirenment In 2011/12
AVEVA created an internal communicattons team dedicated

to the mission of open and responsive communication to our
employees across the globe The internal communications team,
together with 40 regional champions for internal communications,
achieves this by providing channels and strategies for both bottom
up and top down communication

In the UK our employee forum, AVEVAVoice, provides employees
with the opportunity te discuss business related topics and
recelve direct feedback from the executive team and globally

we have an ‘Ask the Exec’ portal channel that allow all ermployees
10 engage directly with senior management

Our first global engagement survey was conducted in 2011/12
to gain employee feedback We had an excellent response rate
to the survey of 93% and results showed an engagement index
of 80, which gave AVEVA many reasons to celebrate and reinforced
our belief that AVEVA i1s an employer of choice

Traimng and development

Our extensive traiming and development programmes offer
opportunities for both professional and personal development
Our key programmes include

» Our graduate scheme offers a two-year developmental
programme i a technical or commercial setting, with four
six-monthly work rotations arcund the AVEVA business

Some of our charity events over the last year include Race
for Life for Cancer Research UK, the Dragon Boat Festival in
aid of East Anglia Children's Hospice and Chaniots of Fire for
the Rosie Materruty Hospital in Cambndge

Many individuals have taken part in charity runs for The Turbo
Trust, St Nicholas Hospice Care Parkinson s Disease Society
and the Amencan Cancer Society and AVEVA has also
supported employee activities such as a head shaving day for
Cancer Research, Winter Tough Guy 2012 for the NSPCC and
Childline and many employees took part in Movember to raise
money for Prostate Cancer




» The 'Grads & Stars' Programme opened up the graduate
scheme personal development workshops, which are
accredited by the Institute of Leadership & Management,
to all employees

« The Management Development Programme has been
designed for managers at all levels and demonstrates AVEVA's
belef in the importance and value of people management

« The Advanced Leadership Programme identifies, trains and
champions the leaders of the future

Through AVEVA's robust performance management process,
individual and business needs are assessed regularly and feed
into our evolving portfoho of training courses, which include
appraisal traiing stress management, recruitment training and a
wide range of personal development workshops To complement
our training and development programmes, and to help inspire
personal growth and encourage nternal opportunities, we have
introcluced a job level structure in 2011 for visibility of career paths

Benefits

AVEVA continually reviews 1ts reward and compensation
schemes and offers a comprehensive and valuable benefits
package to all employees which covers financial and non-inancial
rewards Financial rewards are competitive with salaries
benchmarked locally and globally, and bonus and incentrves
are assessed through a mix of organisaticnal and personal
performance targets, all of which are ahgned with the
Company's strategic development and the creation

of shareholder value

Non-financial rewards range from flexible working opportunities
to subsidised staff canteens The Group's employment policies
are also under continual review and are aimed at either meeting
or exceeding the local legislative requirements

Health and well-being 1s a key focus for AVEVA We have introduced
wellness programmes in some of our offices and this year we have
joined the Global Corporate Challenge to promote healthy living and
encourage teamwork

Environment

As a developer of scftware and having no manufacturing facilives,
AVEVA Is classed as a 'low impact environmental organisation
The majority of software sales are delivered electronically to our
customers further reducing package and transport miles

Particularly within the Ol & Gas industnes, AVEVA products
provide our customers with the infrastructure capabilities to
reduce the risk of environmental damage, thus enabling AVEVA
ta share our dedication of safety and concern for the environment
with our customers

As employees we make a concered effort to reduce travel in
order to minimise our carbaon footprint by continually improving
our video and web conferencing facilities for meetings and
training Our ELearmng system n particular enables us to deliver
training efficiently and effectively, on a global scale at a time that
1s convenient for colleagues

We also take an active interest in recyching by using a third
party 1o assist in the disposal of computer hardware in an
environmentally friendly manner and ensure daily recycling
at offices for paper, cardboard and plastic

Community

AVEVA 1s dedicated to the development and well-betng of its
global and local communities through educational partnerships
that improve the sustainability of the engineerning industry and
through charitable giving

Educational partnerships

To combat the skills shonages within the engineenng industry,
AVEVA actively supports the work of educational establishments
and government bodies around the world to narrow the skill

gap and to raise interest in engineenng disciplines The AVEVA
Academic Initiative ts a group-wide programme with several

key objectives

* work with universities to promote the use of AVEVA products
dunng under and post graduate projects by providing both
software and training support

« work with government agencies to re-skill engineers
for employment in other disciplines by providing free
training courses and

« work with engineerning bodies to encourage graduates
to pursue careers In engineering

AVEVA sees 11s Academic Initiative as a vital strategic investment
that will bring long-term benefits to the broader engineering
industry around the world In 2011/12 we provided support

to yust under 100 universities worldwade and have donated
engineering software {0 Initiatives aimed at re-skilling and
upgrading the skills of designers and engineers
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Directors’ report

Board of Directors

X
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Nick Prest CBE

(appointed 11 January 2006)

Chairman

Nick Prest joined the Board of AVEVA in January 2006 Following a spell at the Ministry
of Defence at the outset of hus career Nick joined Alvis, the defence contractor, in 1982,
becoming Chief Executive in 1988 and Chairman and Chief Executive in 1996 Nick left
Aivis following 1ts acquisition by BAE Systems in 2004 by which time the company
had become a leading international business in military land systems In addition to his
posttion at Alvis, Nick had a prominent role in defence industry representation, serving
as Chairman of the Defence Manufacturers’ Association and Vice Chairman of the
National Defence Industries Council In addition to being Chairman of AVEVA, Nick is also
Chairman of Cohort plc, the AIM quoted defence technical services group, and Chairman
of Shephard Group a privately owned med:a business Nick Prest will be retinng from
the Board {ollowing the next AGM in July 2012

Philip Aiken
(2ppointed 1 May 2012)

Non-Executive Director and Deputy Chairman

Philip Alken has 40 years’ expenence in industry and commerce having been from 1997
to 2006 Group President Energy of BHP Billiton Prior to that he held semor positions
with BTR plc (1995 to 1997} and BOC Group {1970 to 1995) Other roles have included
Senior Adwviser for Macquarie Capital Europe Chairman of the 2004 World Energy
Congress and serving on the Boards of the Governor of Guangdeng Internaticnal
Council, World Energy Council and Monash Mt Eliza Business Schoo! He s Chairman
of Robert Walters plc, Senior Independent Director of Kazakbymys ple and a Director

of National Gnd ple, Essar Energy plc and Miclyn Express Offshore

Richard Longdon
{appointed 16 August 1994)

Chief Executive

Richard Longdon recetved engineering training 1n the defence industry then gained
expernence In the project management of high value engineering projects He moved
Into sales and held a series of international sales and marketing positons He joined
AVEVA in 1984 and shortly afterwards was made Marketing Manager for the process
products |n.January 1992 he relocated to Frankfun where he was responsible for
setung up and running the Group s German office He returned to the UK as part of
the management buyout team in 1994, taking responsibility for the Group s worldwide
sales and marketing activities, before being appointed Managing Director in May 1899
He took over as Group Chief Executive in December 1999

James Kidd
(appownted 1 January 2011)

Chief Financial Officer

James Kidd 1s a Chartered Accountant and joined AVEVA 1n 2004 Prior to his appointment
to the Board James held several sentor finance roles within the Group and was Head of
Finance from 2006 He joined the Group at the time of the Tribon acquisition and played a
significant part in the completion of this transaction and the subsequent integration of the
acqurred business His responsibrhities have included investor relations, the development
of the Group's overseas subsidianes, standardisation of financial processes and procedures
as well as baing heavily mvotved in the Group s recent acquisitons Prior to joining AVEVA
James worked for both Arthur Andersen and Deloitte, serang technology chents in both
transactional and audit engagements




Jonathan Brooks

{appownted 12 July 2007)

Non-Executive Director

Jonathan Brooks joined AVEVA in July 2007 and has a broad range of financial, commercial and
international experence He currently holds a number of directorships with technology based
companies He s Chairman of Xyratex Limited, a Nasdagisted provider of enterprise class
data storage sub-systems and network technology, and 1s a Non-Executive Director and Chair
of the Audit Committee of IP Group PLC, which commerciahises intellectual property from
leading UK universities Between 1995 and 2002, he was Chief Financial Cfficer and a Director
of ARM Holdings plc where he was a key member of the team that developed ARM Holdings
to be a leader in its sector

Philip Dayer
(apponted 7 January 2008)

Non-Executive Director

Philip Dayer qualified as a Chartered Accountant and pursued a corporate finance
career in investment banking, specialising in advising UK listed companies He was
first appointed an Advisory Director in 1983 of Barclays Merchant Bank Limited and
since then has held the posiuon of Corporate Finance Director with a number of banks
He retired from Hoare Govett Limited in 2004 Philip was a financial consultant to
0JSC Rosneft OIl Company the Russian state-owned ol and gas company on thair
flotation in 2006 Philip 15 a Non-Executive Director of Kazmunaigas Exploration
Production JSC, The Parkmead Group plc, Hurricane Exploration ple Navigators
Underwnting Agency Limited and Chairman of IP PLUS plc

Hervé Couturier
(apponted 1 Apnil 2010)

Non-Executive Director

Hervé Couturier joined the AVEVA Board in Aprd 2010 He 1s Executive Vice President,
Product Group at Amadeus, the leader in airline reservation systems Since 2008, he was
Executive Vice President of SAP AG's Technology Group and Head of Research Me also
serves as a board member for SimCorp A/S, a public Danish software company, and has
held management positions at a number of IT companies including Business Objects,
the worldwide leader of business intelligence solutions, now part of SAP S1 Corporation,
a provider of software for financial and payment services, and XRT, a leading European
treasury management software company, now part of the Sage Group PLC Hervé holds
both an engineering degree and a Master of Science degree from the Ecole Centrale Paris
in France He began his career at IBM in 1982, where he held various engineening and
business positions untll 1997
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Directors report

Corporate governance statement

Nick Prest CBE, Chairman

Introduction

| am pleased to introduce the 2012 Corporate Governance statement. The Company
1s committed to the principles of Corporate Governance contained in the UK Corporate
Governance Code provided by the Financial Reporting Council and for which the Board
is accountable to shareholders. The Company has complied with the provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code throughout the year and to the date of this report.

Further explanation of how the principles have been applied 1s set out below and,
in connection with Directors’ remuneration, in the Remuneration Committee report

on pages 36 to 43.

Composition of the Board

Durning the year the Board comprised the Chairrman, three
Non-Executive Directors {(including the Senier Independent
Director) and two Executive Directers (being the Chief Executve
and Chuef Financial Officer)

As announced on 28 Apnl 2012 Nick Prest indicated that he wished
to step down from the Board at the next AGM in July 2012 With
effect from 1 May 2012 Philip Aiken has been appointed as Deputy
Chairman and, subject 1o election by shareholders, will succeed
Nick Prest as Chairman after the Annual General Meeting Further
detalls of the process for the appointment of Mr Aiken are
contained in the Nominations Commitiee report below

Brief biographical details of all Board members are set out on
pages 28 and 29 The membership of all Board Committees
15 set out on pages 34 and 35

Operation of the Board

The Chairman, along with the Executive Directors and Company
Secretary ensures that the Board functions effectively and has
established Board processes designed 1o maximise its perfarmance
and effectiveness Key aspects of these processes are

« The AVEVA Group Board meets regularly In combination with the
Board of AVEVA Solutions Limited the main ocperating company
in the Group which owns all of the Group's trading subsidianies
The AVEVA Solutions Limited Board includes as members the
CTO and Head of Engineering & Design and the COO and Head
of Enterpnise Solutions as well as all the members of the Group
Board This ensures that the AVEVA Group Board 1s well informed
on technical and market factors drving the Group's performance
as well as on financial outcomes

+ The Board met eleven times during the year These meetings,
together with any Committee meetings are generally held at
the Group's Head Office in Cambrnidge or in Londen and are
approximately one day in duration
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« The Board aims that once per year a Board meeting will be
held outside the UK at one of the Group s overseas offices
Dunng 2011/12, the September Board meeting was held in
Pans France

= Inaddition the Board holds a full day strategy meeting every
year which 1s generally held at an off-site location at which
Executive Directors and members of the senior management
team make presentations covering progress against current
strategy and objectives and ideas for future investment

+ The Board delegates the day to day responsibiiity for
managing the Group to the Executive Directors

+ To enable the Board to discharge its duties all Directors
recewe appropnate and timely information Briefing papers
are distnbuted by the Company Secretary to all Directors
usually four working days in advance of Board and
Committee meetings

« A monthly reporting pack containing management accounts
with commentary and reports from each Executive are
distributed to the Board cn a monthly basis

+«  Meetings were held between the Chairman and the
Non-Executive Directors during the year without the
Executives being present, to discuss appropnate matters
as necessary

» The Chairman ensures that the Directors take independent
professional advice where they judge 1t necessary to discharge
their responsibiities as Directors at the Group’s expense in the
appropnate circumstances All members of the Board have
access to the advice of the Company Secretary

+ Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors are
encouraged annually to undertake traiming 1n furtherance
of therr specific roles and general duties as a Director

The attendance of individual Oirectors at Board meetings and
Committee meetings dunng the year is set out In the table opposite




Find out more
www avava com/investors

Independence of Non-Executive Directors

and segregation of duties

The Board has considered the independence of the Chairman
and the Non-Executive Directors and beheves that all are
currently independent of management and free from any
matenal business or other relationships that could materally
interfere with the exercise of their Independent jJudgement
Their biographies on pages 28 and 22 demonstrate a range
of experience and sufficient calibre to bring the independent
judgement on issues of strategy, performance, resources and
standards of conduct which 1s wital to the Group

The rales of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are distinct

and the dwision of responsibility between these roles has been

clearly established set out in writing and agreed by the Board
The Chairman 1s responsible for the effectiveness of the Board
and ensuring that it meets its obligations and responsibilities
The Chief Executive Is responsible to the Board for the day to
day management of the business, leadership of the executive

team and execution of the Group s strategic and operating plans

Matters reserved for the Board

The Board 1s responsible to shareholders for the proper management

Balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors

Non-Executive
Directors

James Kidd Nick Prost

Chairman
fichard Lonpxdon Pilllp Dwymr

Hared Curpiar  Jnnatran Bmake

Length of tenure

of the Group There 1s a formal schedule of matters specifically 0-3 years
reserved for the Board's decision that covers key areas of the 3-6 years
Group s affairs, which include 6+ years
« overall responsibility for the strategy of the Group, Kdd  Rionard Lorgdon
« corporate governance,
» review of trading performance and forecasts, Hured Soutuniar Pilllp Deywr
s sk management,
e board membership, Niok rast  Jenatran Brecim
« communications with shareholders,
« approval of major transactions including mergers
and acquismons, and
« approval of the financial statements and annual operating
and capital expenditure budgets
Treasury Risk
Audit Remunesration Nerminations Management
Basard Committes Commitiee Committee Committee
maetngs meetings meetings meaungs meatings
Meetings held " 4 5 2 2
Meetings attended
Nick Prest 1" — 5 2 —
Jonathan Broocks 1 4 5 2 2
Philip Dayer " 4 5 — 2
Hervé Couturier 8 3 - _ _
Richard Longdon n - -— — —
James Kidd 11 — — — 2
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Directors report

Corporate governance statement continued

Group structure

The Executive Board

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Richard Longdon James Kidd
| I |
(Lomatendof | rgneirngs Ve ot VoSt i eenaent
Design Systems - Global Sales - Business Strategy - Human Resources
Derek Middlemas Dave Wheeldon Hans Van der Drift Mat Truche-Gordon Hilary Wright

Internal control and risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systern of
internal control and for monitoring its effectiveness However,
such a system 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate the
nsk of falure and by 1ts very nature can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against matenal misstaierment or loss

The Board has established a continuous process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant nsks the Group faces
The Board regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Group's
internal controls which have been in place from the start of
the year to the date of approval of this report, and believes

that it 15 1n accordance with the Turnbull Guidance

The key elements of the system of internal controls
currently include

« each member of the Executive Board has responsibihty for
specific aspects of the Group s operations They meet on a
regular basis and are responsible for the operational strategy,
reviewing operating results, identification and mitigation
of nsks and communication and application of the Group's
polictes and procedures Where appropriate matters are
reported to the Board,

« regular reports to the Board from the Executive Board on key
developments, financial performance and operational 1ssues
In the business

» operational and financial controls and procedures which
include authensation lumits for expenditure, sales contracts
and capital expenditure, signing authorities, IT application
controls, orgarisation structure Group polheies, segregation
of duties and reviews by management,
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« an annual budget process which is reviewed, monitored
and approved by the Board,

« regular meetings between the Executive Board, sales area
managers and product development managers to discuss
actual performance against forecast budget and prior years
The operating results are reported on a monthly basis to the
Board and compared to the budget and the latest forecast
as appropnate, and

» mamntenance of insurance cover t¢ insure all major rnisk areas
of the Group based on the scale of the nisk and availability
of the cover In the external market

The Board's monitenng covers all matenal controls, including
financial non-financial, operational and compliance controls and
nisk management It 1s based principally on reviewing reports
from management to consider whether significant nisks are
identified evaluated, managed and controlled and whether any
significant weaknesses are promptly remedied and indicate

a need for more extensive monitoring The Board pernodically
carries out visits to the Groug's subsidianies and receives
presentations on their operations

The Board has alsc performed a specific assessment for
the purpose of this annual report This involved reviewing
the reports from a nsk assessment workshop involving
the Executive Board and senior members of management
from Product Development, Sales and Finance/lLegal

The workshop was conducted in January 2012 and was
facilnated by a third party This assessment considered
all significant aspects of internal control necessary for
the Company to successfully carry out the key business
strategies of the Group The Audit Committee assists
the Board in discharging 1ts review responsibilines



Performance evaluation

The UK Corporate Governance Code requires that the Board
undentakes a formal annuat evaluation of its own performance and
that of its Committees and individual Directors and that at least
every three years this evaluation should be externally facilitated

The evaluation I1s designed to determine whether the Board
continues to be capable of providing the high level judgement
required and whether as a Board the Directors are informed and
up to date with the business and its goals and understand the
context within which 1t operates Following Nick Prest s decision
to step down as Chairman at the next AGM the Board conducted
a high level review of Its effectiveness as part of 1ts deliberations
on the ideal candidate specification for the new Chairman It was
agreed that it would conduct a more formal and detailed review
of board effectiveness in the 2013 financial year once the new
Chairman has been appointed

As part of the Board review process the performance of the
Chairman was assessed by the Seror Independent Director
following consultation with the other Non-Executive Directors

Indemnities to Directors

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association
Directors are granted an indemnity from the Company to the
extent permitted by law 1n respect of lrabtlittes incurred as a
result of the performance of their duties in their capacity as
Directars to the Company The indemnity would not provide
any coverage to the extent the Director 1s proven tc have acted
fraudulently or dishonestly The Company has maintamed
Directors and officers’ hability insurance cover throughout

the year

Policy on appointment and reappointment

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors

are required to retire and submit themsaelves for re-election

at least every three years by rotation and also following their
appomtment In additon, as in the prior year and in accordance
with Corporate Governance best practice, all of the remaining
Board members are offering themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting

QOn appointment, all Directars are asked to confum that they

have sufficient time to devote 1o the role which s confirmed
together with details of their duties in the letter of appomntment

All Directors undergo an induction as soon as practical following
therr appointment As part of the inductien process Directors are
provided with background inforrmation on the Group and attend the
Group's headquarters in Cambrnidge for meetings and presentations
from senior management in addition, where appropriate, mestings
are also arranged with the Group's advisers

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term of three years

The terms and conditions of appointment of Non-Executive Directors
are available for inspecton at the Company s registered office durng
nermal business hours and will be available for Inspection on the day
of the forthcorming Annual General Meeting

Dialogue with institutional shareholders

Commurnication with shareholders 1s given high priority by the
Board The Chief Executive and the Chuef Financial Officer have
meetings with representatives of institutional shareholders and hold
analyst briefings at least twice a year, following the announcement
of the intenm and full year resulis, but also at other times durning
the year as necessary Senicr managers from Product Development,
Business Strategy and Finance also attended analyst and
shareholder meetings during the year All of these meetings seek to
build a mutual understanding of objectives with major shareholders
by discussing long-term strategy and obtaining feedback The Board
also receives formal feedback from analysts and institutional
sharehclders through the Company's public relations adviser and
financial advisers The Board is appraised of discussions with major
shareholders to ensure that Executive and Non-Executive Directors
consider any matter raised by shareholders and to enable all
Directors to understand shareholder views In addition duning 2011
the Group consulted with shareholders in respect of proposals for
the remuneration of Executive Directors The Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director, Philip Dayer 1s available to shareholders

if they have concerns which contact through the normal channels
of Chairman, Chief Executive or Chief Financial Officer has falled

to resolve or if such contact would be inappropnate The Chairman,
Senior Independent and Non-Executive Directors are avallable for
dialogue wath shareholders at any time and attend {together with
the other members of the Board) the Annual General Meeting,

but are not routinely involved tn investor relations or shareholder
communicattons Corporate informaton is also avallable on the
Company s website, www aveva com

Constructive use of the Annual General Meeting

The Board seeks to use the Annual General Meeting to communicate
with investors and all shareholders are encouraged to participate The
Charmen of the Audit, Remuneration, Norminations and the Treasury
Risk Management Committees will be available at the Annual General
Meeting to answer any questions

Share capital structure
Further information on the share capital structure of the
Company is contained on pages 44 and 45
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Directors’ report

Corporate governance statement continued

Committees of the Board

The Board has four Committees: Audit, Remuneration, Nominations and Treasury Risk

Management In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, the duties of the
Committees are set out in formal terms of reference They are avallable on request from
the Company’s registered office during normal business hours and are available on the

Company’s website at www.aveva.com.

Audit Committee
Commitiee Chairman Jonathan Brooks
Committee members Phidip Dayer

Hervé Coutuner

The Audit Committee assisis the Board in its oversight and
monitoring of financial reporting, risk management and internal
controls it tests and challenges these areas in conjunction
with management and the auditor as appropriate The Audit
Committee met four times dunng the year

« The Chairman of the Commuttee 1s deemed by the Board
te have recent and relevant financial experience Hes a
Chariered Management Accountant and has held 8 number
of semor financial positions in his career

+ The Committee invites the Chief Financial Officer and sentor
representatives from the auditor to attend meetings as
appropriate to the business being considered

+« The Committee also meets with the auditor without any
members of the executive management team being present

« The Audit Commuttee monitors the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group and the Committee members {as
part of the full Board) review all proposed announcements
to be made by the Group to the extent that they contain
financiat information and consideration 1s given to any
significant financial reporting judgements contained i them

« The Committee considers the effectiveness of financial
reporting and internal contiols, compliance with legal
requirements, accounting standards and the Listing Rules and
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial Services
Authority and also reviews any proposed change in accounting
policies and any recommendations from the Group's auditor
regarding improvements to internal controls and the adequacy
of resources within the Group's finance function

» Subsequent to the year end an Audit Committee meeting
was held to review the results of the audit, which was
attended by all members

« The Audit Committee advises the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor and on Its remuneration both for audit
and non-audit work and discusses the nature, scope and
results of the audit with the external auditor

+ The Committee keeps under review the cost effectiveness
and the independence and ohjectivity of the external auditor
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Controls in place to ensure this include monntorning of the
nndependence and effectiveness of the audit, implementing
a policy on the engagement of the external auditor to supply
non-audit services, and a review of the scope of the audit
and fee and performance of the external auditor

The Audit Committee monitors fees paid to the audnor for
non-audit work and delegates the authonty for approval of
such work te the Chief Financial Officer where the level of
fees involved are insigmficant Durning the year the auditor
did perform non-audit werk which mainly consisted of tax
compliance work for subsidiaries of the Group, financial and
tax due diligence on a number of small acquisition targets
and other statutory filng work Any significant non-audit work
such as reporting accountant engagements would require
prior approval from the Audit Committee

The Group engages other independent firms of accountants
1o perform tax consulting work and other consulting
engagements to ensure that the independence of the
auditor 1s not compromised

Audit partners are rotated every five years and a formal
statement of iIndependence Is received from the auditor
each year The Board and the Audit Committee are satisfied
that the independence of the auditor has been maintained
An analysis of non-audit fees i1s provided in note 7 to the
financial statements

There 1s a formal whistle-blowing policy which has

been communicated to employees This policy provides
iformation on the process to follow in the event that

any employee feels it 1s appropriate to make a disclosure
The Audit Committee 1s satisfied that the policy provides
an adequate basis for employees to make representations
in confidence to the Group and for appropriate and
proportionate invesugations

The Board and the Audit Commitiee have considered the
requirement to have an internal audit function and, given
the Group's relative size, do not consider one necessary

at this point but will continue to monitor this annually
During the year the Audit Cammuittee received reports from
management on varnous aspects of the Group's operations
and internal controls together with recommendations

for improvements




Nominations Committee

Committee Chairman Nick Prest
Committee members Jonathan Brocks
Philip Dayer

The activities of the Nominations Commuttee include nomination
selectton and appomntment of Non-Executive and Executive
Directors, succession planning and the composition of the
Board, particularly in relation to the diversity of background
skills and experience The Nominations Commuttee meets
pernodically when required In addition to the meetings there

are a number of ad-hoc meetings to address specific matters
The Chief Executive 1s invited to attend meetings as approprate
to the business being considered

In late 2011 Nick Prest communicated his decision to retire

from the Board in 2012, subject to a suitabte succession being
arranged The Nominations Comrriuttee met under Nick Prest's
Chairmanship and with the participation of the CEC to consider
an approprate process for choosing a successor A committee
was formed to manage the process, chaired by Jonathan Brooks
An external executive search firm with a strong board practice
was appointed to assist with the identification of appropnate
candidates having considared the requisite skills, knowledge
and expernence for the position The short-hsted indwviduals, who
included both external and internal candidates were interviewed
by the Commsttee and met separately with the CEQ As a result
the Nominations Committee recommended the appointment

of Philip Aiken to the Board, initially as Deputy Chairman then
becoming Chairman, subject to shareholder approvat after the
AGM in July 2012 Upon his appointment, Philip Atkken was
considered to be independent

Remuneration Committee

Commuttee Chairman
Committee members

Philip Dayer
Mick Prest
Jonathan Brooks

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations
1o the Board on the Group's policy for Executive and sentor
management remungration and determines the indmidual
remuneration packages on behalf of the Board for the
Executive Directors of the Group

The Chief Executive attends meetings by nwvitation, except
when the Chief Executive s own remuneration package 1s
being discussed

The Comruttee has access to professional advice, both inside
and outstde the Company, in the furtherance of its duties During
the prior year the Committee asked Deloitte LLP for advice on
the structure and comparability of Non-Executive, Executive and
senior management remuneration The Directors’ remuneration
report sets out in more detail the Remuneration Commuttee’s
policies and practices on Executive remuneration

Treasury Risk Management Committee (TRMC)

Committee Chawrman Philip Dayer
Committee members Jonathan Brooks
James Kidd

The TRMC was formed to oversee the Group's treasury function
given the increasing importance of managing the Group's
treasury activities and associated nsks In addition to the above
members, the Head of Finance and Group Treasurer are also
invited to attend the meetings The TRMC reviews the Group s
overall financial nsk management including

« foreign exchange risk and related hedging pclicy,

« credit nsk which includes monitoring the Group's
counter-party exposure to banks, and

« liquidity nsk which includes reviewing the cash management
structure in the Group

The policies of the Group In relation to these areas are explained
in note 26 to the financial statements

During the year the TRMC met twice to discuss the above
matters and provided a report to the Board after each meeting
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Directors’ report

Remuneration Committee report

Philip Dayer, Charman of the Remuneration Commttee

Introduction

| am pleased to introduce the Directors’ remuneration report for 2012 which has been

prepared by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board The format of the
report has changed from the 2011 report and we have made these changes to improve
the clanty of the report and to focus on the key areas of remuneration policy and changes

proposed for the 2012/13 year.

Since the last Remuneration report a number of changes have been proposed that will

be effective for the 2012/13 financial year

Basic salary for the Chief Financial Officer

James Kidd was prormoted to the role of Chief Financtal Officer in
January 2011 On appointment, his remuneration arrangements
were positioned significantly below the lower end of the market
competitive range given that he was new to a CFO role
Following his strong performance since appaintment, and

the support he has provided to the CEQ n delivenng business
performance the Committee decided it approprate to review
his base salary and to increase this to £260 000 The Committee
1s planning to phase this increase over tme and therefore, the
CFO s salary will be increased frorm his 2011 base salary of
£175,100 to £230,000 with effect from t April 2012 and then,
subject to continued strong performance, to £260,000 to be
effective from 1 Apnl 2013 The Committee acknowledges

that such tncreases are unusual in the current chmate However,
given the strong performance of the CFO over the last year

and the overall positioning of his salary and total package

the Committee believes the ncrease to be appropnate and

in the best interests of the business

Introduction of clawback for annual bonuses

Over the past year, the Remuneration Committee has been
mindful of recent developments in good governance on
exscutive remuneration and 1n particular the emerging
prevalence of ‘clawback’ mechanisms in annual bonus plans
In ight of this, the Committee has decided to introduce a
clawback’ mechanism for deferred awards made under

the annual bonus plan in respect of awards granted in 2012
onwards If 1t1s subsequently discovered that there has been
a matenal misstatement of results in achieving the enginal
bonus or for gross misconduct

Changes to the structure of long-term

incentive arrangements

During the year, the Committee reviewed the structure of the
Long-Term Incentive Plan to ensure that it remained aligned
with the business strategy and to ensure that the level

of reward delivered at differing levels of performance
remained appropnate
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The Committee continues to consider that earnings per share
remarns the most appropriate measure to incentivise the
delivery of the Group's business strategy going forwards
However, given the international nature and scope of our
business, the Committee has decided to de-link the LTIP
performance conditicn from RP for awards made in 2012
onwards EPS targets have been re-calibrated to ensure a
similar level of stretch to the EPS targets for 2011 awards
Further detalls of the targets are provided below

In addition, to align arrangements more closely with typical
market practice, and to ensure that participants are more fairly
rewarded for delivenng good performance, the Committee has
decided to increase the level of vesting for delivering threshold
performance from 0% to 25% of the LTIP award

Maximum LTIP award levels

Following feedback received from ISS last year, the Committee
has also decided to introduce a maximum himit on the LTIF
which was previously uncapped Going forward the maximum
award under the LTIP will be 250% of salary which will only
be awarded in exceptional circumstances, e g on recruitment

The Committee 1 not proposing to change the current
incentive levels for Executive Directors, which will remain
a1 120% of salary for the CEO and 100% of salary for other
Executive Directors Were the Commuttee to consider it
appropriate to increase these levels it 1s committed to
consulung with our major shareholders beforehand

Shareholding guidelines

Finally, In order to ensure that our Executives continue to

be strongly aligned with the objectives of our shareholders
we are increasing the shareholding requirement for the CEQ
to 200% of base salary The shareholding guideline for the
CFO wili remain at 100% of base salary



Thus report has been prepared in accordance with Schedules 5
and 8 to the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority and the UK Corporate Governance Code (together
the Regulations} The report also descnbes how the Board has
applied the Pnnciptes of Good Governance relating to Directors
remuneration As required by the Regulations a resolution

to approve the report will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company at which the financial statements

of the Company will be approved

The Regulations require the auditor to report on the 'auditable
part of the Directors’ remuneration report and to state whether,
in their opinton that part of the report has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Large and Medium-Sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 The report has therefore been divided into separate
sections for audited and unaudited information

Unaudited information

Role of the Remuneration Committee

The Board sets the remuneration policy for the Group
The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations
to the Board within its agreed terms of reference, details
of which are available at www aveva com

The Remuneration Committee s principal responsibility 18 to
determine the remuneration package of both the Company's
Executive Directors and its semior management within broad
policies agreed with the Board When reviewing and setting
remuneration policy the Comrmittee considered a range of
factors ineluding the Company s strategy and circumstances,
prevailling economic environment and the evolving landscape
in best practice guwdelines to ensure that it remains appropriate
In addiuion, it reviews the remuneration policy for the Company
as a whole and oversees and approves the Company s share
incentive plans for all participants The remuneration of the
Non-Executive Directors 1s determined by the Executive
Directors and the Chairman rather than the Committee

The conclusions and recommendations of the Remuneraton
Committee were finahsed in five formal meetings during the
year, but these were preceded by several informal discussions
inclueding some with advisers (none of whom had any other
connection with the Company) The members of the Commuitee
were Phulip Dayer {Chairman), Nick Prest and Jonathan Brooks

The Chief Executive {Richard Longdon} is invited to submit
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee and both

he and the members of the Committee take into consideration
relevant external market data as well as the reviews of remuneration
for employees of the Group generally The Chief Executive was not
present at the meetings

Remuneration policy

The Rermuneration Committee aims to ensure that members

of the Executive management are provided with appropriate
incentives to align them with the Company's strategy and the
future creation of sharehoider value, encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and responsible manner, rewarded
for therr ndwvidual contrnibutions to the success of the Group

it also aims for a combination of fixed and vanable payments,
benefits and share-based awards that will achieve a balance In
incentives to deliver short and long-term goals The Company's
policy I1s that a substantial proportion of remuneration of
Executive Directors should be performance-related and should
be delivered in shares to create alignment with shareholders
Interests For maximum levels of performance and excluding
the value of any LTIP awards, 50% of the CEQ's and 50% of the
CFO's total remuneration 1s performance related Including the
value of LTIPs, performance-reiated elements are 67% and
69% respectively

The payment of bonuses and the vesting of share incentives
are subject to meeting performance conditions estabhshed

by the Committee at the beginning of each performance
period reflecting targets that the Committee considers to be
demanding These targets are set taking account of the markets
n which the Group operates, our growth ambitions and the
expectations of the investment community on the Group's
future potantial performance

In 2008 the Board introduced the AVEVA Group Management
Bonus Deferred Share Scheme 2008 (the Deferred Share
Scheme) for Executive Directors and selected employees

The Committee considers that It 1s appropriate to have a
deferred component to the bonus scheme In order to retain key
individuals and to create enhanced alignment with shareholders
Subject to the achievement of performance conditions relating to
a single financial year, these incentive arrangements are intended
1o reward the recipient partly in cash, payable on announcement
of interim andfor final results and partly in ordinary shares in

the Company to be delivered on a deferred basis under the
Deferred Share Scheme

Any significant changes to remuneration pelicy are only made
following detailled consideration by the committee, consultation
with our largest shareholders and often following external
advice The Remuneration Commuittee has access 1o detailed
external research from independent consultants Duning 2010/11,
the Committee, supported by Deloitte LLP undertook a
comprehensive review of executive remuneration arrangements
Thus review considered whether the Group s current remuneration
arrangements were aligned with the future business strategy and
the long-term creation of shareholder value, as well as considering
whether pay levels were far and appropnate for a company of the
size and complexity of AVEVA,
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Remuneration Committee report continued

The individual components of the remuneration packages offered are descnbed in more detall below

2012/13 pohey

Change fram 2011/12

CEO - £390,000
CFO - £230 000

Base salary

CEQ -6 8% increase
CFO - 31% increase

Bonus and Deferred Maximum bonus 100% of base salary,
Shares Scheme 60% paid in cash, 40% deferred into shares

90% based on financial performance and
10% on individual performance

10% of the financial element of the bonus

1s based on performance over the first six
manths of the year with the remaining 80%
of the financial 1s based on performance
for the full year

No change

LTIP CEQ maximum LTIP award 120%
of base salary

CFO maximum LTIP award 100%
of base salary

Subyject to Group EPS performance
over three years

Overall maximum award hmit introduced at 250% of base
salary for exceptional circumstances e g on recruitment
No change to award policy

Given the international scope of the business the measurement
of EPS has been delinked from RPI The overall stretch of the
targets however remains comparable

Remuneration policy continued

The Committee concluded that the overall structure of
remuneration arrangements remains appropriate and effectively
Incentivises executives to deliver ongoing earnings growth as
well as incentivising them to build a strong foundation for the
Enterpnse Solutions business The successful delivery of the
Enterprnise Solutions strategy 15 considered to be crucial to

the buillding of long-term shareholder value and therefore 1t 1s
intended to continue to Incentivise the delivery of this through
the executive Incentive arrangements The Commuttes will,
however, continue 1o keep remuneration arrangements under
review to ensure that they are aligned with our business strategy
and the delivery of shareholder value

Outside appontments

The Board believes that accepting non-executive appointments with
other companies enhances the expenence of Executive Directors
and therefora they are entitled to accept appointments outside

of the Company prowided that Board approval is sought pnor to
accepting the appointment Whether or not the Director concerned
1s permitted to retain therr fees i1s considered on a case by case
basis Richard Longdon was appointed as an advisor 1o Detica,

a dwvision of BAE Systems in July 2011 Prior to his appointment,
the Board considered the impact on his role as CEO and concluded
that he could still devote sufficient time to his role and therefore
approved his appointment Mr Longdon does not receve a salary
for this role but I1s paid a daily fee for attendance As Mr Longdon
performs these services independently of his duties to the
Company, he 1s thus entitled to receive such compensation

Remuneration elements

Basic salames

It is the policy of the Commuttee 1o pay base salanes to the
Executive Directors taking accouni of the nature and scale of
the business of the Group, the performance of the individual
in achieving financial and non-financial goals within his areas
of responsibilny and comparable market data
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As set out last year 1n 2010/11, the Remuneration Committee having
duly considered the results of the benchmark review conducted by
Deloitte LLP, concluded that, given the experience and tenure of
the Chief Executive and his strategic importance to the business,
the remuneration opportunuty for the Group Chief Executive was
significantly behind market practice compared te other companies

of a similar size and complexity In light of this the Committee felt that
1t was reasonable and approprnate to bring his pay more in ine with
the market The Committee therefore, decided to increase his basic
salary to £390,000 The Commuttee concluded that it was appropriate
to achueve this increase in two phases to avoid a significant one-off
increase His salary, therefore, was increased from £335,000 to
£365,000 with effect from 1 Apnl 2011 {an 8 9% increase) and then to
£390,000 (a 6 8% ncrease) effective from 1 April 2012 Details of the
salary increase for the CFO are set out above

£
Richard Longdon 390,000
James Kidd 230,000
Benefits

Executive Diractors are provided with a company Car or a mobility
allowance and a fuel allowance Non-Executive Directars do not
receive any benefits

Bonus payments

The Executive Directors participate in annual performance-related
bonus arrangements determined by the Committee The maximum
bonus opportunity for Executive Directors 1s 100% of base salary
As noted above, these arrangements include a component using
the Deferred Share Scheme Under these incentive arrangements,
depending on the extent to which performance conditions are
achieved, an overall bonus amount 1s determined At 100%
achievernent of bonus performance conditions, 0% of the bonus
amount 1s payable in cash and the balance, 40%, i1s used to
calculate the number of ordinary shares which the bonus recipient
15 ehgible 1o recewve on a deferred basis This i1s calculated by
identifying the number of ordinary shares which could be purchased




with the balance at the mid-market closing price of an ordinary
share on the dealing day immediately preceding the prefiminary
announcement of the Company's results for the financial year in
which the bonus was earned [f the bonus amount 1s less than or
equal to 70% of the potential maximum bonus, then 75% of the
bonus 1s paid in cash and 25% paid in deferred shares If the bonus
amount 1s between 70% and 100% of the potential maximurm then
the proporton pawd in deferred shares 15 determined by linear
interpotation between 25% and 40%

Deferred awards which take the form of nil-cost options,

will normally debver the shares to participants 1n three equal
tranches, one In each of the three years following the year in
which an award 1s granted These awards are made solely in
respect of performance in the financial year immediately prior

to their grant Delivery of the deferred shares 1s not subject

to further financial performance conditions but the participant
must remain an employee or Director of the Group If the
participant ceases to be an employee or Director enutlement

to all outstanding tranches would fall away unless the cessation
oceurs by reason of his or her death or for other compassionate
reasons as determined by the Committee Following cessation of
employment by a bonus participant in such circumstances, or on
a takeover reconstruction or amalgamation, or voluntary winding
up of the Company the peried for which the parttcipant must
remain an employee or Director would be reduced below the
normal three years and entitiement to delivery of the shares

may be accelerated

As described above, the Commuittee has introduced 'clawback
for deferred awards granted in 2012 onwards

2011/12 bonus

For the annual performance bonus arrangements for 2011/12,
65% of bonus was based on achieving stretching Group adjusted
profit before tax (PBT} targets In addition, 25% of the bonus was
based on performance against growth objectives for Enterpnise
Solutions The agreed targets were considered to be approprate
and stretching aganst the budgeted profit for 2011/12 and market
conditions prevailing at that tme 10% of the potential bonus
was contingent upon achievemnent of key individual performance
objectives which had been agreed by the Remuneration
Committee at the stant of the financial year These metrics

are specific and measurable and are linked to the strategy and
operation of the business Of the 80% of the bonus based on

Proportion of total potential bonus 2011/12
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Proportion of total potential bonus 2012/13

financtat performance, 10% 1s based on achieverment for the

s1x months to 30 September and the remaining 80% 15 based

on the full year resuits For 2011/12, the maximum bonus amount
which an Executive Director could earn was 100% of basic salary
Performance targets were partially achieved, with the Group
delivering 14% adjusted PBT growth However, performance
targets In respect of the half year 10 30 September 2011 and
growth objectives for the Enterprise Solutions business were
not met This resulted in a total bonus of 68% of base salary
which comprised a cash bonus equal to 51% (2011 —80%) of
basic salary and 17% (2011 — 40%) of basic salary being used to
calculate the number of deferred shares for which each Executive
Drrector was eligible The Committee considered that this level of
payout Is appropnate both in the context of performance agatst
targets as well as the underlying performance of the business

in what continue to be challenging econarmic conditions

2012/13 bonus

It was agreed that the basis of the 2012/13 annual bonus will be
the same as used for 2011/12 It will be based on a combination of
the delivery of stretching Group adjustad profit before tax growth
performance and the growth in Enterprise Solutrons revenues

In addition 10% of bonus payments to Executive Directors will
be contingent on the achievernent of key mdividual performance
objectives which are required to be agreed in advance on an
individual basis by the Remuneration Commitiee These indvidual
objectives are linked to the delivery of the business strategy

Pensions

Since 2010 when he had acerued the maximum benefits that he

15 entitled to under the scheme rules Richard Longdon has been

a deferred member of AVEVA Solutions Limiied s defined benefit
pension scheme He 1s no longer aceruing any further benefit It s

a contnbutary, funded, occupational pension scheme registered

with HM Revenue and Custerms {HMRC) and, since 1 October 2004,
Career Average Revalued Eamings benefits apply Under this scheme
he 1s entitled to a pension on normal retirerment, or on retrement
due to 1l health, equivalent to two-thirds of his pensionable salary
provided he has completed (or would have completed in the case

of ill health} 25 years' service A scheme-specific earnings limit
applies to the benefits earned by Richard Longdon A lower pension
1s payable on earther retirerent after the age of 50 by agreement with
the Company and subject to HMRC guidelines Pensions are payable
1o dependants on the Director’s death in retrement and a lump sum
1s payable if death occurs In serice

Performance measures
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Directors report

Remuneration Committee report continued

Remuneration policy continued
2012/13 bonus continued

Pensions continued

James Kidd 1s a member of the AVEVA Group Personal Pension
Plan (a defined contribution scheme) and each year the Company
contributes 10% of salary to the plan

No other Directors were members of a pension scheme during
the year (2011 - nil)

Share awards

The Remuneration Committee considers that penodic grants of
share-related ncentives should constitute an important element of
the remuneration of the Company’s senior Executives, in ine with
common practice in comparable companies The Remuneration
Committee consults with major shareholders and thewr representative
bodies as appropriate regarding the operation of these schemes

The Cornpany's share schemes have been used to prowide long-term
Incentives 1o assist In creating and sustaining growth in share value
There are three schemes in existence the AVEVA Group Management
Bonus Deferred Share Scheme 2008 {as descrbed above), the AVEVA
Group ple LongTerm Incentive Plan and the AVEVA Group plc
Executive Share Option Scherne 2007 No awards have been made
under the AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2007
The performance conditions that would apply under this scherme
would be determined prior to the grant of any awards

The number of shares which may be allocated on exercise

of any options granted under any of the Company's share
option schemes {including employee schemes) shall not,
when aggregated with the number of shares which have

been allocated in the previous ten years under these schemes,
exceed 10% of the ordinary share capital of the Company In issue
immediately prior 1o that date The share schemes are used

to provide incentives to senior managers as well as Executive
Directors As recipients of these awards Executive Directors
and Executive Board members are required to held or use the
schemes to buld a minimum share ownership For the CEQ
the Committee decided to increase this required shareholding
from 100% to 200% of base salary in order to further align

his interests with those of our shareholders The shareholding
requirement for the CFO remains at 100% of salary

Details of the awards made under these schemes are as foliows

Long-Term Incente Plan (LTIP)

Under the LTIP options are granted to selected indmviduals to acquire
ordinary shares at an exercise price equal to the norminal value of the
shares (3 33 pence), these options will be exercisable only If stretching
performance crteria are met For 201 1/12 and 2012/13 the market value
of awards under the LTIP awarded to Richard Longdon and James Kidd
amounied to 120% and 100% of basic salary respectively {2010/11
~100%) The increase in the level of LTIP awards compared to 2010/11
was the result of a review conducted at that time into the remuneration
arrangements for Executive Birectors and compartson with
remuneration packages for Directors of other similar sized comparies
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Currently, there are no rules under the LTIP scheme which
govern the maximum awards that can be made to participants
However, as set out above, fallowing feedback received

from 1SS last year, the Committee has decided to introduce

a maximum limit on the LTIP Going forward the maximum
award under the LTIP will be 250% of salary, which will only
be awarded in exceptional circurmnstances e g on recrukment

The Committee continues to beheve that earnings per share growth
1s an appropnate performance measure for awards under the LTIP
as growing earnings 1s strongly aligned with our long-term business
strategy and the creation of shareholder value

In determsning each of the awards under the LTIP the
Remuneration Committee considered and concluded that the
performance conditions set were challenging in the context

of tnternal and external expectations at the time of the awards
Details of the outstanding awards under the LTIP are as follows

2008/9 awards

In 2008/9, a total of 17 929 nominal value share options were
conditicnally awarded to the Executive Directors under the LTIP
The performance conditions were based on average growth

i EPS over the years from 2009/10 to 2010/11 If average EPS
growth 1s greater than 14% per annum then all of the shares
shall vest If average EPS is less than 10% per annum then none
of the shares shall vest |f average EPS growth is between 10%
and 14% per annum then the number of shares that shall vest
shall be determined by linear intarpolation The performance
conditions attached to this award were not met and therefore
these awards all lapsed

2009/10 awards

In 2009/10, a total of 36 628 nomtnal value share options were
condiienally awarded to the Executive Directors under the LTIP In view
of the general economic background the Remuneration Committee
gave especally carefl consideration to what performance conditions
would be appropriate and finally agreed that they should be based on
average diluted EPS over the three years from 2009/10 t0 2011/12 All
shares under this option shall vest If average diluted EPS for the three
years ending 31 March 2012 1s equal to or above 52 14 pence Should
average diluted EPS for the period be below 52 14 pence, then no
shares will vest and the option will lapse Although the vesting date has
not yet been reached 1t 1s anticipated that the performance conditions
attached to this award will be met following finalisation of the 2011/12
financral resulis and 100% of the award will vest However this is
subject to the approval of the Remuneration Commitiee at the time
of announcement of the resulis

2010/11 awards

in 2010/11 atotal of 37 961 nominal value share options were
awarded 10 Executive Directors under the LTIP The performance
conditions are based on average EPS growth over the three
years from 2010/11 to 2012/13 |f average diluted EPS growth

1s more than 12% above RPI for the same period then all of the
shares under this option will vest If average diluted EPS growth
1S less than 4% above RPI then none of the shares will vest




If average EPS growth is between 4% and 12% per annum
then the number of shares that shall vest shall be determined
by linear interpolation

2011/12 awards

In 2011/12 a total of 35 155 share options were awarded to the
Executive Diregtors under the LTIP The performance conditions
attached to this award are based on EPS growth over the three
years from 2011/12 to 2013/14 If average diluted EPS growth
1s more than 12% above RPI for the same penod then all the
shares under this option will vest If average diluted EPS growth
1s less than 5% above RPI then none of the shares will vest

If average EPS growth 1s between 5% and 12% per annum
above RPI then the number of shares that shall vest shali be
determined by inear interpolation

Summary of LTIP targets

Award Performance targets

2012/13 awards

It 1s intended that share options be awarded to Executive Directors
at 120% of salary for Richard Longdon and 100% for Jarnes Kidd and
that performance conditions should be based on EPS growth over a
three year period from 2012/13 to 2014/15 As set out above given
the international nature and scope of our business, the Committee
has decided to de-link the LTIP performance condition from RPI for
awards made in 2012 onwards EPS iargets have been re-calibrated
to ensure a similar level of stretch to the EPS targets for 2011 awards
it is proposed that if average annual diluted adjusted EPS growth is
more than 15% then all shares under this option will vest If average
annual diluted adjusted EPS growth 1s less than 8% then no shares
will vest At 8% average annual adjusted diluted EPS growth, 25%

of shares will vest and between 8% and 15%, the number of shares
that vest will be determined by linear interpolation between 25%

and 100%

2008/08 - 2010/

EPSgrowth10% pa to 4% pa

These targets were not met and therefore these awards lapsed in full

200910 - 201112

Average dituted EPS of 52 14 pence

This target was met and the award will vest in full

2010/11 - 2012/13

EPS growth of RPl plus 4% pa - RPl plus 12% p a

2011/12-2013/14

EPS growth of RPl plus 5% pa —RPiplus 12% p a

2012/13 - 201415

EPS growthof 8% pa - 15% p a

Total shareholder return performance graph

The Large and Medium-Sized Companias and Groups {Accounts and Reports} Regulauons 2008 require the presentation

of a performance graph of total shareholder return compared with a broad equity market index for a period of five years

The {ollowing graph shows the Company's performance measured by total shareholder return, compared with the performance
of the techMARK All-Share Index Total shareholder return i1s the share price plus dividends reinvested compared aganst the

techMARK All-Share Index, rebased to the stan of the period

Total shareholder return v techMARK All-Share Index 2007-2012
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The Directors consider the techMARK All-Share Index to be an appropnate choice as the Index ncludes AVEVA Group ple
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Directors’ report

Remuneration Committee report continued

Remuneration policy continued

Deferred annual bonus share plan

As described abovs, part of the annual bonus earned by Executive Directors in the year 1s used to determine eligibility for an award
of deferred shares under the Deferred Share Scheme In order to deliver shares under the Deferred Share Scheme, an Employee
Benefit Trust (EBT) was established following shareholder approval at the 2008 Annual General Meeting Awards of deferred shares
are made by the trustee of the EBT using shares purchased in the market

On 4 July 2011 the EBT awarded 8,536 and 1,464 deferred shares to Richard Longdon and James Kidd respectively in respect of the
bonus arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2011

Following the achievement of the objectives for 2011/12 1t 1s anticipated that 4,180 and 2,010 deferred shares will be awarded
to Richard Longdon and James Kidd respectively in respect of the bonus arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2012

Service contracts
The service contracts and letters of appointment of the Directors include the following terms

Expiry/review date of Notice period

Date of contract Date of appointment current contract Months

Philip Aiken 1 May 2012 1 May 2012 30 April 2015 3
Mick Prest 10 January 2006 11 January 2006 12 July 2012 3
Philip Dayer 2 January 201 7 January 2008 2 January 2014 3
Jonathan Brooks 12 July 2010 12 July 2007 12 July 2013 3
Herve Coutuner 18 March 2010 1 Apnil 2010 1 Apnt 2013 3
Richard Longdon 28 November 1996 28 November 1986 Roliing 12
James Kidd 1 January 2011 1 January 2011 Rolling 9

The Committee considers that the notice periods of the Executive Directors are i line with those in other companies of a similar size
and nature and are in tha best interests of the Group to ensure stability In senior management

As anmounced on 26 Aprl 2012, Nick Prest has indicated that he will step down from the Board at the next AGM in July 2012

There are no predetermined special provisions for Executive or Non-Executive Directors wath regard to compensatton in the evert
of loss of office The Remuneration Committee would be responsible for considering the circumstances of the early termmation of
an Executive Director's contract and determuning whether in exceptional cireumstances there should be compensation payments
in excess of the Company’s contractual obligations

Non-Executive Director fees
Fees for the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors are deterrmined taking account of the individual’s responsibilities,
time devoted to the role and prevalent market rates Total fees for Non-Executive Directors are summarnised below

£
Nick Prest {Chairman} 120,000
Philkp Alken (Deputy Chairman) 115,000
Jonathan Brooks (Chair of the Audit Commttee) 48,000
Philip Bayer (Chaw of the Remuneration Committee) 48,000
Hervé Couturier 39,000
Upon becorming Chairman, subject to shareholder approval and after the AGM n July 2012, Philip Arken’s fees will be increased
1o £145,000
Audited information
Directors’ remuneration
The total amounts for Directors” emoluments and other benefits receved, but excluding pensions and the value of options granted
to acquire ordinary shares in the Company granted, were as follows
Basic Cash Benefits 2012 201
salary Fees bonus' n kind Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Nick Prest — 120 — —_ 120 110
David Mann — — — —_ —_ 13
Jonathan Brooks — 48 - _ 48 44
Philip Dayer — 48 —_ — 48 44
Hervé Couturier — 39 — —_ 39 39
Richard Longdon 365 - 186 25 576 561
Paul Taylor — — — — - 337
James Kidd 175 — 29 17 231 72
Aggregate emoluments 540 255 275 42 1,112 1,220

1 In addition to the cash bonus award noted above @ 1s anucipated that Richard Longdon and James Kidd will be awarded 4 190 and 2 010 deferred shares
respectively (2011 - 8 536 deferred shares were awarded to Richard Longdon and 1 464 were awarded 1o James Kidd) under the Deferred Share Scheme
The estimated monetary value of these awards was £61 594 (2011 - £134 108} for Richard Longdon and £28 548 (2011 ~ £23 002) for James Kidd
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Share options
The interests of Directors in options to acquire ordinary shares were as follows

As at As at
1 April 31 March Gamnon Exercise Earhiest
2011 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2012 exercise price date of Date of
Scheme Number Number Numbaer Number Number £ Pence exercise expiry
Richard Longdon
LTIP 10,891 e —  {10.891) —_— — 333 070711 070715
LTIP 22,264 — —_ — 22,264 — 333 070712 070716
LTIP 25038 — — — 25,038 —_ 333 2680713 2860717
LTP — 25,115 — — 25,115 — 333 060714 060718
Deferred Share Scheme {2008) 4094 — 4,094 — — 68 247 Q00 260509 Note 1
Deferred Share Scheme {2009) 14,991 — 7.496 — 7495 124,958 000 260510 Note 1
Deferred Share Scheme {(2010) 12,471 - 4,157 — 8,314 69,297 000 260511 Note 1
Deferred Share Scheme {2011} -— 8,536 — — 8,536 — 000 260512 Note 1
James Kidd
LTIP 2,101 — — {2,101} — — 333 070711 070715
LTIP 4,289 — — — 4,288 — 333 070712 070716
LTIP 2,435 — — — 2,435 — 333 260713 260717
LTIP — 10,040 — —_ 10,040 — 333 080714 060718
Deferred Share Scheme (2009} 886 — 443 — 443 7385 000 260510 Note 1
Deferred Share Scheme (2010} 737 — 248 — 492 4,084 000 260511 Note 1
Deferred Share Scheme (2011) — 1,464 — — 1,464 — Q00 260512 Note 1

1 The last date of the exercise is the end of the 42-day peried following the announcement of the financial results of the Group in the third calendar year
following that in which the option was granted or (if applicable) such later date as the Remuneration Commitiee may specify

The market price as at 31 March 2012 was £16 57 (31 March 2011 — £16 15) with a high-low spread for the year of £12 98 to £17 99

During the vear Richard Longdon and James Kidd exercised options over 15,747 and 688 ordinary shares under the Deferred Share
Scheme respectively at an exercise price of £nil The market price on the date of exercise was £16 67 which resulted in an aggregate
gain on exercise of £262,502 for Richard Longdon and £11 468 for James Kidd Richard Longden retained 7,541 and James Kidd

329 of the shares over which options were exercised

At 31 March 2012, Richard Longdon owned 385 585 ordinary shares (2011 — 378,024 ordinary shares) and options over 96,762
ordinary shares (2011 - 89,749 options) James Kidd owned 3,655 ordinary shares (2011 — 3 226 ordinary shares} and options
over 18,163 ordinary shares {2011 — 10,448 opticns)

Options under the LTIP are normally exercisable in full or in part between the third and tenth anniversaries of the date of grant
Detalls of the performance conditions of share option awards are set out on pages 39 and 40

Pensions
Richard Lengdon 1s a member of the AVEVA Solutions Limited defined benefit pension scheme and has accrued the maximum
benefit he 1s entitled to The Directors had accrued entitlements under the pension scheme as follows

Increase in accrued Transfer value of increase

Accumutated accrued Accumulated accrued Increase in pension dunng the after removing the

pension at pension at accrued pension year after remeving effects of inflatien tess

31 March 2012 31 March 2011 during year the effects of inflation Directors contnbutions

£ £ £ £ £

Richard Longdon 156,644 148,912 7733 — —

The pension entitlement shown 15 that which would be paid annually based on service to the end of the year
The transfer value as at date of retirement of each Director’s accrued benefits at the end of the financial year is as follows

Movement less

31 March 2012 31 March 201 Drectors contnbutions
£ £ £
Richard Longdon 2,709,559 2,164,521 545 038

The transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice In accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11 Members of the scheme
have the option to pay Addriional Voluntary Contributions Neither the contributions nor the resulting benefits are included in the above table

James Kidd 1s a member of the AVEVA Group Personal Pension Plan and dunng 2011/12 recerved emplover contnbutions of £17 510
By order of the Board

HE

Helen Barrett-Hague High Cross
Company Secretary Madingley Road
28 May 2012 Cambndge (B3 OHB
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Directors’ report

Other statutory information

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the marketing and
development of computer software and services far engineening
and related solutions The Company 1s a holding company

Results and dividends

The Group made a profit for the year after taxation

of £40 0 milhon {2011 — £34 6 millon) Revenue was
£185 9@ milhion {2011 - £174 0 million) and compnsed
software licences, software maintenance and services

The Dwectors recommend the payment of a final dividend of

17 00 pence per ordinary share (2011 — 14 83 pence} If approved
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the final dividend
will be paid on 27 July 2012 to shareholders on the register at
close of business on 22 June 2012

Business review and future developments

A review of the Group's operations dunng the year and tts
plans for the future 1s given in the Chairman's statement,
the Chief Executive’s review and the Finance review

The Key Pearformance Indicators (KPls} used by AVEVA to
measure 1ts own performance at the Group tevel are total
revenue recurning revenue segment profit contributron, adjusted
profit before tax, adjusted earnings per share and headcount
The figures for the year ended 31 March 2012 are set out In

the Finance review on pages 18 to 23, together with figures

for the previous year and a discusston of the principal nisks and
uncertainties facing the Group s included on pages 24 and 25

Suppliers’ payment practice

It 1s the Group's policy that payments to suppliers are made in
accordance with those terms and condions agreed between
the Company and its supphers, provided that all trading terms
and conditions have been complied with by the other party

The Company has nil trade creditors (2011 - nul) At 31 March 2012,
the Group had an average of 32 days' purchases owed o trade
creditors (2011 - 18 days’')

Research and development

The Group continues an active programme of Research and
Development which covers the updating of and extension
to the Group’s range of products

Intellectual property

The Group owns intellectual property both 1n its software tools
and the products dernved from them The Directors consider
such properties to be of significant value to the business and
has a comprehensive programme to protect it

Financial instruments

The Group's financial nsk management objectives and
policies are discussed In note 26 to the Consolidated
financial statements

Going concern

The Group has significant financial resources, 1s profitable and has
a strong position in the markets 1t serves At 31 March 2012 the
Group had cash and treasury deposit balances of £179 0 million
{2011 - £153 2 million) and nc debt Therefore, after making
enquiries and considerng the cash flow forecasts for the Group
the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue 1ts operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements
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Directors and their interests
The Directors who served during the year under review are
shown below

Nick Prest {Chairman)

Philip Dayer [Non-Execuuve Director and Senior
Independent Director}

Jonathan Brooks {Non-Executive Director)
Hervé Coutuner (Non-Executive Director)
Richard Longdon {Chief Executive)

James Kidd {Chief Financial Officer)

The interests (all of which are beneficial) in the shares of
the Company of Directors who held office at 31 March 2012
in respect of transactions notifiable under Disclosure and
Transparency Rute 3 1 2 that have been disclosed to the
Company are as follows

At At

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

ordinary ordinary

shares shares

Nick Prest 16,690 16 690
Philip Dayer 7,000 7000
Jonathan Brooks _ —
Herve Coutuner — —
Richard Longdon 385,565 378,024
James Kidd 3,555 3,226

No changes took place in the interests of Directors in the shares
of the Company between 31 March 2012 and 28 May 2012

Directors' share options are disclosed in the Remuneration
Committee report on pages 36 to 43

No Director had a material interest in any significant contract,
other than a service contract or contract for services, with the
Company or any of its subsidianies at any time during the year

Resolutions will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting for
the re-election of all current Directors, except Nick Prest who has
indicated that he wishes to step down from the Beard following
the AGM Brief biographicat details of all Directors appear on
pages 28 and 29

Conflict of interest

Throughout the year the Company has operated effective
procedures to deal with potential or actual conflicts of interest
During the year no conflict arose requirning the Board 1o exercise
1ts authonty or discretion

Share capital

Details of the 1ssued share capital can be found in note 30 to
the Consolidated financial statements The nghts attaching to
the Company s shares are set out in 1ts Articles of Association

Subject to any restrnictions referred to in the next section,
members may attend any general meeting of the Company

There are no restrictions on transfer of the ordinary shares in the
Company other than certain restricuons which may from time to
time be imposed by laws and regulations {for example, insider
trading laws), and pursuant 1o the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authonty whereby Directors and certain employees

of the Cormpany require the approval of the Company to deal in
the ordinary shares and pursuant 1o the Articles of Association
where there s default in supplying the Company with information
concerning Interests In the Company's shares there are no specral
contral nghts in refation to the Company's shares



Voting nghts

Subject to any restrictions below, on a show of hands every
member who 1s present in person or by proxy at a2 general
meeting has one vote on each resclution and on a poll, every
member who is present in person or by proxy has one vote on
each resolution for every share of which he/she I1s the registered
member A proxy will have one vote for and one vote against a
resolution on a show of hands in cenain circumstances specified
in the Articles of Association The Notice of Annual General
Meeting specifies deadlines for exercising rights

A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting 1s decided on a
show of hands, unless before or on the declarauon of the result
of the show of hands a poll 1s demanded by the Chairman of the
meeting The Articles of the Company also allow members in
certain circumstances, to demand that a resolution 1s decided
by a poll

A rmember may vote personally or by proxy at a general meeting
Any form of proxy must be delivered to the Company not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting
or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the
appointment proposes to vote {for this purpose, the Directors
may specify that no account shall be taken of any part of a day
that 1s not a working day} A corporation which 1s a member of
the Company may authorise such persons as it thinks fit to act
as its representatives at any general meeting of the Company

No member shall be entitted to attend or vote, either personally
or by proxy, at a general meeting in respect of any share if any
call or other sum presently payable to the Company in respect
of such share remains unpaid or in certain other circumstances
specified in the Articles of Association where there 1s default in
supplying the Company with information concerning interests
in the Company’s shares

Dwidends, distmbutions and liguwdation

Members can declare final dividends by passing an ordinary
resolution but the amount of the dividends cannot exceed the
amount recommended by the Board The Board can pay intenm
dwidends provided the distnbutable profits of the Company
sty such payment The Board may if authonsed by an ordinary
resolution of the members, offer any member the nght to elect
to receive new shares, which will be credited as fully paid
instead of their cash dividend Any dividend which has not been
ctaimed for twelve years after it became due for payment will
be forieited and will then revert to the Company Members may
share in surplus assets on a hquidation

If the Company 1s wound up the liquidator can, with the sanction
of the members by special resotution and any other sanction
required by law, divide among the members all or any part of

the assets of the Company and he/she can value any assets

and determine how the divisions shall be carried out as between
the members or different classes of members The hquidator
can also transfer the whole or any part of the assets to trustees
upon any trusts for the benefit of the members No members
can be compelled to accept any asset which would give them
any hability

There are no agreements between holders of secunities that
are known to the Company which may result in restrictions on
the transfer of securities or on voting nghts, save as descnbed
below In relation to the Employee Benefit Trust

Change of control

All of the Company's share-based plans contain provisions
relating to change of control Qutstanding awards and options
normally vest and become exercisable on a change of control,
subject to the satisfaction of any relevant performance
conditions at that time

There are no other significant agreements to which the Company
IS a party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of control of the Company following a takeover bid

There are no agreements between the Company and its
Directors or employees providing for compensation for loss
of office or employment that occurs because of a takeover bid

Substantial shareholdings

The Company had been noufied, in accordance with Disclosure
and Transparency Rule 5, of the following interests In the
ordinary share capital of the Company

As at
31 March As at
2012 28 May 2012
Percentage Percentage
held held
Name of holder Number % Number %
BlackRock 8,261,427 1215 8,3:N,677 12 34
Standard Life
Investments 2,830,382 416 2,867,283 422
Legal & General
Investment
Management 2,704,794 398 2,646,130 389
Aflanz Global
Investors 2519 245 37 2,591,229 g
0Old Mutual

Asset Managers 2,274 450 335 2282300 336

Threadneedle

Investments 2115,853 311 2,109,314 310

Articles of Association

Any amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company
may be made in accordance with the prowisions of the
Companies Act by way of special resolution

Powers of the Directors

The business of the Company s managed by the Directors

who may exercise all powers of the Company subject to the
Company's Articles of Associauon, refevant statutory law and

to any direction that may be given by the Company in general
meeting by special resolution Subject to the Companies Act,
shares may be 1ssued by Board resolution At the Company's last
Annual General Meeting powers were granted to the Directors
{subject to imits set out In the resolutions) to tssue and to buy
back its own shares similar powers are proposed to be granted
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting The buy-back
authority was imited to 10% of the Company’s 1ssued share
capital No shares have been bought back under this authonty

Appointment of Directors

The Arucles of Association it the number of Directors to

not less than two and not more than ten save where members
decide otherwise Members may appoint Directors by ordinary
resolution and may remove any Director (subject to the giving
of special nouce) and If desired, replace such removed Director
by ordinary resolution New Directors may be appointed by the
Board but are subject to election by members at the first annual
general meeting after their appointment A Director may be
removed from office if requested by all other Directors

The Company’s Articles of Association require that at each AGM
there shall retire from office {and be subject to re-election by
members) any Director who shall have been a Director at the
preceding two annual general meetings and who was not appointed
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Dirgctors’ report

Other statutory information continued

Appointment of Directors continued

or re-appointed then or subsequentdy However in accordance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Company requires all
Directors who held office at 31 March 2012 to stand for re-election

Charitable and political denations

During the year the Group made charitable donations totalling
£49,557 {2011 ~ £49,618) of which £10 000 was paid to Macrmillan
Cancer Support and £15 000 to The Qutward Bound Trust

The remainder was donated to local and national charities

No political donations were made 1n the year (2011 - £rul}

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 12 July 2012 at

The Trinuty Centre, 24 Cambrnidge Science Park, Milton Road,
Cambridge CB4 OFN The Nouice of the Annual General Meeting
Is being sent to shareholders along with this annual report which
contains details of the resoluttons proposed

Employee benefit trust

The AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008 was estabhshed
1n 2008 to faclitate satisfying the transfer of shares to employees
within the Group on exercise of vested options under the

vanous share option and deferred bonus share plans of the
Company The Trust holds a total of 93,763 ordinary shares

i AVEVA Group plc representing 0 14% {2011 — 127 947 shares
representing 0 18%) of the 1ssued share capital at the date of this
report Under the terms of the Trust deed governing the Trust

the trustees are requirad {unless the Campany directs otherwise}
to walve all dividends and abstam from voting in respect of
ordinary shares in AVEVA Group plc held by the Trust except
where beneficial ownership of any such ordinary shares was
passed to a beneficiery of the Trust In the same way as other
employees the Executive Directors of the Company are potentiat
beneficiaries under the Trust

Disabled employees

The Group gives full consideration to applications for employment
from disabled persons where the candidate’s particular aptitudes
and abilities are consistent with adequately meeting the
requirements of the job Opportunities are available to disabled
employees for trairng, career development and promotion

Where existing employees become drsabled, it 1s the Group s
policy to provide continuing employment wherever pracucable
in the same or an alternative position and to provide appropriate
training to achieve this aim as well as reasonable adjustmentis
to the workplace and other support mechamsms

Employee involvement
The Group piaces considerable value on the involvement of its
employees and has continued to keep them informed of matters

affecting them as employees and on the varous factors affecting

the performance of the Group This 1s achieved through formal
and informal meetings, employee newsletters, the Group
intranet and presentations from senior management There Is an
employee representative committee which meets on a regular
basis to discuss a wide range of matters affecting thetr current
and future interests This year the Group alsc launched an
employee engagement survey All employees are entitled 1o
receve an annual discretionary award related to the overall
profitability of the Group subject to the performance of the
individual and the Group The Group conducts employee wide
surveys from ume to tume to gauge the success or otherwise
of its policies and uses this information to Improve matters

as appropriate

/48 AVEVA Group plc Annual seport 2012

Directors’ indemnity

The Company has granted an indemnity to its Directors against
lability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties,
subject to the conditions set out In the Companies Act

Such qualifying third party indemnity provision remains

in force as at the date of approving the Directors’ repant

Auditor

A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditor for
the ensuing year will be put to the members at the Annual
General Meeting

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors who were members of the Board st the time of
approving the Directors’ report are listed on page 41 Having
made enquines of fellow Directors and of the Company’s auditor
each of these Directors confirms that

« so far as he is aware, there i1s no relevant audit information
(as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2008}
of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware, and

« he has taken all the steps he ought to have taken as a Director
n order to make himself aware of any such relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s audnor
18 aware of that information

Responsibility statement pursuant to FSA’s Disclosure
and Transparency Rule 4 (DTR 4)

Each Director of the Company {whose names and functions
appear on pages 28 and 29) confirms that (solely for the purpose
of DTR 4) to the best of his knowledge

« the financial statements in this document, prepared in
accordance with the applicable UK law and applicable
accounting standards, give a true and farr view of the
assets, habilites, financial position and result of the
Company and of the Group taken as a whole and

« the Chairman’s statement and Business review include a fair
review of the development and performance of the business
and the positton of the Company and Group taken as a
whole, together with a descripuion of the pnincipal nisks
and uncertainties that they face

On beplalf of the Board
[

ames Kidd Richard Longdon
Chief Financal Officer Chef Executive
28 May 2012



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the Consolidated financial statements
The Cirectors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the Consolidated financial statements in accerdance with
apphcable United Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union

The Directors are required to prepare Consolidated financial statements for each financial year which present fairly the financial
position of the Group and the financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that penod In prepanng those Consolidated
financial statements, the Directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies in accordance with |AS 8 and then apply them consistently,

present information, including accounung policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable comparable and
understandable information

provide additional disclosures when comphance with the specific requirements in IFRSs 1s insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance, and

state that the Group has complied with IFRSs subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
finaneial pesition of the Group and enable them to ensure that the Consolidated financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detecuon of fraud and other wrregulariues

This annual report contains forward-looking statements These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance Rather they are Dased on
current views and assumptions and are subject 1o a number of known and unknown risks uncertainues and other factors that may cause actual resuits to differ
matenally from any future results or developments expressed or implied from the forward-looking staiements Each forwardJooking statement speaks only as of
the date of the parucular staterment and save 10 the extent raquired by the applicable law or regulation we do not undertake any obligation to update or renew

any forward-looking staterment
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Financial statements

Independent auditor’s report

We have audited the Group financial statements of AVEVA Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2012 which comprise the
Consolidated income statement, the Consolidated siatement of comprehensive income, the Consolidated balance sheet, the
Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, the Consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 32
The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union

This report 1s made solely to tha Company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibifity to anyone other than the Company and the Company s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,

or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statermnent set out on page 47, the Directors are responstble far the
preparation of the Group financial statements and for being satsfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to
audit and express an opinion on the Group financial statements In accordance with applicable law and international Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes

an assessment of whether the accounting policies are approprnate to the Group’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequatsly drsclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors and the overalt
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to

identfy matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements

or inconsistencies we consider the iImplcations for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinien the Group financial statements

« give atrue and farr view of the state of the Group s affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its profit for the year then ended,
« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given n the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the Group financial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the Group finanoial statements

Matters on which we are required to repart by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 20086 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion

» certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the Directors’ statement set out on page 44, in relation to gong concern, and

« the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 30 to 35 relating to the Company's compliance with the nine
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review and

» certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent Company financial statements of AVEVA Group ple for the year ended 31 March 2012
and on the information in the Directors’ remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited

gwt[ Kl e R

Bob Forsyth (Senior s{atutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutary Audrtor
Cambndge

28 May 2012

/48 AVEVA Group plc Annusl report 2012




Financial statements

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2012

2012

201
restated

Notes £000 £000
Revenue 5,6 195935 173,988
Cost of sales {16,066} {18 765)
Gross profit 179,869 155 223
Operating expenses
Research and development costs {32,121} (28,082)
Selling and distnbution expenses (75,008} (62,672)
Admunistrative expenses {16,241} (15 309}
Total operating expenses {123,370) (106 063)
Profit from operations 7 56,499 491860
Finance revenue 9 3,962 3584
Finance expense 10 (2,724) {2,949}
Analysed as
Adyusted profit before tax 62,276 54,720
Amortisation of intangibles (excluding other software} {3,368} {2,797)
Share-based payments {666) {1541)
Gain on fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 308 948
Exceptional items 8 (813) {1,535}
Profit before tax 57,737 49795
Income tax expense 12 {17,769) (15,303}
Profit for the year attnibutable to equity holders of the parent 39,968 34,492
Earnings per share {pence)
- basic 14 58 86 50 85
—diluted 14 58 73 50 56
All activities relate to continuing actvities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated incorme statement
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2012

2012

201

Notes £000 fooo
Profit for the year 39,968 34,492
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences ansing on translation of foreign operations (2,277) 3,287
Actuanal {loss)/gain on retirement benefit ocbhgations 28 {7,083) 8,218
Tax on rtems relating to components of other comprehensive income 12(a} 1,701 {2,502}
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 31,809 43,488

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
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Consolidated balance sheet
31 March 2012

2012

20N

Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 16 30,839 27,534
Other intangible assets 17 18,605 18,696
Property plant and equipment 18 8,042 7,721
Deferred tax assets 27 4,009 3,638
Qther receivables 20 an 767
62,306 58,358
Current assets
Trade and other recetvables 20 68,054 73089
Financial assets 21 223 —
Treasury deposits 22 130,282 123,002
Cash and cash equivalenis 22 48,669 30,185
Current tax assets 589 1,125
247,817 227 40t
Total assets 310,923 285,757
Equity
Issued share capital 30(a) 2,266 2 266
Share premium 27,288 27,288
Other reserves 14,971 178631
Retained earnings 176,937 155,187
Total equity 221,462 202,372
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 23 67,995 69 467
Financial habihties 24 — 85
Current tax habilities 8,936 8,005
76,931 77557
Non-current habilities
Deferred tax llabilives 27 1,855 2,801
Retirement benefit obligations 28 9,875 3,027
11,730 5,828
Total equity and habilities 310123 285 757

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated balance sheet

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 28 May 2012 They were sighed on its

behalf by
NS

Nick Prest Richard Long Company number

Chairman Chief Executive
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

31 March 2012

Other reserves

Cumutative Chwn
Share Share Marger transiation shares Retained Total
capital premum reserva  adiustments held Tozal |arnings aquity
Notes £006 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2010 2,264 27288 3,821 11 646 (1,112) 14485 (125,215 169,222
Profit for the year — — — — — — 34 492 34,492
Other comprehensive iIncome — — — 3.287 — 3.287 5709 8,998
Total comprehensive income — — -— 3,287 — 3,287 40,201 43,488
Issue of share capital 30(a) 2 — — — —_ — — 2
Share-based payments — — — — — - 1,541 1,541
Tax on share-based payments — — — —_ — — 262 252
Investment 1n own shares — — — — {430) {430} - {430)
Cost of employee benefit trust
shares 1ssued to employees — — — — 319 318 {319) -
Equity dividends 13 — —_ — — — _ {11,703}  {(11,703)
At 31 March 2011 2,266 27.288 3.921 14 933 {(1,.223) 17631 (155,187 202372
Profit for the year — — — — —_ — | 39,968 39,968
Other comprehenstve Income — — — (2,777 — {2,777) {5,382} (8,159)
Total comprehensive iIncome — — — (2777) — {2777) | 34,586 31809
Share-based payments - — — — - — 666 €66
Tax on share-based payments — — — — — — 10 10
Investment in own shares — — - — 1563) (563) — {563}
Cost of employee benefit trust
shares 1ssued to employees — — — —_ 880 680 (680) —
Equity dividends 13 — — — — — — | {12,832) {12.832)
At 31 March 2012 2,266 27.288 3.9 12,156 {1,106) 14,971 [176,937 221,462

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders equity
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2012

2012

2001

Notes £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 39,968 34,492

Income tax 12(a) 17,769 156,303
Net finance revenue 9, 10 (1,238} {636)
Amortisation of intangible assets 17 3.451 2,890
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 18 2,161 1,893
Lossf{gain) on disposal of property plant and equipment 7 35 {49)
Share-based payments 28 666 1564

Ditference between pension contrnibutions paid and amounts recegnised

in the Consolidated income statement {413} (2,321)
Changes in working capital

Trade and other receivables 5,462 (27,357}
Trade and other payables {2,848} 19,872

Changes to fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts {308} {948}
Cash generated from operating activities before tax 64,705 44 680
Income taxes paid {16,927} {13,878)
Net cash generated from operating activities 47,778 30,804
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 18 {2,601} (2 087)
Purchase of intangible assets 17 {583} {527)
Acquisition of subsidiares and business undertakings, net of cash acquired 15 (5,749]) (13 390)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 110 98
Interest received 9 1,471 1,165

Purchase of treasury deposits (net} 22 (7,280) (16 447)
Net cash used in investing activities (14,632) {31,188)
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid i0 {22) (13)
Purchase of own shares 30(b) (563) {(430)
Proceeds from the issue of shares 30¢{a) —_ 2

Dividends paid to equity heolders of the parent 13 {12,832) {11,703}
Net cash flows used in financing activities {13.417) (12,144)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash eqguivalents 19,729  ({12,528)
Net fareign exchange difference {1,245) {456)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 22 30,185 43169

Closing cash and cash equivalents 22 48,669 30.185

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thus Consolidated cash flow statement
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Financial staterments

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Corporate information
AVEVA Group plc 1s a public imited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom The address of the registered office
IS given on the inside back cover AVEVA Group plc's shares are publicly traded on the Official List of the London Stock Exchange

2 Basis of preparation

The accounting policies which follow set out those policies which apply i preparing the financial statements for the year ended

31 March 2012 The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (£) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand {£000) except when otherwise indicated

The Group presents a non-GAAP performance measure on the face of the Consolidated income statement The Directors believe
that this alternative measure of profit provides a reliable and consistent measure of the Group's underlying performance The face
of the Consolidated income statement presents adjusted profit before tax and reconciles this to profit before tax as required to be
presented under the applicable accounting standards Adjusted earnings per share 1s calculated having adjusted profit after tax for
the same items and therr tax effect The term adjusted profit 1s not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable with simifarly
titled profit measures reported by other companies It s not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, GAAP measures of profit

a) Statement of compliance

The Consolidated financial statements of AVEVA Group plc and all its subsidianies (the Group) have been prepared In accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as adopted by the European Union as they apply to the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 The Group's financial statements are also consistent with IFRSs as issued by the IASB

The parent Company financial statements of AVEVA Group ple have been prepared n accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) and are included on pages 84 to 87

b) Restatement of segment disclosure and comparative information

From 1 Apnl 2011, the Group was reorganised so as to place greater emphasis on Enterprise Solutions, which includes AVEVA NET
and associated preducts The Group 1S now organised Into two lings of business being Engineering & Design Systems and Enterprise
Solutions These two [ines of business are now considered to be the two reportable segments for the Group and the segment
information in note 6 has been presented accordingly and information for the prior periods has been restated

Sirmilarty 1n line with the Group's development and expanding business, the Directors have recensidered the categonsation of
expenses within the Income statement and have decided to make four discrete amendments The Directors believe that the revised
Income statement presentation more appropriately reflects the nature of the Group's business and reflects what has become
industry practice The comparative Income statement for the year ended 31 March 2011 has been restated to provide a consistent
companson Research and Development costs of £28,082 000 for the year ended 31 March 2011 which were previously included
within Cost of sales are now presented separately on the face of the Income statement Corporate IT costs of £3 088,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2011 that were previously reported within Cost of sales are now included with Administrative expenses and
Corporate marketing costs of £1,743,000 that were previously included in Administrative expenses are now included within Selling
and distnbution expenses Solution consuliting labour costs for Enterprise Selutions that were previously disclosed as part of Selling
and distribution expenses are now part of Cost of sales These costs amounted to £10 778,000 for the year ended 31 March 2311

c) Basis of consoldation

The Consclidated financial statements compnise the financial statements of AVEVA Group plc and its subsidiaries as at 31 March
each year The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared using existing GAAP for each country of operation Adjustments
are made to translate any differences that may exist between the respective local GAAP and IFRSs

Inter-company balances and transactions including unrealised profits ansing from inira-Group transactions have been elminated
in full

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control 1s obtained by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred out of the Group

On acquisition, assets and habilities of subsidianes are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition with any excess
of the cost of acquisition over this value being capitalised as goodwill

d) Adoption of new and revised standards
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations dunng the year which have not had
a material effect on the Consolidated financial statements in the penod of initial application The other pronouncemants which
came into force during the year were not relevant to the Group

Standards:
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosure (revised} The revised standard has a new, clearer definiion of a related party with Inconsistencies
under the previous definition having been removed

Improvements to the International Financial Reporting Standards (issued 2010)

Interpretations;
IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement The amendments now enable recognition of an asset in the form
of prepaid minimum funding contributions

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments  The interpretation provides guidance on the accounting for ‘debt
for equity swaps' from the perspective of the borrower
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2 Basis of preparation continued

d) Adoption of new and revised standards continued

New standards and interpretations not yet effective

Duning the year, the IASB and IFRIC have issued the following standards (although in some cases not yet adopted by the EU} which

are expected to have implications for the reporting of the financial position or performance of the Group or which will require
additional disclosures in future financial years

Effective for periods
commencing afrer

IFRS 7 Amendment — Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets 1 July 2011
IAS 12 Amendment — Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets 1 January 2012
IAS 1 Amendment — Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income 1 July 2012
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {1ssued n 2010} 1 January 2013
IFRS 10 Consohlidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
|AS 27 Revised - Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
1AS 28 Revised - Investments 1n Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013
1A5 19 Revised — Employee Benefits 1 January 2013

The Group intends to adopt these standards in the first accounting period after the effective date The Directors do not anticipate
that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a material effect on the Consolidated financial statements i the
pericd of initial application

3 Significant accounting estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and octher key sources of judgement and estimation uncertainty at the Balance sheat
date that have a significant nisk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilittes within the next
financial year are discussed below

a) Retirement benefit obligations

The determination cf the Group's obligations and expense for defined benefit pensions 1s dependent on the selection, by the Board of
Directors of assumptions used by the pension scheme actuary in calculating these amounts The assumptions apphed are described
in note 28 and include, amongst others, the discount rate, the inflation rate, rates of increase in salaries and mortality rates While the
Directors consider that the assumptions are appropriate, significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in
assumptions may materially affect the reported amount of the Group s future pension obligations, actuanal gans and losses included
in the Consoclidated statement of comgrehensive income in future years and the future staff costs The carrying amount of retirement
benefit cbligations at 31 March 2012 was £9 875,000 {2011 - £3,027,000}

b) Pravasion for impairment of recewables

The Group makes provision for the impairment of receivables on a customer specific basis The determination of the appropriate
level of provision involves an estimate of the potential nsk of default or non-payment by the Group s customers and management
consider a number of factors including the financial strength of the customers, the level of default that the Group has suffered in
the past, the age of the receivable outstanding and the Group's trading expenence with that customer The provision for impairment
of recevables at 31 March 2012 was £3,527 000 (2011 - £3,643,000)

¢) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of software icences when these are combined with the delivery of significant implementation or customisation
services 1s recognised in line with the delivery of the services to the customer This policy involves the assessment of which
customer projects include significant custormisation or implementanon and also an assessment of the stage of completion of such
projects We generally only enter into this type of contract in our Enterpnse Solutions segment but the assessments and estimates
used by the Group could have a significant impact on the amount and timing of revenue recognised on a project

4 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Revenue

The Group generates Its revenue principally from hcensing the nghts to use its software products directly to end users and to a lesser
extent indwectly through resellers Revenue 1s measured at fair value of the consideration receved or recevable and represents the
amounts recevable for goods and services provided in the ordinary course of business, net of discounts and sales taxes bt comprises
initial heence fees, annual fees and rental licence fees, together with income from consultancy and other related services

For each revenue stream, revenue Is not recognised unless and until
« aclear contractual arrangement can be evidenced,

« delivery has been made in accordance with that contract,

« If required, contractual acceptance crrteria have been met, and

» the fee has been agreed and collectability i1s probable
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

a) Revenue continued

Imtral/annual Licence agreements

Users are charged an initial licence fee upon Installatron for a set number of users together with an obligatory annual fee, which s
charged every year Annual fees consist of the continuing nght to use and customer support and maintenance which includes core
product upgrades and enhancements and remote support services Users must continue to pay annual fees in order to mantain the
rnight to use the software

[nitial licence fees are recognised once the above conditions have been met Annual fees are recognised on a straght-line basis over
the perod of the contract which is typically twelve months If annual fees are charged at a discount, an amount 18 allocated out of
the imitial licence fee at fair market value based on the value aestablished when annual fees are charged separately to customers

Rental licence agreements
As an alternative to the initial icence fee plus ennual fee model, the Group also supphes its software under three different types
of rental hcence agreement

Rental licence fees which are invoiced monthly and which are cancellable by the customer are recognised on @ monthly basis

Other rental licence agreements are invoiced at the start of the contracted penod, which i1s typically one year, are non-canceliable
and consist of two separate components, the night to use and customer support and mamntenance Revenue in respect of the
customer support and maintenance element 1s valued at fair market value based on the value established when annual fees are
charged separately to customer This component Is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the contract The residual
amount representing the impled imitial fee element 1s recognised upfront provided all of the above eritena have been met Where
uncenainty exisis and it 1s not possible to reliably determine the fair value of the customer support and maintenance element,

all revenue 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over the penod of the contract

The Group also heenses its software using a token licensing model Under this model, a "basket of tokens’ representing licences
to use different software products over a defined penod s granted, which enables the customer to draw these down as and when
required Where the customer commits In advance to a specified number of tokens over a defined period a proportion of revenue
1$ recognised with an appropnate element deferred for customer support and maintenance obiligations, subject to the above
recogrition condiions being met Where the customer 1s charged in arrears revenue Is recognised based on actual number

of tokens used

Services consist primarily of consultancy, implementanon services and training and are performed under separate service
arrangements Revenue from these services 1s recogmsed as the services are performed and stage of completion is determined
by reference to the costs incurred as a proportion of the total estmated costs of the service project If a contract cannot be reliably
estimated, revenue is recogrised only to the extent that costs have been incurred Provision 1s made as soon as a loss 1s foreseen

Services
\
|

If an arrangement includes both icence and service elements, licence fee revenue 1s recognised upon delivery of the software
provided that services do not include significant custorisation or modification of the base product and the payment terms for
licences are not subject to acceptance cntenia In all other cases revenues from both licence and service elements are recognised
as services are performed

b) Foreign currencies

The functional and presentational cusrency of AVEVA Group plc 15 Pounds Sterling (€} Transactions in foreign currencies are initally
recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the Balance shest date All differences are taken to
the Consolidated income statement

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a fareign cuirency are translaied using the exchange rate as |
at the date of the initial transaction

The subsidiaries have a number of different functional currencies As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of these
overseas subsidiaries are translated into Pounds Sterling (£} at the rate of exchange ruling at the Balance sheet date and thewr
Income statements are translated at the wesghted average exchange rates for the year Exchange differences anising on the
retranslation are taken directly to the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

¢) Exceptional items

The Group discloses items of both Income and expense which are exceptional by wirtue of their size or incidence so as to allow a
better understanding of the underlying trading performance of the Group The Group includes the costs of significant restructuring
exercises, fees associated with business combinations and costs incurred in integrating acquired companies

d) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions 1s initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities Following intial recognition, goedwill s
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generanng unit and part of the operation within that unit 1s disposed of the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of 1s included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gan or loss on disposal of
the operation Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance 1s measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed

of and the portion of the cash-generatng unit retained

if the potential benefit of tax losses or other deferred tax assets does not satisfy the cntena in IFRS 3 for separate recognition when
a business combination i1s imibally accounted for but 1s subsequently realised, the Group recegnises the deferred tax income Iin the

Consolidated income statement ‘
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and from a business acquisition are capitalised at farr value as at the
date of acquisition Following initial recognition the cost model 1s applied to each class of intangible assets as set out below

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets, excluding development costs, 1s taken to the Consolidated income statement
in the year in which 1t 1s incurred Internal software development expenditure 1s recognised as an intangible asset only after its
technical feasibility and commercial viability can be demonstrated

Useful lives are also examined on an annual basis and adjustments where applicable, are made on a prospectve basis Amortisation
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic lives of the asset, which are as follows

Years
Developed technelogy 5-12
Customer relationships 10-20
Other software 3
Purchased software rights 5-10

f) Research expendrture
Research expenditure 1s written off in the year of expenditure

g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less depreciation and any accumutated impairment losses

Depreciation I1s calculated on a straight-line basis 1o write down the assets to their estimated residual value over the useful economic
life of the asset as follows

Yaars
Computer equipment 3
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment 6-8
Motor vehicles 4

Leasehold bulldings and improvements are amortised on a straightine basis over the period of the lease (3 to 49 years) or useful
economic life if shorter

h) Impairment of assets

Goodwill ansing on acquisition 15 allocated to cash-generating units expected to benefit from the combination’s synergies and
represents the lowest level at which goodwill s monitored for internal management purpeses and generates cash flows which

are iIndependent of other cash-generating units  The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated 1s tested for iImparrment annually or when events or changes in circumstance indicate that it might be impaired The
carrying values of property plant and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes In circumstance indicate the carrying value may be impaired If any such indication exists and where the carrying values
exceed the estimated recaverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amount The
recoverable amount is the greater of net seling price and value in use In assessing value In use the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset For an asset that does not generate largely Independent cash inflows the recoverable amount ts
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs Impairrment losses are recognised In the Incorme staterment in
the administrative expenses line item

1) Trade and other recevables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30 to 90 day terms, are recogmsed and carmed at onginal invoice amount less an allowance
for any uncollectible amounts An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable

Bad debts are wntten off when identified

1) Cash and cash equwalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Consolidated batance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an onginal
maturity of three months or less The carmying amount of these approximates their fair value For the purpose of the Consclidated cash flow
staternent, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts

k) Derwvative financral instruments

The only denvative financial instruments the Group holds are forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce exposure to foreign
exchange nisk The Group does not hold or issue denivative financial instruments for speculative purposes The Group has not applied
hedge accounting during the year and therefore all forward foreign exchange contracts have been marked-to-market and are held at
fair value on the Consolidated balance sheet with any movements being recorded in the Consaolidated income statement Fair value
15 estimated using the settlement rates prevailing at the period end

1) Leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense In the Consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

m) Taxation
Deferred income tax 1s provided using the hability method, on all temporary differences at the Balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes

Deferred income tax liabilities are recogrised for all taxable temporary differences

« except where the deferred income tax liability anses from goodwill amortisation or the initial recogmtion of an asset or liability
in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss, and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets are recogrised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused 1ax assets and unused
tax losses to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utiised

« except where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference anses from the initiat recognition
of an asset or hability in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the ume of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, and

» Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit wiil be available against which the temporary differences can be utlised

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each Balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 13
no longer prebable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised

Deferred income tax assets and liabiliies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised
or the liability 15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date

The income tax effects of tems recorded in either other comprehensive income or equity are recognised in the Consolidated
statement of comprehensive income or the Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders equity respectively Otherwise,
income tax 1s recognised in the Consolidated income statement

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales taxes except

« where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of goods and services 15 not recoverable from the taxation authonty, in which case
the sales tax I1s recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable, and

« recewvables and payables are stated with the amount of sales taxes included

The net amount of sales taxes recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority 1s included as part of receivables or payables
in the Consolidated balance sheet

n) Post retirement benefits
The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, Sweden and Germany The Group also provides certain post
employment benefits to its South Korean employees

The UK defined benefit pensien scheme, previously avallable to all UK employees was closed 1o new applicants in 2002
UK employees are now offered membership of a defined contributton scheme

The German unfunded defined benefit scheme is closed to new applicants and provides benefits to three deferred members
following an acquisition in 1992 by Tnbon No current employees participate in the scheme Full provision has been made for the
liability on the Consolidated balance sheet The Group also operates a defined benefit pension scheme for one German employee

The Group provides pension arrangements 10 11s Swedish employees through an industry-wide defined benefit scheme It 1s not possible
to identfy the share of the underlying assets and liabilites in the scheme which 1s attributable to the Group on a fair and reasonable basis
Therefore the Group has apphed the provisions in |AS 13 to account for the scheme as if t was a defined contribution scheme:

For the defined benefit schemes, the defined benefit obligation 1s calculated annually for each plan by qualified external actuanes using the
projected unit credit method which attributes entitlement to benefits to the current penod {to determine current service cost) and to the current
and prior peniods {to determine the present value of defined benefit obligaton) The retirement benefit hability in the Consohdated balance sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation {using a discount rate derved from a published index of AA rated corporate
bonds) as reduced by the far value of plan assets out of which the obhgations are to be settled directly Far value 1s based on market price
information and in the case of quoted secunties 1s the published bid pnce The value of a net penston benefit asset 1s restncted to the present
value of any amount the Group expects to recover by way of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions  The current service
cost Is recogrused in the Consclidated income staterment as an employee benefit expense The interest element of the defined benefit cost
represents the change in prasent value of scheme obligations resulting from the passage of ume and 1s determined by applying the discount
rate to the opening present value of the benefit obligation, taking into aceount matenal changes in the obligaton dunng the year The expected
return on plan assets 15 based on an assessment made at the beginrung of the year of long-term market returns on scherme assets, adjusted
for the effect on the farr value of plan assets of contributions received and benefits paid during the year The expected retum on plan assets
and the interest cost 1s recognised in the Consolidated income siatement as finance revenue and finance expense respectively

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments or changes in actuanal assumptions are credited or charged in the
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period 1in which they anse

The Group also operates defined contribution pension schemes for a number of UK and non-UK employees Contributions to defined
contribution plans are charged to profit before tax as they become payable
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

0) Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the farr value at the date at which they are
granted, further details of which are given in note 28 In valuing equity-settled transactions, ne account 1s taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions inked to the price of the shares of AVEVA Group plc {market conditions}

The cost of equity-settled transactions 1s recogrised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, aver the period in which the
performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (vesting
date} The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date untit the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting penod has expired and the Group's best estrmate of the number of equity iInstruments that will ultimately vest

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ulumately vest, except for awards where vesting 1s condiional upon a market
condition which are treated as vesting irespective of whether or not the market condition 1s satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satrsfied

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a mimimum an expense I1s recognised as If the terms had not been
modified In addition, an expense 1s recogmsed for any increase In the value of the transaction as a result of the modification,
as measured at the date of modification

Where an equity-settled award 1s cancelled, 1t 1s treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation and any expense not yet
recognised for the award 1s recognised immecdiately However, if a new award 1s substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that 1t 1s granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
orniginal award, as descnbed in the previous paragraph

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share, subject
to an estimate of whether performance cond:tions will be met

p) Employee benefit trust

The Group has established an employee benefit trust {AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008}, which is a separately administered
trust and 1s funded by loans from Group companies The assets of the trust compnse shares in AVEVA Group plc and cash balances
The Group recognises assets and habilities of the trust in the Consolidated financial statements and shares held by the trust are
recorded at cost as a deduction from shareholders’ equnty

Consideration received for the sale of shares held by the trust is recognised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds
from the sale and the onginal cost being taken to retained earnings

5 Revenue
An analysis of the Group's revenue 15 as follows
2012 201
£000 £000
Annual fees 47,779 45,713
Rental licence fees 90,111 71,263
Recgurring services —_ 223
Total recurring revenue 137,890 117,199
Initial icence fees 37,289 40,960
Training and services 20,756 15,829
Total revenue 195,935 173,988
Finance revenue 3,962 3,584

199,897 177,672

Services consist of consultancy, implementation semvices and training fees

6 Segment information

From 1 Apnil 2011, the Group was reorgarised so as to place greater emphasis on Enterpnse Solutions which includes AVEVA NET
and associated products The Graup 1s now orgamised into two lines of business being Engineering & Design Systerns and Enterprise
Solutions These two lines of business are now considered to be the two reportable segments for the Group

Each line of business is managed separately due to the diffenng requirements of each market The products of each of the lines
of business are taken to market by a shared sales force that is itself organised into three geographical sales divisions Asia Pacific,
Americas, and Europe Middle East and Africa (EMEA) Each sales division comprises a number of subsidiary entihies and each
subsidiary 15 granted distribution nghts to hicense the Group s software to customers in their respective territories

The Executive Board compnsing the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Chuef Operating Officer, Chief Technology Officer,
Executive Vice President Sales, Executive Vice President Business Strategy and Marketing and Executive Vice President Human
Resources and Business Services, monitors the operating results of the ines of business for the purposes of making decisions about
performance assessment and resource allocation Performance 1s evaluated based on adjusted profit contnibution using the same
accounting policies as adopted for the Group's financial statements There 1s no inter-segment revenue Balance sheet information
15 not included in the information provided 1o the Executive Board Support functions such as Head Office departments are controlled
and monitored centrally

Information concerning the Group's segments 1s set out below Disclosure for the year ended 31 March 2011 has been restated
to reflect the new organisational structure and lines of business reporting
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6 Segment information continued
Information concerning the Group s segments 1s set out below

Enginesring  Enterprize

B Dasign Soluticns Total
Year snded 31 March 2012 £000 £000 £000
Income statement
Revenue
Annual fees 43,063 4,716 47,779
Rental icence fees 86,864 3,247 90,111
Initial licence fees 33,197 4,092 37,289
Traiming and services 9,350 11,406 20,756
Segment revenue 172,474 23,461 195,935
Operating costs (39,032) (27.878) [66,910)
Segment profit/{loss} contribution 133,442 {4,417) 129,025
Reconcihation of segment profit contribution to profit before tax
Shared selling and distribution expenses (46,713)
Other shared operating expenses {21,274)
Net finance revenue 1,238
Adjusted profit before tax 62,276
Exceptional items and other normalised adjustments’ {4,539)
Profit before tax 57,737

* Normahsed adjustrnents include amortisation of 1ntangible assets {excluding cther software) share-based paymanis and gains on fair value of forward foreign

exchange contracts

Engineering & Design revenue includes £1,305 000 relating to the acquired business of LFM Software Limited

Engineerning Enterprise
& Dasign Solutions Total
Year endad 31 March 2011 (restated} £000 £000 £000
Income statement
Revenue
Annual fees 42,031 3.682 45,713
Rental hcence fees 66,585 4,678 71,263
Initial icence fees 37.879 3,081 40,960
Traiming and services 8.562 7.490 16,052
Segment revenue 155,057 18,931 173,988
Qperating costs (38 599) (24,817) (63,416}
Segmaent profit/{loss) contnibution 116,458 {5,888} 110,572
Reconciliation of segment profit contribution to profit before tax
Shared selling and distribution expenses (41,005}
Other shared operating expenses {15,482}
Net finance revenue 635
Adjusted profit before tax 54,720
Exceptional items and other normalsed adjustments {4.925)
Profit before tax 49,795
Analysis of revenue by geographical location
Yaar snded 31 March 2012
Asia Pactfic EMEA Amerlcas Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue
Annual fees 20,497 23141 4,141 437,779
Rental licence fees 21230 41 362 27,519 90,11
initial hcence fees 20,30 14 684 2,304 37,289
Training and services 2,378 14,169 4,209 20,756
Total revenue 64,406 93,356 38,173 195,935
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6 Segment information continued
Analysis of revenue by geographical location continued

Year ended 31 March 2011

Asia Pagific EMEA Amerncas Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue
Annual fees 18,478 22,400 4,835 45713
Rental icence fees 21,020 30076 20,167 71,263
Recurnng services — 50 173 223
Initial icence fees 24,250 15,015 1,695 40,960
Training and services 2576 9,316 3,837 15,829
Total revenue 66,324 76,857 30,807 173,988

Other segmental chsclosures

The Company s cauntry of domicile 1s the UK Revenue attributed to the UK and all foreign countnies amounted to £16,608,000
and £179,326,000 {2011 - £14,661 000 and £159,327,000) respectively No individual country accounted for more than 10% of the
Group's total revenue Revenue 1s allocated to countries on the basts of the location of the gustomer

Non-current assets {excluding deferred tax assets) held in the UK and all foresgn countnes amounted to £11,647,000 and £45,650 000
{2011 - £13,622,000 and £41,096,000) respectively There are no matenal non-gurrent assets located in an individual country outside
of the UK

No single external customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group's total revenue (2011 - none}
Further informatian concerning revenue by type of product and service 1s disclosed 1n note 5

7 Profit from operations
Profit from aperations 1s stated after charging

2012 201
£000 £000
Depreciation of owned property plant and equipment 2,161 1893
Amortisation of intangible assets
—included m Research and Development costs 2,641 2,206
—ncluded in administrative expenses 83 g4
—included in selling and distribution expenses 727 590
Staff costs 81,811 72,532
Operating lease rentals — minimum lease payments 4,534 4,442
Loss/igain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 35 {48}
Net foreign exchange losses 1,020 2,114

During the year the Group (including its subsidiarnies) obtained the following services from the Group s auditor at costs
as detailed below

2012 201
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company auditor for the audit of parent Company and Consolidated financial statements 250 290
Fees payable to the Company auditor and its associates for other services
— the audit of Company's substdiaries pursuant to legislation 188 172
— tax assurance services 65 62
— other tax services 154 67
- corporate finance servicas {transaction support) 144 —
- other services pursuant to legislation 5 7
806 598
8 Exceptional items

Exceptional items comprise acquisition and integration costs

In 2011/12 costs totalling £813,000 were incurred on acquisiion and integration activines These costs principally refate to fees
paid and payable to professional adwisers for legal, due diligence and taxation advice and assistance The costs related to the
LLFM Software Limited acquisition and the integration of Logimatic Software A/S

In 2010/11 costs totalling £1,535,000 were incurred in completing and integrating the acquisitions of Logimatic Software A/S and of
the trade and assets frorm ADB Systemer AS These costs included due diligence and professional fees and other integration costs
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9 Finance revenue

2012 2011
£000 £000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 2,491 2419
Bank interest receivable 1,471 1,165

3,962 3.584

10 Finance expense

2012 2011
£000 £000
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 2,702 2,935
Bank interest payable and similar charges 22 14

2,724 2.849

11 Staff costs
Staff costs relating to employees {including Executive Directors) are shown below
2012 201
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 67,165 59,425
Social secunty costs 8,474 7,445
Pension costs 5,506 4121
Expense of share-based payments 666 1,841

81,811 72,532

The average monthly number of persons (including Executive Directors) employed by the Group was as follows

2012 2011

Number Number

Research, development and product support 347 248
Sales marketing and customer support 515 475
Administration 191 179
1,053 902

Drectors’ remuneration

The disclosure of an individual Director’'s remunerauon and interests required by the Companies Act 2006 and those specified for
audit by the Lisung Rules of the Financial Services Authority 1s shown In the audited section of the Remuneration Commuttee report
on pages 42 and 43 and forms part of these financial statements

12 Income tax expense

a) Tax on profit
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 are as follows

2002 200
£000 £000
Tax charged in Consolidated income statement
Current tax
UK corporation tax 7195 7,910
Adjustments 1n respect of prior penods {161) (258)
7,034 7,652
Foreign tax 10,000 10,371
Adjustments in respect of pnor periods 1,393 (1,280)
11,393 9,031
Total current tax 18,427 16.683
Deferred tax
Oniginatton and reversal of temporary differences {184) {1,171}
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (474) {209}
Total deferred tax {note 27} {658) (1,380}
Total ncome tax expense reported in Consolhidated income statement 17,769 15,303
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12 Income tax expense continued
a) Tax on profit continued

2012 201
£000 £000
Tax relating to items (charged)/credited directly to Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Deferred tax on retranslation of intangible assets {62) 200
Deferred tax on actuanal {loss)/gain on defined benefit pension scheme {1,639) 2,309
Tax {credit}/charge reported in Consolidated statement of comprehensive income {1,701) 2 509

b) Reconaibation of the total tax charge
The differences between the total tax charge shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corporatton
tax to the profit before tax are as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000
Tax on Group profit before tax at standard UK corporation tax rate of 26% {2011 — 28%) 15,012 13,943
Effects of
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes 189 744
— irrecoverable withholding tax 1,620 2,514
- movement on unprovided deferred tax balances {291) {120)
- change in UK tax rate for deferred tax balances 91 {15)
— differing tax rates on overseas earnings 390 (18)
— adjustments in respect of prior years 758 {1,747)
income tax expense reported in Consolidated income statement 17,769 15,303

At the Balance sheet date the UK government had substantively enacted a 2% reduction in the main rate of UK corporation tax from
26% to 24% effective from 1 April 2012 The government has also proposed reducing the UK corporation tax rate by a further 1%
per annum to 22% by 1 April 2014 However, these further rate changes had not been substantively enacted at the Balance sheet
date and therr effects are not therefore included in these financial statements We do not expect that the enactment of these
changes wilt have a material impact on the deferred tax balance of the Group

13 Dividends paid and proposed on equity shares

2012 2011
£000 £000
Declared and paid duning the year
Interim 2011/12 dwidend paid of 4 00 pence {2010/11 — 3 36 pence) per ordinary share 2,715 2,280
Final 2010/11 dividend paid of 14 88 pence {2009/10 - 13 9 pence) per ordinary share 10,117 9423

12,832 11,703

Proposed for approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
Final proposed divtdend 2011/12 of 17 00 pence (2010/11 — 14 89 pence) per ordinary share 11,558 10,121
The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 12 July 2012 and has not been

included as a liabihity in these financial statements If approved at the Annual General Meeting the final dividend will be paid on
27 July 2012 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 22 June 2012

14 Earnings per share

2012 201
Pence Pence
Earntngs per share for the year

- basic 58 86 50 85
- diluted 58 73 50 56

Adjusted earnings per share for the year
- basic 63 81 56 08
- diluted 63 66 55 76
2012 20m
Number Numbar
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 67,901,203 67,831,192
Effect of dilution employee share options 154,890 384,643
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 68,056,093 68,215,835
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14 Earnings per share continued

The calculations of bastc and diluted earrings per share are based on the net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for the
year of £39,968,000 (2011 - £34,492,000) Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year Diluted earnings per share
amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be 1ssued on the conversion of all
the potentially dilutive share options nto ordinary shares Detalls of the terms and canditions of share options are provided in note 29

Details of the calculation of adjusted earnings per share are set out below

2012 2011
£000 £000
Profit after tax for the year 39,968 34 492
Intangible amorusation (excluding software) 3,368 2,797
Share-based payments 666 1,541
Gain on farr value of forward foreign exchange contracts {308) {948)
Exceptional items 813 1535
Tax effect {1,180} {1 379)
Adjusted profit after tax 43,327 38,038

The denominators used are the same as those detalled above for both basic and diluted earnings per share

The adjustment made to profit after tax in calculating adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share has been adjusted for the tax
effects of the tems adjusted

The Directors believe that adjusted earnings per share 1s a more representative presentation of the underlying performance
of the business

15 Business combinations

LFM Software Limted

On 7 Qctober 2011, the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Z+F UK Limited a UK software company which
develops and markets laser scanning software for the capture and management of laser scan data The company's name has since
been changed to LFM Software Limited The acquisition was satisfied for net consideration of £8 3 mullion on a debt free/cash free
basis As part of this acquisition, Z+F GmbH, the former parent company of Z+F UK Limited, has also been granted a licence to
continue 1o distribute the Z+F UK software together with 2+F GmbH's laser scanrung hardware products This initial licence has
been granted free of royalty up to the value of the first £1 million of royalties over the next five years

Acquisition costs (including due diigence and professional fees) and integration costs have been included in the Consolidated
Income statement

Details of the provisional fair values of the net assets acquired and goodwill Is set out below, which includes purchased intangibles
consisting of developed technology and custormner relationships Fair values also reflect an adjustment of £422,000 to deferred
revenue to ahgn with the Group's accounung policy for revenue

Book value Fair value
£000 £000
Intangible assets —_ 3,288
Property, plant and equipment 109 109
Trade and other receivables 397 397
Cash and cash equivalents 2,188 2188
Trade and other payables (B866) {444}
Current tax liabihties {82) {82}
Deferred tax habilities {4) {859}
Net assets acquired 1,742 4,597
Goodwill 4,340
Total consideration 8,937
Satisfied by

Cash 7,937
Royalty free software 1.000
B8.937

Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration 7.937
Less cash and cash equivalents acquired {2.188})
5,749

From the date of acquisiion to 31 March 2012, the business contributed £1,305,000 to revenue and £239,000 to profit before tax

Goodwill represents the value of the assembled workforce and the future synergy benefits of iIntegraung the business in the AVEVA
Group The assembled workforce brings product development skills and expertise, service delivery skills and domain knowledge of
the end user markets to the Group
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15 Business combinations continued

Logimatic Software A/S

In the prior year on 30 June 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Logimatic Software A/S, a Danish company which
provides material control and production planning software to the Marine industry The total cash consideration paid {net of cash and
cash equivalents acquired) was £9,301,000

The farr value of the assets acquired consisted mainly of developed technology of £4 934,000, customer relationships of £2,568,000
and goodwll of £5,561,000

Acgusthon of trade and assets from ADB Systemer AS (ADB)

{n the prior year on 30 June 2010, the Group acquired the trade and certain assets of ADB’s Oul & Gas business, including intellectual
property, from a Norwegian company, ADB Systemer AS The acquisition provides software products and service delivery capability
to deliver information integrity solutions to Owner Operators In the Ol & Gas industry The total cash consideration paid was £4 088 000

The fair value of the assets acquired consisted mainly of developed technology of £2 125 000 and goodwill of £2,010 000

16 Goodwill
£000
At 1 Apnl 2010 18,177
Additions 7,571
Exchange adjustment 1786
At 31 March 2011 27534
Additions 4,340
Exchange adjustment (1,035}
At 31 March 2012 30,839
Goodwill acquired in a business combination s allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expected
1o benefit from that business combinauon During 2011/12 and following the change in the defimtion of the Group s operating
segments, the cash-generating urits to which balances of goodwill are allocated have also been re-assessed The carrying
amount of goodwill has been allocated 10 CGUs as follows
Enginewring Entsrprisa

& Design Solutions Total
Year ended 31 March 2012 £000 £000 £000
On the acguisition of
Tribon Solutions AB 16,322 — 16,322
Realitywave Inc — 981 981
AEA Technology 1,084 — 1,084
Kyokuto Boeki Kaisha 229 — 229
Logimatic Software A/S —_ 5,731 5,731
ADRB Systemer AB — 2,152 2,152
LFM Software Limited 4,340 —_ 4,340

21,975 8,864 30,839

Engineenng Entarprise

& Design Solutions Tatal
Year ended 31 March 2011 £000 £000 £000
Cn the acquisition of
Tribon Selutions AB 17027 — 17027
Realitywave Inc — 978 978
AEA Technology 1,084 — 1,084
Kyokuto Boeki Kaisha 229 —_ 229
Logimatc Software A/S — 6,024 6,024
ADB Systemer AB — 2,192 2,192

18,340 9,194 27534
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are deterrmuned from value in use calcutations The key assumptions for the value In use
calculations are those regarding discount rates and growth rates Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs

The growth rates are based on management’s estimates of growth in those specific geographical and industry sector markets based
on past experience and external market information

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for the year
ending 31 March 2013 together with the most recent three year business plan and extrapolates cash flows for future years based on
an average estimated growth rate of 4% for each CGU (2011 - 2%) representing the long-term average growth rate far the Group's
CGUs Future cash flows are discounted in line with the weighted average cost of capital of approximately 12% pre-tax (2011 = 10%)
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16 Goodwill continued

Considening the sensitivity levels for the two cash-generating unuts

Engineenng & Design Systems

Whilst 1t 1s concelvable that a key assumption in the caleulation could change, the Directors believe that no reasonably foreseeable
changes to key assumptions would resuli in an imparment of goodwill, such 1s the margin by which the estimated recoverable
amount exceeds the carrying value

Enterpnse Solutions
Headroom for goodwill based on current forecast 1s £36 5 million Sensitivity levels on these calculations indicate that impairrment
would need to be considered If

- discount rate of 18 5% or higher had been used, or
- a long-term growth rate of 0 §% or lower had been used

17 Intangible assets !
Purchased
Davaloped Customer Other software
technolegy relabiorshups software nghts Total
£000 £000 £000 £0060 £000

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2010 12,507 7.760 1342 5,743 27352
Additicns -— — 66 461 627
Acgquisitions 7.059 2,568 — 6 9,633
Exchange adjustment 732 804 {7) (2} 1527
At 31 March 2011 20,298 11,132 1,401 6 208 39,039
Additions — — 38 545 583
Acquisitions 2,433 855 — — 3288
Disposals — — (8) — {8)
Exchange adjustment {568) (482) (9) (2) {1,081)
At 31 March 2012 22,163 11,505 1,422 6,751 41,841
Amortisation
At 1 April 2010 9,024 2,277 1,190 4 290 16,781
Charge for the year 1,761 592 93 444 2890
Exchange adjustment 466 207 {1} —_ 672
At 31 March 2011 11,251 3,076 1,282 4,734 20 343
Charge for the year 2,248 722 83 397 3451
Disposals — — (8) — (8)
Exchange adjustment (387) {144) (14} {5} (550)
At 31 March 2012 13,113 3,654 1,343 5,126 23,236
Net book value
At 31 March 2010 3483 5,483 152 1,453 10 571
At 31 March 2011 9,047 8 056 119 1,474 18,696
At 31 March 2012 9,050 7,851 79 1,625 18,605

For the purposes of the adjusted earrings per share calculation {note 14}, intangible asset amorusation excludes the charge relating
1o other software of £83 000 {2011 - £93 000)

Developed technology

Developed technology includes the MARS technology which was acquired as part of the acquisition of Logimatic Sottware A/S
in 2010/11, the ADB technology that was also acquired 1n 2010/t 1 and the LFM software acquired n 2011/12 Ali amorusation
15 calculated using the straight-ine method over perieds of five five and ten years respectively

Customer relationships

The customer relationships intangible asset Includes ihose relauonships acquired as pant of the acquisiion of Logimatic Software A/S
during 2010/11 and those acquired 1n 2011/12 as part of the acquisition of LFM Software Limited The valug of these relationships
Is being amortised using the straightine method over lives of ten years
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18 Property, plant and equipment

Long

Fixtures

leasehold fitngs.
butldings and Computer and cffice Mator
improvements equipment aguipmant vehicles Totai
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 Apnil 2010 3,365 982 7,662 1,085 21833
Additions 78 1,174 492 342 2087
Acquisition — 55 3 — 58
Disposals — (334) {106} {211} {651}
Reclassification 330 — {330} — —
Exchange adjustment 4 28 {37} 7 2
At 31 March 2011 3778 10,744 7584 1,223 23329
Additions 96 1,395 796 314 2,601
Acgquisition — 20 89 — 108
Disposals - (539) {235) (383) {1157}
Reclassification — 166 (168) — —
Exchange adjustment (19) (123) (84) {8) (234)
At 31 March 2012 3,855 11,663 7,984 1,146 24,648
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2010 772 8,877 4,033 594 14,276
Charge for the year 224 712 668 289 1893
Disposals —_ 1326) (70} {206) (602}
Reclassification 30 — {30) — —
Exchange adjustment 4 20 14 3 4
At 31 March 2011 1030 92,283 4,815 680 15,608
Charge for the year 169 o586 768 287 2,161
Disposals —_ (523) {157} {332) (1012}
Reclassification 52 133 {185} — —
Exchange adjustment (10) (82) {57} {2) {151)
At 31 March 2012 1,241 9,767 4,985 613 16,606
Net book value
At 31 March 2010 2,583 944 3,529 491 7,557
At 31 March 2011 2,748 1461 2,969 543 77
At 31 March 2012 2,614 1,896 2,999 533 8,042
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19 Investments

At 31 March 2012 the Group had the following principal investments, which are held by AVEVA Solutions Limited unless stated and
all of which have been included in the consolidation

Country of
ineerporation
or ragistration

Princrpal activity

Description and proportion of
sharas and voting rights hald

AVEVA Solutions Limited’
AVEVA Inc

AVEVA GmbH

AVEVA SA

AVEVA East Asia Limited
Cadcentre Property Limited

AVEVA AS

AVEVA KK

AVEVA Sendinan Berhad *

AVEVA Asia Pacific Sendirian Berhad
AVEVA Korea Limited

AVEVA Information Technology

India Private Limited

AVEVA Pty Limited

AVEVA AB
AVEVA Pte Limited *

AVEVA (Shanghai) Consultancy Co
Limited

AVEVA Software and Services S A deCV
AVEVA Limited Liability Company
AVEVAde MexicoS DE RL deCV
AVEVA do Brasil Informatica Ltda

AVEVA Denmark A/S
AVEVA Columbia SAS

LFM Software Limited
AVEVA Chile Spa
AVEVA Solutions {Shanghal) Co Ltd

Great Britain
UsSA
Germany
France
Hong Kong
Great Britain

Norway
Japan
Malaysia
Malaysia
Korea

India
Australia

Sweden
Singapore

China
Mexico
Russia
Mexico
Brazil

Denmark
Columbia

Great Britain
Chile
China

Software development

and marketing
Software marketing
Software marketing
Software marketing
Software marketing
Holding property

Software marketing and

development, training
and consuitancy

Software marketing
Software marketing
Software marketing
Software marketing

Software marketing
Software marketing

Software development

and marketing
Software marketing

Services and traiming
Software marketing
Software marketing
Prowision of staff
Software marketing

Software marketing
and development

Software marketing

Software development

and marketing
Software marketing
Software marketing

100% ordinary shares of £1 each
100% commeon stock of US$1 each
100% ordinary shares of €25,565 each
100% ordinary shares of €30 each
100% ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100% ordinary shares of £1 each

100% ordinary shares of NOK 500 each
100% ordinary shares of 50,000 Yen each
A8% ordinary shares of MYR1 each

100% ordinary shares of MYR1 each

100% ordinary shares of KRW 500,000 each

100% ordinary shares of 10 Rupees each
100% ordinary shares of AUD$1 each

100% of ordinary shares of SEK 10 each
100% of ordinary shares of SGD 10 each

100% of issued share capital

100% of ordinary shares of US$50 each
100% of ordinary shares

100% of ordinary shares of MXP 1 each
100% of ordinary shares of BRL 1 each

100% of ordinary shares of DKK 1 each
100% of ordinary shares of COP 1 000 each

100% ordinary shares of £1 each
100% of ordinary shares of CLP 1,000 each
100% of ordinary shares

*  Held by AVEVA Group plc

** AVEVA Sendinan Berhad has been consolidated on the basis that the Group exercises contrel over its financial and cperating policies under the terms of the

shareheciders agreement
*** Held by AVEVA AB

20 Trade and other receivables

2012 201
£000 £000
Current
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade recevables 63,700 68,379
Prepayments and other recevables 3,613 3,714
Accrued income 741 926
68,054 73,089

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of between 30 and 90 days The Directors consider that the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value
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20 Trade and other receivables continued
2012

2011

£000 fooo
Non-current
Prepayments and other receivables 811 767
Non-current prepayments and other recevables consist of rental deposits for operating leases
As at 31 March 2012 the provision for impairment of receivables was £3 431,000 {2011 - £3,643,000} and an analysss of the
movements during the year was as follows
£000
At 1 Apnil 2010 6629
Amounts reversed, net of charge for the year (938}
Utiised (1,918}
Exchange adjustment (130)
At 31 March 2011 3.643
Charge for the year, net of amounts reversed 1,081
Utiised {1,199}
Exchange adjustment (94}
As at 31 March 2012 3.431
As at 31 March, the ageing anelysis of trade receivables {net of provision for impairment} was as follows
Past due not impaired
Naither past Less than Four to Eight to More than
due nor four aight twelve twelve
Total impairad maonths months months manths
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2012 63,700 40,418 172,818 3,291 1,829 344
201 68,379 42,092 22,103 2878 1,283 13
21 Financial assets
2012 2011
£000 £000
Current
Fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 223 —
22 Cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits
2012 2011
£000 £060
Cash at bank and in hand 48,426 30094
Short-term deposiis 243 81
Net cash and cash equivalents per cash flow 48,669 30,185
Treasury deposits 130,282 123002
178,951 153,187
Treasury deposits represent bank deposits with an onginal matunty of over three months
Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the mmediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposii rates
The fair vaiue of cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits I1s £178,951,000 (2011 - £153,187,000)
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23 Trade and other payables

2012 201
£000 £000
Current
Trade payables 4,799 3399
Social security, employee taxes and sales taxes 7,380 5,180
Accruals and other payables 21,290 24 522
Deferred revenue 33,540 36,366
Deferred consideration 976 —

67,995 69,467

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms of between 30 and 60 days Soc:al securnty, employee
taxes and sales taxes are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms of between 19 and 30 days The Directors consider
that the carrying amount of trade and other payables appreximates therr far value

Deferred consideration represents the remaining balance of the £1,000,000 of royalty-free software that formed part of the
consideration of the acquisition of LFM Software Limited

24 Financial liabilities

2012 2011
£000 £000
Current
Fair value of forward fore|gn exchange contracts —_— 85
Borrowing facilities

At 31 March 2012 the Group had no commitied bank overdraft or loan facilities

25 Obligations under leases
At 31 March 2012 the Group had the following future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as foilows

2012 201
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery buildings machinery
£000 £000 £000 £000
Not later than one year 3,392 214 3,768 243
After one but not more than five years 4,079 303 5,220 319
7471 517 8 988 562

The Group has entered into commercial leases on certain properties, motor vehicles and stems of equipment These leases have
a duration of between one and five years Certain property leases contan an option for renewal

26 Financial risk management

The Group s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short-term deposnts, treasury deposits and forward foreign exchange
contracts The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations

The Group also enters into forward foreign currency contracts to manage currency nsks ansing from the Group s operations

It1s and has been thraughout the period under review, the Group's policy that no speculative trading in financial instruments shall
be undertaken

The main nisks ansing from the Group's financial instruments are market nsk, credit sk and quidity risk The Board reviews and
agrees policies for managing such risks on a regular basis as summartsed below

a) Market risk

Market risk 15 the nsk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group's income
or the value of its holding of financial Instruments The objective of market sk managerment is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters

Interest rate risk

The Group helds net funds and hence 1ts interest rate rnisk 1s associated with short-term cash deposits and treasury deposits

The Group's overall objective with respect to holding these deposits s to maintain a balance between secunty of funds accessibility
and competitive rates of return

For the presentation of market rnisks, IFRS 7 requires sensitivity analyses that show the effects of hypothetical changes of relevant
nsk variables on prefit or loss and shareholders’ equity The Group 1s exposed to fluctuations in interest rates on its cash and cash
equivalents and treasury deposits The Group does not have any borrowings The impact ts determined by applying sensitised
interest rates to the cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposit balances

A 1% point decrease in the Sterling and US Dollar interest rates would have reduced interest ncome by approximately £1,302,000
(2011 - £925,000) and profit after tax by £963,000 (2011 - £666,000)
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26 Financial risk management continued
a) Market risk continued

Foreign currency nsk

Foreign currency nsk anses from the Group undertaking a significant number of foreign currenay transactions in the course of
operations These exposures anse from sales by business units in currencies other than the Groups functional currency of Sterling
The majority of costs are denorminated in the functional currency of the business unit The main exposures relate 1o the US Dollar
and Euro reflecting the fact that a significant proportion of the Group s revenue and cash receipts are denominated in these
currencies whilst a large proportion of its costs, such as Research and Development, are settled in Sterling and Swedish Krona

The Group manages these exchange nisks, where possible, by using currency exchange contracts for the sale of US Dollar and Euro
as appropriate The Group enters into specific forward foreign exchange contracts for indwvidually significant revenue contracts when
the uming of forecast cash flows 1s reasonably certain In addition, the Group enters into forward fereign exchange contracts to sell
US Dollars and Euro to match forecast cash flows arnising from rts recurning revenue base These are renewed on a revolving basis as
required At 31 March 2012, the Group had outstanding currency exchange contracts to sell $13 0 milion {2011 - $17 75 milhon} and
€6 65 mtllion (2011 - €9 5 million}

The Group has not applied hedge accounung dunng the current year and therefore all gains and losses on forward foreign exchange
contracts have been included in the Consolidated iIncome statement

The Group has investments in foreign operations whose net assets are exposed to currency translation nsk Gains and |osses ansing
from these structural currency exposures are recognised 1n the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Foregn currency sensitwity analysis

For the presentation of market risks, IFRS 7 requires sensiivity analyses that show the effects of hypothetical changes in the foreign
exchange rates in profit or loss or shareholders’ equity The impact 1s determined by applying the sensitised foreign exchange rate
to the monetary assets and liabilities at the Balance sheet date

Currency nsks as defined by IFRS 7 anse on account of financial instruments being denominated tn a currency that 1s not the
functional currency and being of a monetary nature, differences resulting from the translation of financial staiements into the
Group's presentation currency are not taken into consideration

A 10% change in the US Dollar against Sterhng, Euro against Sterling and Swedish Krona against Sterling would have impacted
equity and profit after tax by the amounts shown below as at the reporting date shown In management’s opinion, this 1s a
reasonably possible change given current market conditions This analysis assumes that all other variables in particular interest
rates and other foreign currencies, remain constant The analysis 1s performed on the same basis for 2010/11

Increase/

(decresase) Profit/
in average {lossh Equity
31 March 2012 rate £000 £000
US Dollar 10% 1,670 1,670
{10%) [1,838) (1,838)
Euro 10% 262 262
{10%]) {289} (289}
Swedish Krona 10% 203 203

{10%} {223) {223)

tncrease/
(decressal Profit/

in average {loss} Equity
31 Mareh 2011 rate £000 £000 -
Us Dollar 10% (1,771} {1,771} §
(10%) 1949 1,949 2
Euro 10% 758 758 g
{10%) (834) {834 3
Swedish Krona 10% 218 2186 g
{10%) (240) (240) o
=]
5

b) Credit nsk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash equivalents, treasury deposits, trade and other receivables

Counter-parties for cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits are governed by the treasury policy, which hes been approved
by the Beard, and are limited to financial Institutions which have a high credit rating assigned by international credit rating agencies
The amount of exposure to each counter-party 1s subject to a specific imit up to a maximum of £70 million as set out in the Group's
treasury policy
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26 Financial risk management continued
b) Credit risk continued

The Group trades only with recogrised, creditworthy third parties and provides credi te customers in the normal course of business
The amounts presented in the Consohdated balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful recevables An allowance for
impairment 1s made where there 1s an identified loss event, which based on previous experience, 1s evidence of a reduction In the
recoverability of the cash flows The Group has credit contro! functions to monitor recevable balances on an ongoing basis Credit
checks are performed before credit 1s granted to new customers The Group has no sigrificant concentration of credit nsk, with
axposure spread over a large number of customers The maximum exposure to credit risk 1s represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset The exposure to credit nisk 1s mitigated where necessary by either letters of credit or payments in advance

The Group does not require collateral In respect of its financial assets

Disclosures relating to the credit associated with trade recevables are in note 20

c) Liqunchty nsk

The Group manages hquidity nsk by mantaining adequate cash reserves and by continuously monitering forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the matunty of financial assets and liabilities The Group has no borrowings from third parties and therefore

hquidity nsk 1s not considered a significant risk at this tme

The table below analyses the Group's financial habilities, which will be settled on a net basis, into relevant matunty groupings based
on the remaining period at the Balance sheet to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows

Betwean Betweasen
Lessthan three months six months Greater
threa and six and one than
months months year ona year
£000 £000 £000 £000
As at 31 March 2012
Trade and other payables 33,479 — — —
As at 31 March 20N
Trade and other payables 33,101 — — —

The table below analyses the Group's forward foreign exchange contracts, which will be settled on a gross basis, into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining pericd at the Balance sheet to the contractual maturity date The amounts disclosed

in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

Between Between
Less than  three months sIx months
three andsix and ona
menths months year
oo0 000 Q00
As at 31 March 2012
Forward foreign exchange contracts (Euro}
Qutflow €1,650 €2,000 €3,000
Inflow £1,463 £1,734  £2,540
Forward foreign exchange contracts (US Dollar}
Qutflow $3,250 $3,750 $6,000
Inflow £2,006 £2,348 £3,850
As at 31 March 2041
Forward foreign exchange contracts (Euro}
Cutflow €3 000 €3000 €3,500
Inflow £2,502 £2,5653 £3,009
Forward foreign exchange contracts (US Dollar)
Outflow $5,250 $5 250 $7.250
Inflow £3 375 £3 321 £4,620
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26 Financial risk management continued

d) Interest rate profile of finanoal assets and hamlibes
The interest rate profile of the financial assets and liabilties of the Group as at 31 March is as follows

Year ended 31 March 2012

Within  Onetotwo  Twoto three

one year years years Total
Fixed rate £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and short-term deposits 1,688 — — 1,688
Treasury deposits 130,220 —_ — 130,220
Floating rate
Cash and short-term deposits 46,981 —_ — 46,981
Treasury deposits §2 —_— —_ 62

Year ended 31 March 2011

Within  Onetwmwe Twotothree

ona year years years Total
Fixed rate £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and short-term deposits 2,882 — — 2,882
Treasury deposits 123,002 — — 123,002
Floatng rate
Cash and short-term deposits 27,303 —- — 27,303

e) Farr values

The book values of the Group's financial assets and liabilities consist of bank and cash balances of £48,669,000 (2011 — £30,185,000)
and treasury deposits of £130,282,000 {2011 — £123,002,000) The carrying amounts of these financial assets and [tabilities in the
Group's financial statements approximates their fair values

In addition the Group's financial assets also include forward foreign exchange contracts Financial instruments which are recogmised
at fair value subsequent to initia! recognition are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable
The three levels are defined as follows

« Level 1 farr value measurements are those denved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or habihties,

» Level 2 far value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or iability, either directly {1 e as prices) or indirectly (1 ¢ denved from prices), and

» Level 3 farr value measurements are those denved from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data {(unobservable inputs)

At 31 March 2012 the Group had forward foreign exchange contracts which were measured at Level 2 fair value subsequent to
initial recognition The fair value of the asset In respect of foreign exchange contracts was £223,000 at 31 March 2012 {2011 — Labiity
of £85,000)

The resulting gain of £308,000 (2011 — gain of £948,000) on the movement of the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
1s recognised in the Consolidated income statement within administrative expenses

f) Caprtal management

The Group's policy 1s to maintain a strong capital base so as 10 mantain investor market, creditor customer and employee
confidence and to sustain future development of the business The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to the equity holders of AVEVA Group plc compnising of issued share capital other reserves and reta:ned earnings

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or 1ssue new shares No changes were made In the objectives, policies or processes duning the years ended 31 March 2011 or 2012

The Board monitors the capital structure on a regular basts and determines the level of annual dividend The Group 1s not exposed
to any externally imposed capital requirements
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27 Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax habihities and assets recognised by the Group and the movements thereon dunng the
current year

Accelerated Ratrament
capital Land and henefig Intangible Share
allowances builldings*  obliganons assets opuens Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 Apri 2011 (401} {200} 366 (2 012} 1,007 2,077 837
Acquisition — — — {855) — {25} {8B0O)
Credit/(charge) 1o Income statement 308 6 {131} {59) (80) 614 658
Credit/(charge} to other comprehensive income — — 1,639 62 —_ — 1,701
Charge to equity — — — — (142) — {(142)
Exchange adjustment {1) — — — — {19) {20)
At 31 March 2012 {94) {194) 1,874 {2,864) 785 2,647 2,154

* A deferred 1ax lrebiiny anses on the difference between the tax base and the accounting base of a long leasehold property that was acquired in 1994

Other deferred tax assets consist principally of deferred tax on bad debt prowision, forward foreign exchange contracts staff bonus
accrual and timing differences In respect of revenue recognition

Certain deferred tax assets and habilies have been offset The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances {after offset)

for financial reporting purposes

2012

201

£000 £000

Deferred tax habilities {1.855) (2,801}

Deferred tax assets 4,009 3638
2,154 837

At the Balance sheet date the Group has unused tax losses of £795,000 {2011 - £2,241,000) available for offset against future

profits Of the total deferred 1ax asset of £238,000 (2011 — £760,433), £238,000 {2011 - £nil} has been recognised and 1s included

In ‘other’ above These losses may be carnied forward indefinitely

At the Balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of overseas
subsidiaries for which deferred tax hiabilities have not been recognised was approximately £32,172,0600 {2011 — £34,100,000}
No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group 15 1n a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future Itis ikely that
the majority of the overseas earnings would quakify for the UK dividend exemptions but may be subject to foreign withholding taxes

28 Retirement benefit obligations

The movement on the provision for retirement benefit obligations was as follows

UK German South

defined defined Koraan

benefit beneht severance
stheme schemas pay Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2010 11,692 703 687 13,082
Current service cost 1,130 36 27 1,437
Interest on pension scheme habihties 2,897 38 —_ 2935
Expected return on pension scheme assets {2.2419) — — {2,415}
Actuanal lossf{gain) {8,245} 27 — {8,218}
Employer contributions (3.647) (79) (32) {3,758}
Exchange adjustment — {9) {23) (32}
At 31 March 2011 1 408 7186 903 3027
Current service cost 1,388 38 359 1,785
Interest on pension scheme labilities 2715 40 — 2755
Expected return on penston schems assets (2,491) — — (2,491}
Actuarial loss/{gain) 5,828 86 169 7083
Employer contributions {2,040} (82} (94) (2,218}
Exchange adjustment — {39) {29) {68}
At 31 March 2012 7.808 759 1,308 9,875
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28 Retirement benefit abligations continued
a) UK defined benefit scheme

The Group operates a UK defined benefit pension plan providing benefits based on fina! pensionable pay which 1s funded This
scheme was closed to new employees on 30 September 2002 {with the option of re-opening if required) and was converted 1o a
Career Average Revalued Earnings basis on 30 September 2004 Pensions are payable to dependants on death in retirement and
a lump sum 1s payable if death occurs in service There 1s an insurance peolicy 1n place which covers this Liability Admenistration
on hehalf of the members 1s governed by a trust deed, and the funds are held and managed by professional investment managers

who are independent of the Group

Contribuuons to the scheme are made 1n accordance with advice from an external, professionally qualified actuary Broadstone
Investment Management Limited, at rates which are calculated to be sufficient to meet the future liabiities of the scheme using
the projected unit credit method The employees’ contributions are fixed as a percentage of salary, the balance being made up
by the employer Scheme assets are stated at their market values at the respective Balance sheet dates

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption the Company considered the current level of expected
returns on risk-free investments {primartly government bonds) 1he histornical level of the nsk premum associated with the other
asset classes In which the portfolio 1s invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset class

The principal assumptions used in determining the pension valuation were as follows

2012 200
% %
Main assumptions
Rate of salary increases 520 5 50
Rate of increase of pensions in payment 290 330
Rate of increase of pensions in deferment 220 280
Discount rate 4 60 550
Inflation assumption 320 3560
Expected rate of return on scheme assets
Equities 640 6 30
Bonds 290 390
Other 050 0 50

For the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 the following weighted average life expectancy at age 65 for mortality has been used

2012 20Mm
Years Years
Male pensioners 244 243
Female pensioners 254 253
Non-retired males 266 265
Non-retired females 277 276

Member contributions were 7 5% {2011 - 7 5%) of pensionable salary From 1 September 2011 most members’ contributions were
made by the Company through a salary sacrifice arrangement Company contributions were £2,040,000 (2011 - £3,647,000 including
a one-off contnbution of £2,500,000) The total contrnibutions 1in 2013 are expected to be approximately £2,267,000

The assumed discount rate, inflatron rate and mortalty all have a significant effect on the IAS 19 accounting valuation The following

table shows the sensitivity of the valuation to changes in these assumptions

Impact en deficit
increasefdecrease)

2012 20n

£000 £000

0 25 percentage point increase to
- discount rate
- inflation {including pension increases hinked to inflation)

{2,829} (2,353)
1,639 1,392

Addiuional one year increase to life expectancy 1,103 791
The assets and habilities of the scheme at 31 March 2012 and 2011 were as follows
2012 201
£000 £000

Equities
Bonds
Other

31,938 33.841
12,869 9023
5,637 5,034

Total fair value of assets
Present value of scheme habilines

50,445 47,898
{58,253) (49,308)

Net pension hability

(7.808) (1,408
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28 Retirement benefit obligations continued

a) UK defined benefit scheme contimued
The amounts recognised in the Conseolidated income statement and Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
are analysed as follows

2012 201
£000 £000

Recognised in the Consolidated income statement

Current service cost

Research and development costs 926 707

Selling and distribution expenses 320 301

Adrinistrative expenses 142 122

Total operating charge 1,388 1,130

Finance revenue

Expected return on pension scheme assets {2,491) (2,419)

Finance costs

Interest on pension scheme lhabilities 2,715 2,897

Taken to Consolhidated statement of comprehensive income

Actual return on pension scheme assets 1,794 4,148

Less expected return on pension scheme assets {2,491) (2 419)
{697) 1.729

Changes in assumptions and experience adjustments on lhabilities {6,131) 6,516

Actuarial {loss)/gain recognised in Consolidated statement of comprehensive income {6,828) 8,245

Durning 2010/11, there was a change in the UK statutory measure of indexation for some pension bengfits from the Retail Prices
Index {RPI} to the Consumer Prices Index (CPI} This resulted in an actuanal gan of £750 000 which was accounted for as a change
of assumption

Analysis of movements in the present value of the defined benefit pension cbhgations dunng the year are analysed as follows

202 201

£000 £000
At 1 Apnl 49,306 52,428
Current service costs 1,388 1,130
Contributions by employees 167 39
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 2,715 2,897
Benefits paid {1,416} (980}
Premiums paid (38) {44}
Actuanal lossf(gain} 6,131 {6,516)
At 31 March 58,263 49 306
The above defined benefit obligation anises from a plan that 1s wholly funded
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as fellows

2012 201

£000 £000
At 1 Apnit 47,898 40,736
Expected return 2,4% 2,419
Contnbutions by employer 2,040 3,647
Contributions by employees 167 391
Benefits pad {1,416} {980)
Premiums paid (38} {44)
Actuanal {loss)gain (697) 1729
At 31 March 50,445 47,898
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28 Retirement benefit obligations continued

a) UK defined benefit scheme continued
The history of expernience adjustments 1s as fellows

2012 201 2010 2009 2008

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value of scheme assets 50,445 47,898 40,736 28,691 32,931
Present value of defined benefit obligations (58,253) (49 306) (52,428) (36313} (33,600}
Deficit in the scheme {7,808) {1,408) (11892) {7.622) {669)
Expenence adjustments on scheme hiabilities (107} 3353 1,452 492 56
Experience adjustments on scheme assets {697) 1,728 8,506 {8 043) {2,793}

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses since 1 Aprl 2004 recognised directly within other comprehensive income was
a loss of £8 007,000 (2011 ~ loss of £1 179,000) The Directors are unable to determine how much of the pension scheme deficit
recognised on transition to IFRSs and taken to the Consclidated statement of comprehensive income of £8,600,000 1n the Group

1s attributable to actuanal gains and losses since inception of the pension schemes Consequently, the Directors are unable

to determine the amount of actuanal gains and losses that would have been recognised in the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income before 1 April 2004

b) German defined benefit schemes

There are two defined benefit pansion schemes in AVEVA GmbH Tnibon Solutions GmbH operated an unfunded defined benefit
scheme that provides benefits to three deferred members following an acquisition in 1992 No current employees partcipate in
the scheme and it 1s closed to new applicants Benefit payments are made as they fall due The scheme was transferred to AVEVA
GmbM when Tribon Solutions GmbH and AVEVA GmbH merged in 2005

In addition, AVEVA GmbH operates a defined benefit pension scheme for one employee This scheme 1s closed to new members

Details of the actuarial assumptions used to value these schemes in accordance with I1AS 19 are set out below

2012 2011
Rate of increase of pension in payment 2 0%=-2 5% 175%-2 50%
Discount rate 4 8%-5 3% 5 25%-5 30%
Mortahty 15 5 years 16 years
Rate of salary increases 0%-2 5% 0%-2 50%

The retirement age for the Tnbon Solutions GmbH and AVEVA GmbH schemes was 60 and 63 years of age respectively
(2011 - 60 and 63 years of age)

Analysis of movements in the provision for the defined benefit pension obligations during the year 1s set out below

2012 20m

£000 £000

At 1 April 716 703
Current service cost (included in selling and distribution expenses) 38 36
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (included in finance expense} 40 38
Employer contributions {82) {73}
Actuarial loss (included in Consolidated statement of comprehensive income) 86 27
Exchange adjustment {39) {2)
At 31 March 759 716

The contributions 1n 2013 are expected to be approximately £43 000

¢) South Korean severance pay
South Korean employees are entitled to a lump sum on severance of their employment equal to one month s salary for each year
of service An IAS 19 valuation of the hability has been carried out using the following assumptions

2012 2011

% %
Rate of salary increases 600 610
Discount rate 467 378
Inflation assumption 300 390

The retirement age for AVEVA Korea Limited employees 1s 60 years of age {2011 - 60 years of age)
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Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

28 Retirement benefit obligations continued

c) South Korean severance pay continued
Analysis of movements in the present value of the obligation duning the year 1s set out below

2012 20
£000 E00C
At 1 Apnl 903 687
Current service cost (included in selling and distnbution costs) 359 271
Payment of benefits {94) (32)
Actuanal loss 169 —
Exchange adjustment {29) (23}
At 31 March 1,308 903

d) Other retirement schemes

All Swedish employees employed by AVEVA AB aged 28 or over are members of the {TP an ndustry scheme for salaried employees
which provides benefits in addition to the state pension arrangements The TP scheme 1s managed by Alecta, a Swedish insurance
company It 1s a mult-employer defined benefit scheme with a supplementary defined contnbution component AVEVA AB pays
monthly premiums to the iInsurers which vary by age service and salary of the employee AVEVA AB s unable to identify (ts share
of the underlying assets and liabilities 1n the scheme on a fair and reasonable basis because this information 1s not provided by the
scheme and therefore has accounted for the scheme as if it was a defined contribution pension scheme At 31 March 2012, Alecta's
surplus in the form of collective funding level was 124% (2011 - 144%) which was calculated in accordance with the Swedish
Annual Accounts Act for Insurance Companies The total cost charged to inceme was £666,000 (2011 - £637,000)

e) Defined contnbution schemes

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes for certain UK, US, German. French, Norwegian and Asian employees
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group The total cost charged to income of £3,055,000 (2011 — £2,147,000)
represents contributions payable to these schemes by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of the plans

29 Share-based payment plans

The Group has three equity-settled share schemes the AVEVA Group plc Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), the AVEVA Group Management
Bonus Deferred Share Scheme and the AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2007 No grants have been made under the
2007 scherme which was approved at the Annual General Meeting on 12 July 2007 Details of these plans are set out below

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options for
both plans during the year

2012 2011
202 WAEP 2011 WAEP

Number Pence Number Pence

Qutstanding at start of year 458,759 234 378,220 225
Granted during year 174,304 269 156,899 239
Forfeited during year {88,414} 29 —_ —
Exercised during year {84,620) 067 (76,460) 197
Cutstanding at end of year 460,029 267 458,759 234
Exercisable at end of year 15,151 119 42,398 176

* The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for the options exercised 15 £16 77 {2011 - £11 98}

Share options have been granted under both plans to certain employees of the Group and remain outsianding as follows

Numbar Number

ot options of options Exercise

202 201 prce

Date of grant Share opuen plan Number Number Pance
28 June 2006 LTIP — 12,072 333
2 July 2007 LTIP 5,413 10,293 333
7 July 2008 LTIP — 50,032 333
15 July 2008 Deferred Share Scheme — 19,393 000
27 May 2009 Deferred Share Scheme 32,145 72131 Q00
7 July 2008 LTIP 123,475 137,839 333
15 June 2010 Deferred Share Scheme 25,039 44423 000
26 July 2010 LTIP 99,653 112576 333
4 July 201 Deferred Share Scheme 33,484 -_ 000
8 July 2011 LTIP 140,820 —_ 333

460,629 458,759
The weighted average remaining contractual ife for the options outstanding at 31 March 2012 1s 5 25 years (2011 - 5 32 years)
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29 Share-based payment plans continued

The average farr value of options granted dunng the year was £17 13{2011 - £12 32} In calculating the fair value, the expected life
of the options 1s based on histoncal data and 1s not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility I1s indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarlly be the actual outcome

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was £nil to £0 03 (2011 — £nit to £0 03}

The Group recognised total expenses of £666,000 and £1,541,000 related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the
years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 respectively

Details of the share option plans are as follows

a) Long-Term Incentve Plan (LTIP)

The following awards have been made under the LTIP The exercise price 1s equal to the nominal value of the underlying shares,
which 1s 3 33 pence Options under the LTIP are normally exercisable in full or in part between the third and tenth anniversanes
of the date of grant

2011/12 awards

In 2011/12 a total of 140 820 share opuons were awarded to the Executive Directors and senior management under the LTIP The
performance conditions attached to this award are based on EPS growth over the three years from 2011/12 to 201314 If average
diluted EPS growth 1s more than 12% abave RPI for the same pernicd then all the shares under this option will vest If average diluted
EPS growth 1s less than 5% above RPI then none of the shares will vest if average EPS growth 1s between 5% and 12% per annum
above RPI then the number of shares that shall vest shall be determined by linear interpolation

2010/11 awards

In2010/11 a total of 112 576 share options were awarded to Executive Directors and semor management under the LTIP The
performance conditions are based on average EPS growth over the three years from 2010/11 to 201213 |f average diluted EPS
growth 1s more than 12% above RPI for the same period then all of the shares under thts option will vest If average diluted EPS
growth 1s less than 4% above RPI then none of the shares will vest If average EPS growth 1s between 4% and 12% per annum
then the number of shares that shall vest shall be determined by linear interpolation

2009/10 awards

On 7 July 2009, a total of 137 839 share options were awarded to the Executive Directors and senior management under the LTIP
The performance conditions are based on average diluted earmings per share over the three years from 2009/10 to 2011/12 All
shares under this option shall vest iIf average diluted earnings per share for the three years ending 31 March 2012 1s equal to or
above 52 14 pence Should average diluted earnings per share for the period be below 52 14 pence, then no shares will vest and
the option will lapse -

2008/09 awards

On 7 July 2008, a total of 50,032 share optiens were awarded to the Executive Directors and senior management under the LTIP
The performance conditions are based on average growth In earnings per share over the years from 2008/09 to 2010/11 If average
earnings per share growth 1s greater than 14% per annum then all of the shares shall vest If average earmnings per share 1s less than
10% per annum then none of the shares shall vest |f average earnings per share growth i1s between 10% and 14% per annum then
the number of shares that shall vest shall be determined by linear interpolation During 2010/11, the vesting conditions were tested
and had not been met Therefore all of these options have now lapsed

The farr value of each these option awards 1s measured at grant date using the Black Scholes option pricing model taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted The following table hists the inputs to the model used for each of
the LTIP awards

2011712 2010413 200910 2008/09

awards awards awards awards

Dividend yreld 103% 070% 130% 0 45%
Expected volatility 48 0% 51 0% 52 0% 41 0%
Risk-free interest rate 151% 151% 228% 4 97%
Expected Ife of the option 3years 3years 3vyears 3years
Weighted average share price £1773 £13 55 £7 20 £14 92
Weighted average exercise price £0 03 £0 03 £0 03 £0 03
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

29 Share-based payment plans continued

b) Deferred annual bonus share plan

In 2008 the Company established the AVEVA Group Management Bonus Deferred Share Scheme 2008 (the Deferred Share Scheme)
Directors and semor management participate in this scheme Subject to the achievement of performance conditions relating to a
single financial year these incentive arrangements are intended to reward the recipient partly in cash and partly in ordinary shares

in the Company 10 be delivered on a deferred basis

In July 2011, the AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008 awarded 33,484 (2010 — 44,423} deferred shares to the Executive
Drrectors and senior management 1n respect of the bonus earned in the year ended 31 March 2011 {2010 - bonus earned in year
ended 31 March 2010}

The awards of defarred shares take the form of nil-cost options exercisable by participants in three equal tranches, one in each of
the three years following the year in which the award 1s made The option may be exercised in the 42-day period beginning on the
announcement of the financial results of the Group in each of the three calendar years after that in which the option was granted
The last date of the exercise 1s the end of the 42-day penod following the announcement of the financial results of the Group in the
third calendar year following that in which the option was granted or (if applicable) such later date as the Remuneration Committee
may specify These awards are made solely in respect of performance in the financial year immediately prior to their grant Delivery
of the deferred shares 1s not subject to further performance conditions but each participant is required to remain an employee or
Director of the Group during the three-year vesting penod in order to receive his deferred shares in full {except in the case of death
or the occurrence cof a takecver, reconstruction or amalgamation or voluntary winding up of the Company)

The fair value of these option awards 1s measured at grant date using the Black Scholes option pricing medel taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted The following table hists the inputs {0 the model used for each
of the Deferred Bonus Share Plan awards

2011/12 2010/

awards awards
Dividend yield 110% 0 81%
Expected volatility 48 0% 51 0%
Risk-free interest rate 151% 151%
Expected life of the option 3 years 3 years
Weghted average share price £17 56 £11 69
Weighted average exercise price £0 00 £0 00

) AVEVA Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2007
The above scheme was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in 2007 No awards have yet been made under this
scheme and performance conditions will be set when awards are made under this scheme

30 Share capital and reserves

a) Share capital
2012 2011
£000 £000
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
67,980,372 (2011 — 67,973,420} ordinary shares of 3 33 pence (2011 — 3 33 pence) each 2,266 2 266
Detatls of the shares 1ssued duning the year and the prior year are as follows
2012 2012 201 2011
Number £000 Number tooo
At 1 April 67,973,420 2,266 67,928,208 2,264
Exercise of share options 16,952 — 45,212 2
At 31 March 67,990,372 2,266 67,973,420 2,266
Year ended 31 March 2012
Noominsl Share
Number value premium Market
of shares 2012 2012 pricea
Date of 155ue 2012 £ £ £
23 February 2012 16,952 565 —_ 17 22
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30 Share capital and reserves continued
a) Share caprtal continued
Year ended 31 March 2011

Nominal Share
Number value premium Market
of shares 201 2011 price
Data of 1ssue 2011 £ € £
2 July 2010 37099 1,236 — 11 45
20 July 2010 2,768 92 — 12 60
23 September 2010 2,628 88 — 14 21
28 January 2011 2,717 91 — 16 44

45 212 1,607 —

b) Other reserves
Other reserves consist of the following

Cumulative translation adjustment reserve
The cumulative translation adjustment reserve Is used 1o record exchange differences which arese from 1 April 2004 from the
transtation of the financial statements of foreign subsidianes

Merger reserve
This represents the difference between the fair value and the nominal value of shares 1ssued in connection with the acquisition

of AVEVA AB in 2004
Own shares held

Own shares heid reserve represents the cost of the shares in AVEVA Group ple purchased in the open market and held by the AVEVA
Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008 (EBT) to satisfy deferred shares under the Group's deferred annual bonus share plan During the
year, 33,484 shares were purchased by the EBT at a price of £16 83 and 67 668 shares {2011 — 31,246} with an attributable cost of
£680,000 were 1ssued 10 employees in satisfying share aptions that were exercised

£000

At 1 Apnl 2010 112
Own shares purchased {15 June 2010} 430
Shares issued to employees {319)
At 31 March 2011 1,223
Own shares purchased {27 June 2011} 563
Shares 1ssued to employees {630)
At 31 March 2012 1,106

31 Related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not disclosed in this note

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and other members of the Executive Board, who are the key management personnel of the Group,
1s set out below In aggregate for each of the categones specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures In addition to their salaries, the
Group also provides non-cash benefits and contributes to defined benefit or defined contribution pension schemes on their behalf
Members of the key management team also participate in the Group's share option schemes and deferred annual bonus share plan

Further information about the remuneration of individual Directors 1s provided in the audited pant of the Remuneration Commuttee
report on pages 42 and 43

2012 201
£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 2,066 1,724
Share-based payments 921 432
2,987 2,156

32 Post balance sheet event

On 22 May 2012, the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of the Bocad group of companies based in Belgium and
Germany The acquisition consideration was cash of €17 5 mullion (£14 0 million) on a debt free/cash free basis which has been
settled from existing cash resources In view of the timing of the acquisiion it has not been practical to complete the farr valuation
of the acquired assets and habilities
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Financial statements

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the Company financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected
to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law) The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod in preparning those financial statements, the Directors
are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accountng records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compantes Act 2006 They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of AVEVA Group plc

We have audited the parent Company financial statements of AVEVA Group ple for the year ended 31 March 2012 which comprise
the Balance sheet and the related notes 1to 10 The financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n their preparation 15
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we rmight state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 82, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Cur respensibility
15 to audit the parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
{UK and ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An augit Involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasenableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition we read all the financial and non-financial information In the annual report to
identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent materal misstatements

or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the parent Company financial statements

« give atrue and far iew of the state of the Company's affars as at 31 March 2012,
« have been properly prepared in accordance with Urited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and
« have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20086

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In cur opinion

+ the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, and

« the information given in the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent
with the parent Company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparies Act 2006 requires us to report o you if
IN OUr OPINIoH

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audrt have not been
recaewved from branches not wisited by us, or

« the parent Company financial statements and the pant of the Directors remuneration report 1o be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

« certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audnt

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of AVEVA Group ple for the year ended 31 March 2012

Z_‘A( cc /?

Bob Forsytlf (Sentor statutory auditor) Company number
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor 2937296
Cambridge

28 May 2012
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Financial statements

Company balance sheet
31 March 2012

2012 201
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investrments 5 28,732 27,482
Current assets
Debtors 6 129,838 129,838
Cash at bank and in hand 145 145
129,983 129,983
Craeditors amounts falling due within one year 7 {46,196} (33,051)
Net current assets 83,787 96 932
Net assets 112,519 124,414
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 8 2,266 2,266
Share premtum account 9 27,288 27,288
Merger reserve g 3,921 3,921
Profit and loss account g 79,044 90,939
Shareholders’ funds 9 112,519 124,414

The financial Atatements on pages 84 ta 87 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 May 2012 and signed on its behalf by

Nick Prest Richard Long
Chairman Chief Executive

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Company balance sheet
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Corporate information
AVEVA Group plc (the Company} s a hmited company incorporated in England and Wales whose shares are publicly traded
The principal activity of the Company 1s that of a holding company

2 Accounting policies
A summary of the principal accounting policies, which have all been applied consistently throughout the current and the preceding
year, is set out below

a) Basis of accounting
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and law

As permitted by FRS 1 {Revised) Cash flow statements, the Company has not included a Cash flow statement as part of its financial
statements because the Consolidated financial statements of the Group (of which the Company 1s a member) inciude a Cash flow
statement and are publicly avallable

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption avallable under FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures and not disclosed related party
transactions with wholly owned subsichary undertakings

b) Taxation
Current tax including UK corpeoration tax and foreign tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance sheet date

Deferred tax s recognised in respect of all trming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the Balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred
at the Balance sheet date Timing differences are differences between the Company's taxable profits and 1ts results as stated in the
financial statements that anse from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments In periods different from those in which
they are recogn:sed in the financial statements

A deferred tax asset i1s regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, & can
be regarded as mare Lkely than not that there will be surtable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying tming
differences can be deducted

Deferred tax s not recognised when fixed assets are sold and it 1Is more likely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over, being
charged to tax only if and when the replacement assets are sold

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of the retained earnings of overseas subsidianes and associates only to the extent that at the
Balance sheet date, dividends have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement to distribute past earrungs in the future has
been entered into by the subsidiary or associate

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the tming differences are
expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance sheet date
Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis

¢) Forewan currency

Transactions denominated n foreign currencies are recorded at actual exchange rates as of the date of the transaction Monetary
assets and habiliues denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at the year
end Any gain or loss ansing from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of the transaction 1s included as an exchange
gamn or loss in the profit and loss account

d) Share-based payments

The expense for share-based payments 1$s recognised In accordance with the accounting policy for the Consclidated financial statements
of the Group and i1s recognised in the subsidiary companies employing the relevant employees The Company recognises the expense
relating to the Executive Directors The Company also records a cormesponding Increase In its investrments in subsidianes with a credit

to equity which i1s equivalent to the FRS 20 cost in the subsidiary undenakings

e} Investments
Fixed asset iInvestments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less provision for impairment

3 Result for the year
As permutted by Section 408 {3) of the Companies Act 2008, the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account
for the year AVEVA Group ple reported a loss for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 of £723,000 (2011 — profit £29 619,000

Audit fees of £7,000 (2011 - £7,000) are borne by another Group company

The Company does not have any employees (2011 - nit) Directors’ emoluments are disclosed in the Remuneration Committes report
on pages 36 to 43 and are paid by a UK subsidiary company

AVEVA Group plc Annual report 2012 /8%

Auedo) - SUBLWAIELS [ELIVELLY



Financial statements

Notes to the Company financial statements continued

4 Dividends

2012
£000

20m
£000

Daclared and pard during the year

tnterim 2011/12 dwidend paid of 4 00 pence (2010/11 — 3 36 pence) per ordinary share 2,715 2,280

Final 2010/11 dvidend paid of 14 89 pence (2009/10 — 13 9 pence) per ordinary share 10,117 9,423
12,832 1,703

Proposed for approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

Final 2011/12 proposed dividend of 17 00 pence {2010/11 — 14 89 pence) per ordinary share 11,558 10,121

The proposed final dwidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 12 July 2012 and has not been

included as a hability in these financial staterments

5 Fixed asset investments

£000

Cost and net book value

At 1 Apnl 2011 27482
Share-based payments 1,250
At 31 March 2012 28,732

Details of the Company's subsidiary undertakings are set out In note 191n the Consolidated financial statements of the Group

6 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

2012
£000

201
£000

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 129,838 129,838
7 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2012 2011
£000 £000
Accruals 62 —
Amounts owed to Group undertaking 46,134 33,051
46,196 33,051
8 Called-up share capital
2012 2011
£000 £000
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
67,890,372 (2011 - 67 973,420) ordinary shares of 3 33 pence each 2,266 2,266
2012 2012 2011 201
Number £000 Number £000
At 1 Apnil 67,973,420 2,266 67,928,208 2.264
Exercise of share options 16,952 — 45 212 2
At 31 March 67,990,372 2,266 67 973,420 2,266
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8 Called-up share capital continued
Details of the shares issued dunng the year are as follows

Year ended 31 March 2012

Nominal Share
Number value premium Market
of shares 2012 amnmz price
Date of Issue 2012 £ |3 £
23 February 2012 16,952 565 _ 17 22
Year ended 31 March 2011
Nomenal Share
Number valug pramium Market
of shares 201 201 price
Date of issue 20 £ £ £
2 July 2010 37,099 1,236 — 1145
20 July 2010 2,768 a2 — 12 60
23 September 2010 2,628 88 —_ 14 21
28 January 2011 2717 1 — 16 44
45,212 1,607 —

During the year the Company 1ssued 18,852 (2011 — 45 212) ordinary shares of 3 33 pence each with a nominal value of £565
{2011 - £1,507} pursuant to the exercise of share options The total proceeds were £665 (2011 - £1,607), which included a

premium of £ml (2011 - Enil}

Details of share options awarded to Executive Directors dunng the year are contained in the Directors’ remuneration report Note 29
of the Consolidated financial statements for the Group includes details of share option awards made dunng the year

9 Reconciliation of shareholders’ funds and movements on reserves

Profit Total
Share Share Merger sndloss  shareholders
capital prarmum raserve account funds
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 Apnl 201 2,264 27288 3,921 73,023 106,486
Profit for the year _ — — 25,619 29,619
Share Issues 2 — — — 2
Dividends paid — — — (11,703} (11703}
At 31 March 2011 2,266 27,288 3,827 209838 124,414
Loss for the year — — —_ {723) (723)
Share-based payments —_ — — 410 410
Share options granted to employees of subsidiary companies — — — 1,250 1,260
Dividends pawd — — —  {12832) {12,832)
At 31 March 2012 2,266 27,288 3,921 79,044 112,519
10 Related party transactions
There were no transactions with related parties in either the current or the preceding financial year that require disclosure within
these financial statements
AVEVA Group plc Annual report 2012 /87

Auedwo?y - $UWAIEYS LR




Other information

Five year record

2012 201 2010 2009 2008

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Summansed consolidated results
Revenue 195,935 173988 148,334 164,041 127581
Recurrnng revenue 137,890 117199 102,701 94,196 66104
Research and development expense 32,121 28,082 20,946 27,332 21 301
Adjusted profit before tax 62,276 54,720 50 685 66,360 48,823
Profit before tax 57,737 48,795 49,574 659,201 44,967
Income tax expense {(17.769) (15,303) (16,134) (17,047} {(10.727)
Profit for the financial year 39,968 34,492 33 440 42,154 34,246
Basic earnings per share 58 86p 5085p 49 36p 62 27p 50 80p
Adjusted basic earnings per share 63 81p 56 08p 5092p 6999 55 1ip
Total dividend per share 21 00p 18 25p 16 90p 9 36p 6 65p
Summansed consolhidated balance sheet
Non-current assets 62,306 58,356 42,087 42,219 36,378
Cash and cash equivaients and treasury deposits {net) 178,951 153187 149,724 126,164 82,849
Net current assets 170,886 149,844 141663 111,265 73,025
Shareholders’ funds 221,462 202,372 169222 143131 105746

= Adjusted profit before tax 15 stated before amorusation of Intangibles {excluding other software) share-besed payments adjustment 1o goodwill the gainfloss on
the tair value of forward foreign currency contracts and exceptional tems Adjusted basic earnings per share Is also adjusted for the tax efiect of these nems
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